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We refuse to stand down. The conditions of 2020 easily rendered businesses immobile,
but part of our Company’s strategy has always been to find ways to power forward.
This was a high-stakes year, driving us to take charge of the opportunities that surfaced
while staying calculated in our measures. We made wins along the way, but we won’t stop there.

The cover illustrates the seemingly impossible. But we believe that with grit, determination,
and practical experience, our Company has what it takes to break the barriers of industry tradition
and bring something new to the table—something that has yet to be seen in the industry.
Megawide remains indomitable as we build our way up to a First-World Philippines.
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The ASR 2020 is based both on the Philippine Securities 
and Exchange Commission’s (SEC) Sustainability Reporting 
Guidelines for Publicly Listed Companies and the GRI 
Standards. This report has been prepared in accordance with 
the GRI Standards: Core option.

For all sustainability concerns and queries, please contact us 
through our Megawide Foundation office at
foundation@megawide.com.ph
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For inquiries from our customers, investors, analysts, and the 
financial community, please contact our Investor Relations 
Team at ir@megawide.com.ph. For media and other 
stakeholders, please contact our Corporate Affairs Team at 
corpaffairs@megawide.com.ph. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
103-1
A strong economic performance provides our company with the resources to ensure 
long-term enterprise sustainability and enables us to pursue and fund a broader 
and more inclusive social and environmental sustainability program. A robust 
economic performance also enhances the value chain and facilitates a healthy wealth 
distribution across the organization.

MARGIN PERFORMANCE

Revenue (in PhP millions) Net Income (in PhP millions)

EBITDA (in PhP millions)
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2020
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2019

*Computed as operating income + 
depreciation and amortization expense

**Due to the impact of depreciation and 
amortization and financing charges of 
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NET loss

CONSTRUCTION

AIRPORT

Merchandising

landport

93

-875

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018
19%Gross Profit Margin

Construction 13% 13% 15%

Airport Operations 43% 58% 69%

Merchandising 70% 73% 76%

Terminal Operations 61% 44% -

23% 26%

21%EBITDA Margin

Construction 17% 15% 17%

Airport Operations* 17% 63% 70%

Merchandising 7% 37% 43%

Terminal Operations 83% 19% -

24% 28%

-7%Net Income Margin

Construction 1% 3% 7%

Airport Operations** -107% 14% 31%

Merchandising -8% 24% 34%

Terminal Operations 25% -1% -

6% 12%

102-48

Note: Restated to correct computational 
errors in total revenue, previously reported 
as PhP 19.882 billion in 2019.
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103-2, 103-3
When most activities in the nation stood still for most of 2020, Megawide did not stop engineering for 
a First-World Philippines. We continued to pursue our priority projects based on our long-term growth 
plans and stayed on track with our Company vision.

Stable Financial Condition (in PhP millions)

Economic Value Generated, Distributed, Retained (in PhP)
102-7, 201-1

31-DEC-2020

7,226 6,519 708 11%

29,207 28,947 272 1%

36,433 35,466 980 3%

29,929 29,437 492 2%

44,911 45,299 (387) -1%

81,344 80,764 592 1%

26,215 28,000 (1,785) -6%

34,607 34,766 (155) 0%

60,821 62,766 (1,941) -3%

20,522 17,999 2,533 14%

31-DEC-2019 Movement  % Change 

Cash & Financial Assets

Current Assets

Non-Current Assets

Non-Current Liabilities

Other Current Assets

Concession Assets

Current Liabilities

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Equity

Direct economic value generated (revenue)

Economic value retained

Direct economic value distributed

Operating costs 2,816,629,524.00

8,359,634,010.00

205,795,778.00

12,928,547.87

13,775,902,113.00

1,857,180,305.00

281,001,164.00

255,661,332.00

12,923,226,465.00

Employee wages and benefits

Payments to suppliers, other operating costs

Investments to communities (e.g. donations, CSR)

Taxes given to government

Dividends given to stockholders and
interest payment to loan providers

The ongoing pandemic presented challenges, yet uncovered new growth 
opportunities for our business segments. During the reporting year, our 
construction and landport businesses reported a combined net income of PhP 315 
million amid the COVID-19 landscape. The resiliency of these sectors underscores 
the essential nature of their operations in supporting the economy.

Our construction segment recorded revenues amounting to PhP 10.8 billion with 
several contracts undergoing renegotiations as we focused our resources on live 
projects. The combined impact of our digitalization, rightsizing exercise, and a 
conscious effort to manage expenses enhanced operational efficiencies and reduced 
costs, resulting in improved earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and 
amortization (EBITDA) margin and a net income of PhP 93 million.

Meanwhile, our landport business, Parañaque Integrated Terminal Exchange 
(PITX), continued to gain traction as revenues reached PhP 902 million, with net 
income posted at PhP 222 million. 

After the temporary shutdown during the enhanced community quarantine (ECQ) in 
March 2020, terminal foot traffic steadily increased. Foot traffic had nearly reached 
the pre-ECQ count of 60,000 passengers daily by the end of the year, registering an 
average of 58,000 passengers daily in December. 

Passenger spending likewise slowly recovered as retail establishments went out 
of their way to support and serve commuters. The food and beverage counters, 
in particular, offered a wide variety of items for takeaway or onsite consumption 
through pushcarts.

As we relentlessly pursue our long-
term objectives and vision, we secured 
new contracts in the fourth quarter 
amounting to PhP 34.6 billion. 
These contracts include Package 
1 of the North-South Commuter 
Railway (NSCR) North Phase 2, more 
popularly known as the Malolos-Clark 
Railway Project (MCRP); Aglipay 
Sewage Treatment Plant (STP); Sun 
City West Side City Project; and the 
Newport Link. 

As a result, our Company ended 2020 
with a record order book of PhP 68.4 
billion despite the pandemic. 

More importantly, we were able to 
diversify our pipeline amid the soft 
private real estate market, with a 
balanced portfolio of residential, 
commercial industrial, and 
infrastructure projects with the latter 
revealing itself to be a fast-growing 
segment. These accomplishments 
reflect our flexibility and determination 

to continue engineering a First-World 
Philippines even if most of the country 
slowed down due to the ill effects of 
COVID-19. 

Key to this achievement was our 
unique advantage of operating one of 
the largest and most advanced precast 
facilities in Southeast Asia, which—
with its inherent human distancing 
attributes, quick turnaround, and 
environmentally-friendly features—
perfectly suits the new occupational 
and health safety standards required in 
construction sites. 

This technology is further 
complemented by a wide array of 
ancillary services, ranging from 
advanced formworks systems, state-
of-the-art equipment rental, and a 
specialized transport fleet under 
a fully integrated engineering, 
procurement, and construction (EPC) 
platform. 

Essential segments recorded income

Record and diversified order book

33% Residential

52% Commercial and
Industrial

15% Infrastructure

Our Order Book

MARGINS

30%

20%

10%

-10%

0%

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018

19%

26%
23%

-7%

6%
12%

Gross profit margin Net profit margin

LIQUIDITY

1.50

1.00

0.50

0.00
FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018

Current Ratio Quick Ratio

0.85
0.96

1.301.40
1.50

0.86

PROFITABILITY

0.6

0.4

0.2

-0.2

0.0

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018

Earnings Per Share (PhP) Return to Equity

0.28

-4%

6%

0.56

10%

-0.33

LEVERAGE

Net Debt to EBITDA Gross Debt to Equity Ratio
Net Debt to Equity Ratio

15.0%

10.0%

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018

5.0%

0.0%

14.0%

8.6%
7.1%

1.9%1.7%
2.3%2.3% 2.2%2.7%

102-48

Note: Restated to correct computational 
errors in Gross Debt to Equity and Net Debt 
to Equity, previously reported as 2.6% and 
2.0%, respectively, in 2019.
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Pivot to infrastructure

As private developers felt the 
impact of the pandemic, we shifted 
gears and accelerated our pivot to 
infrastructure. Opportunities ripened 
amid the slowdown of private sector 
developments during the pandemic, with 
increased government infrastructure 
spending and the alignment of short-
term and long-term benefits.

Infrastructure had typically comprised 
less than 10% of our Company’s order 
book, but with the addition of Package 1 
of the Malolos-Clark Railway Project and 
our consortium partners, the segment 
has significantly grown its share to 15% 
in 2020.

Megawide is poised to further 
increase contributions in the public 
infrastructure space as our Company, 
together with our partners, plans to 
participate and bid for a number of 
packages in the Metro Manila Subway 
System Project and North-South 
Commuter Railway Project (South 
Line), among others. 

Our Company will continue to leverage 
our precast technology and fully-
integrated EPC platform to benefit 
from these opportunities, directly or 
indirectly, and advance our vision of 
building first-world infrastructure for 
the Philippines.

We continue to pursue our long-
term financial management strategy 
to improve leverage, manage a 
more efficient capital structure, and 
strengthen our balance sheet. 

Together with cash preservation, 
we readily took up opportunities 
by launching several capital market 
exercises in 2020 to benefit from 
the lower interest rate environment. 
These included the issuance of 
corporate notes to retire maturing 
obligations and the listing of Series 
2A and 2B Preferred Shares, which 
resulted in a lower consolidated 
debt of PhP 45.9 billion and a more 
relaxed debt-to-equity ratio of 
1.15x. Altogether, these initiatives 
improved Megawide’s gearing ratio 
and provided the Company with 
additional debt headroom to support 
its long-term strategic objectives. 

In the next two years, our Company 
is determined to sustain our financial 
management agenda to support our 
capital restructuring program and 
strengthen our financial position over 
the long run, with a more advanced 
management information system in 
place and prevalence of a favorable 
interest rate environment. 

We have been cognizant of the changes 
in the operating landscape brought 
about by the government’s response 
to the pandemic. Our Company’s 
dynamism, coupled with a diverse 
portfolio, allowed us to navigate 
and shift more quickly towards the 
opportunities that were unlocked. This 
is best seen in our pivot to infrastructure 
in the construction business and pursuit 
of more PITX-like locations in our 
transport-oriented development (TOD) 
portfolio.

We believe these segments have proven 
to be resilient and essential not just for 
the Company’s long-term sustainable 
growth but for the country’s First-
World development.

Stronger balance sheet



“Safety is Number One”
2020 MILESTONES

Megawide’s Pandemic-proof Operations

Operating amid the pandemic meant 
robust responses to exceed expectations 
for business performance in 2020. This 
year, we took to pandemic-proofing our 
operations throughout each business 
segment and prioritizing the health 
and safety of our people and host 
communities.

These efforts required using 
our capabilities and resources in 
construction to provide COVID-19 
assistance and adapt our procedures to 
ensure business continuity. This two-
pronged approach of lending a hand to 
our communities and reinforcing our 
own business to break the performance 
barriers of a challenging year is what 
leads up to our vision of a First-World 
Philippines.

Entering a New Dimension
in the Carbon Market Project

The Company received a Notice 
of Award from the Carbon Market 
Modernization Project in Cebu 
after successfully hurdling the Swiss 
Challenge in November. Megawide 
plans to expand, modernize, and re-
energize the Carbon Market as a First-
World destination within five years, 
with the district becoming a vital cog 
in Cebu’s transport and infrastructure 
network and serving as a key piece to 
the province’s continued progress and 
development.

Assisting the fight against COVID 
through First-World EQFs

203-1
As COVID-19 wards in hospitals 
around Metro Manila reached full 
capacity at the height of the pandemic, 
Megawide’s Engineering, Procurement, 
and Construction (EPC) division 
together with the Formworks unit led 
the voluntary construction of emergency 
quarantine facilities (EQFs).

Applying the open-source designs 
by William Ti of WTA Architecture 
and Design Studio, EPC provided the 
manpower and materials to ensure 
facilities were constructed according to 
Megawide standards. 

The EQFs put up at the Ospital ng 
Muntinlupa and Barangay Valencia were 
built using our innovative formworks 
systems, which require half the building 
time compared to conventional methods 
and materials. The structures can also 
be dismantled and reused for future 
projects, making them more sustainable 
and well-suited for temporary facilities.

INDOMITABLE FOR A FIRST-WORLD PHILIPPINES | 2020 MILESTONES 13
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Safety matters, even beyond the 
pandemic

We stayed on top of safety, registering 
a record of 5 million and 10 million safe 
man-hours this year for our main Precast 
Plant and Taytay 2 expansion plants, 
respectively.

Right-sizing for business 
continuity

To manage the economic repercussions 
of a prolonged pandemic, the Company 
initiated a Group-wide right-sizing 
exercise that aimed to optimize 
resources and ensure the operational 
viability of the business. This included 
the redeployment of available manpower 
to live construction projects to 
accelerate development and maximize 
man-hours.

BCP Blueprint in Motion

In response to the crisis, the Company 
activated its Business Continuity Plan 
through close collaboration with senior 
management, the Human Resources 
Department (HRD), and the Legal 
Team. A Business Effectiveness and 
Efficiency presentation was cascaded 
across each business unit to inform them 
of the rationale behind streamlining, 
as well as the criteria for organizational 
restructuring and new roles.

Upon aligning with HRD officers, 
redundant roles and duplicate functions 
were identified to provide the basis 
for right-sizing and address long-
term business continuity. Formal 
communications, support mechanisms, 
and coping measures were prepared 
and rolled out by HoldCo to aid HRD 
officers in properly informing our 
people of the basis for rationalization 
and its benefit to the bigger 
organization. 

Employee Support Services 
Beyond Employment 

404-2
Under support mechanisms, affected 
employees were given one month salary 
(net of tax) per year of service and 
allowed full use of their HMO benefits 
until the end of 2020. In addition, 
coping measures covered three levels of 
assistance: career transitioning sessions, 
work placement assistance, and a 
TESDA livelihood program. 

To assist in finding jobs outside the 
Company, those affected by the right-
sizing were given a QR code that linked 
to potential job opportunities at our 
external partners and their companies. 
In addition, a TESDA livelihood 
program was offered through a series 
of virtual training seminars on SMEs 
and entrepreneurship. Lastly, to 
guide employees during the difficult 
period, our Company invited licensed 
psychiatrists and psychologists for 
free sessions on life coaching, career 
counseling, and forward planning for 
professional advancement. 

These formed part of the post-right-
sizing program under Employee 
Support Services for displaced 
employees.

National Kidney and Transplant 
Institute (NKTI)

15 beds

Fe Del Mundo Medical Center 
(FDMMC)
15 beds

Dr. Jose N. Rodriguez Memorial 
Hospital (DJNRMH)

15 beds

Cardinal Santos Medical Center
15 beds

Ospital ng Muntinlupa
15 beds

Barangay Valencia
24 beds

BU Taytay Quarantine Facility
40 beds

Quarantine Facilities Built

PITX: Promoting safe and smart mobility

MCIA: Rising Beyond and Above Assistance

Balik Probinsya
PITX partnered with DOTr and the Overseas Workers Welfare Administration 
(OWWA) for the Balik Probinsya program – a campaign launched to assist 
repatriated overseas Filipino workers (OFWs) in returning to their respective 
home provinces. Under the venture, PITX provided bays for local government unit 
(LGU) service vehicles and buses, as well as a holding space for OFWs to process 
documents and finalize travel arrangements within Luzon upon clearance and 
completion of quarantine requirements.

Libreng Sakay for Frontliners
The landport also served as pick-up and drop-off points for recipients of DOTr’s 
Libreng Sakay Para sa Mga Frontliners program. Bus bays have been specifically set 
aside for use of DOTr buses transporting medical workers and other frontliners to 
hospitals and medical facilities within Metro Manila.

Interagency Collaboration
Apart from facilitating government-led initiatives, PITX also leveraged its wide 
ridership and high foot traffic by collaborating with various organizations and LGUs 
in the fight against COVID-19. Activities included the distribution of face masks 
and face shields, as well as information dissemination on protection against the virus 
spread and government transport guidelines through the PITX terminal channels, 
PA systems, and Facebook page.

First Airport RT-PCR Lab
203-1
In July 2020, MCIA became the first Philippine airport to have a bio-molecular 
laboratory and RT-PCR testing facility accredited by the DOH and inspected by the 
World Health Organization (WHO). The lab could initially handle 1,500 RT-PCR 
tests per day, which later expanded to its full capacity of 3,000 tests daily.

Digital Processing and Purchases for Passengers
The processing of documentary requirements for repatriates, such as completion 
of passenger immigration forms upon arrival, was done electronically rather than 
manually to promote contactless interaction. Cashless transactions were also 
encouraged for meals and last-minute shopping in commercial areas.

Suited Up for Safety and 
Compliance
The PITX adheres to COVID-19 safety 
protocols set by the Department of 
Transportation (DOTr), Department 
of Trade and Industry (DTI), and 
Department of Health (DOH). On top 
of regular sanitation and disinfection 
of terminal facilities, the landport 
requires ground crew and other staff to 
always wear PPEs. Dedicated personnel 
maintain isolation tents for handling 
suspected COVID-19 cases.

203-1
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Repatriation Assistance
The Terminal Operations team continued to provide first-class service for stranded 
passengers amid travel restrictions arising from the pandemic. As the main gateway 
Ninoy Aquino International Airport grappled with capacity constraints, MCIA 
accommodated the rerouted travelers and GMCAC personnel even provided free 
meals, bottled water, and other immediate necessities while inside the terminal.

ReStart Guidelines
At the onset of the health crisis, MCIA operated under its DOH-compliant ReStart 
guidelines for the health and safety of the workplace and airport staff. ReStart was 
designed to eliminate human contact, curb transmission, and minimize infection 
through reduced exposure and increased physical and mental resilience.

Work arrangements were also classified depending on health risks. Specifically, 
airport staff who are categorized as high-risk, such as pregnant women and senior 
citizens, are required to work from home. Floor markings for social distancing, 
thermal scanners, and hospital-grade hand soap and sanitizers are also available 
handily at various MCIA processing points and strategic locations around the 
terminals. Passengers were also required to fill out health declaration forms.

Another First-World Airport Terminal Completed
The new Passenger Terminal Building of the Clark International Airport was 
completed by Megawide in September 2020, one month ahead of the October 2020 
adjusted deadline. The construction timetable was a challenge but our commitment 
to deliver on time, with excellent design and workmanship, proved to be more 
indomitable than any health crisis.

3rd Best Managed Company
Finance Asia Best Managed 

Companies Poll 2020

Best Small Cap-Equity
Deal of the Year

Awarded during the 14th Annual 
Alpha Southeast Asia Best Deal and 

Solutions Awards 2020

Best Investor Relations
– Real Estate

International Finance
Real Estate Awards 2019

Property Guru 
2020 Philippine Real Estate 

Personality of the Year Award
Edgar Saavedra 

Chairman and CEO

Corporate 
Awards

ESG CONTRIBUTIONS

Environmental STRIDES
203-2

As part of the Plastic for Chair-ity project, the Megawide Foundation, Green 
Antz Builders, Inc., and the 8990 Urban Deca Project Site constructed two 
roofed hand-washing stations made of recycled concrete and plastic waste for
the Emilio Jacinto Elementary School.

Social STRIDES
To maintain productivity and ensure 
operational sustainability, the 
HRDs from different business units 
implemented “First-World Work 
from Home” policies and manuals 
that primarily informed employees of 
occupational safety measures to be 
practiced at home or in the workplace. 

Continued trainings through online 
sessions and virtual meets were also 
conducted to increase awareness and 
efficacy of the program. Additionally, 
10 additional laptops released for 
employees who could not bring home 
their desktop computers.

Governance STRIDES

In relation to its 2019 ACGS 
assessment, Megawide was also 
recognized by the Institute of Corporate 
Directors as one of its Golden Arrow 
Awardees (with 2 Golden Arrows) 
and the most improved PLC in the 
Philippines in terms of corporate 
governance.

In 2020, Megawide was the recipient 
of the 2019 ASEAN Asset Class for 
Publicly Listed Companies (PLCs) 
(Philippines) Award in relation to its 
2019 ASEAN Corporate Governance 
Scorecard (ACGS) assessment where it 
obtained a score of 98.47.

ASEAN Asset Class PLCs 
(Philippines) Award

Golden Arrow Awardee and Most 
Improved PLC in Terms of Corporate 

Governance

The Megawide Foundation’s flagship 
initiative, the Megawide Engineering 
Excellence Scholarship (MEES) 
program, continued to subsidize 
education for engineering and 
architecture students. In 2020, the 
Foundation witnessed another year of 
the program’s success during the annual 
Scholars Graduation that was held 
online.

100% of employees working 
from home during ECQ

9-10 online training 
sessions on digitalization

*Note: Data above is applicable to 
Megawide HoldCo

97 scholars since 2015

18 scholar-graduates
in 2020

6 MEES alumni working at 
Megawide in 2020
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102-1
Megawide Construction Corporation (“MCC,” “Megawide,” 
or “our Company”) pioneers First-World standards in 
construction methodology with forward integration to 
infrastructure development in the Philippines. For more than 
two decades, we’ve made it a point to utilize engineering 
excellence in our projects as we work towards building 
sustainable urban spaces and efficient public service facilities 
for the country.

In 1997, Megawide was established as a general construction 
business, later on expanding to Engineering, Procurement, and 
Construction (EPC), and further diversifying into transport-
oriented developments. Our Public-Private Partnership (PPP) 
with the Philippine government opened opportunities for us 
to construct world-class public infrastructure, like the Mactan-
Cebu International Airport and the Parañaque Integrated 
Terminal Exchange.

We also design and construct projects from low- to high-rise 
condominiums, horizontal housing, office buildings, hotels, and 
casinos for clients, such as Megaworld Corporation, Double 
Dragon Properties, 8990 Holdings, Rockwell Land, Phirst Park 
Homes, and Araneta Properties, among others.

Vision
We will be a

First-World Philippines.

Mission
We will be

at the forefront of building 
a First-World Philippines 

through engineering 
excellence and innovation.

THE COMPANY
ABOUT
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102-2

Megawide became a household name and excelled in the industry with innovative 
engineering methods to bring its vision to fruition. Our consistently growing order 
book and diverse portfolio of assets are testaments to our leading technologies, 
innovative solutions, and internationally recognized best practices. 

In addition, our strategic business units (BUs) also deliver excellent and 
complementary services through environment-friendly techniques and efficient 
methodologies.

102-16

Excellence
We consistently try to do well in 
whatever task we take on, great 
or small, because we owe it to 
ourselves to try and become better 
in what we do.

Innovation
We do not fear change but 
embrace it, taking the chance 
to reinvent ourselves and our 
industry. We keep ourselves 
open to new ideas and fresh 
perspectives and look for better 
ways to deliver output.

Teamwork
We are all on the same team, 
driven by the same purpose. 
We help fuel each other’s ideas, 
support each other’s efforts, 
and trust each other instead of 
competing against one another.

Integrity
We treat our colleagues and 
partners with honesty and respect 
as we strive to be good people 
guided by our own conscience and 
malasakit.

Malasakit
We are moved to action by the 
people and ideals that we care 
deeply about, such as our families, 
colleagues, and our desire for a 
better life for ourselves and our 
fellow Filipinos.

Community
Our actions affect the 
communities that we work with, 
and so we partner with them to 
ensure that we can leave lasting 
positive social impact through our 
projects.

VALUES
What does it take to make a
First-World Philippines?

Precast
1 Precast Plant in Taytay, Rizal

Our precast technology aids us in 
attaining greater standardization, 
higher quality, and design 
customization, while shortening 
construction time tables and 
cutting back on long-term costs.

Formworks
Proprietary German formworks 
systems

Our reusable climbing platforms, 
scaffolding, shoring, temporary 
facilities, and forming technology 
go hand-in-hand with mature safety 
concepts that build on efficiency, 
productivity, and safety and fall 
protection.

Batching Plant
Multiple mobile facilities

Our concrete batching plants allow 
us to design and tailor fit our own 
concrete mixes. The plants are 
capable of producing consistently 
high strength concrete and mixes 
that withstand chloride attack and 
sulfate.

Construction Equipment, 
Logistics, and Services 
(C.E.L.S.)
Fleet of world-class construction 
machinery

Our fleet of advanced construction 
machinery, vertical equipment, 
and groundworks include tower 
cranes, earth-moving vehicles, 
specialized material handling, and 
concrete delivery equipment.

Our Brand Portfolio
102-2, 102-3, 102-4, 102-6, 102-7

Engineering, Procurement, 
Construction

• Residential
• Industrial
• Office and Commercial
• Hotels and Casinos
• Mixed-use developments
• Affordable housing
• Socialized housing 
• Airport Terminal
• Land Transport Facility
• Public School Buildings
• Emergency Quarantine 
     Facilities

Construction work, renovation 
and repairs, and other 
improvements and developments 
of real estate, plants, roads, 
bridges, piers, railroads, 
waterworks, and other structures 
and infrastructure.

Activities

Megawide Head Office, 20 
N. Domingo Street, Barangay 
Valencia, Quezon City

Location

Parañaque Integrated 
Terminal Exchange (PITX)

A 35-year Concession 
Agreement under the 
government’s PPP program, 
awarded in 2015.

Operations and maintenance 
of a multi-modal transport 
terminal, and leasing of 
commercial properties 
within the landport complex.

1 Kennedy Road, Brgy. 
Tambo, Parañaque City

Mactan-Cebu 
International Airport 
(MCIA) Terminal 1 and 2 

A 25-year Concession 
Agreement under the 
government’s PPP 
program, awarded in 
2014.

Construction, renovations 
and rehabilitation, 
operations and 
maintenance, including 
leasing of commercial 
assets and operations of 
allied businesses within 
the airport facility.

Lapu-Lapu Airport Road, 
Lapu-Lapu City, Cebu

Transport-Oriented 
Development

Airport 
Infrastructure

20 MEGAWIDE 2020 ANNUAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT



• Philippine Constructors Association, Inc. (PCA) 
• Financial Executives Institute of the Philippines (Finex)
• Makati Business Club
• Philippine Chamber of Commerce and Industry
• Cebu Chamber of Commerce and Industry (CCCI)
• Mandaue Chamber of Commerce and Industry (MCCI)
• Federation of Philippine Industries
• Philippine Institute of Civil Engineers
• Association of Structural Engineers of the Philippines
• Association of Carriers and Equipment Lessors (ACEL)
• Philippine Institute for Supply Management (PISM)

102-12, 102-13

• Philippine Government through the Public-Private
     Partnership (PPP) Program
• National Housing Authority
• GMR Infrastructure (Singapore) Pte. Limited (GISPL)
• GMR Infrastructure Limited (GIL)
• Integrated Design Associates (IDA)
• Local Government of the City of Cebu 
• Suez International 
• Hyundai Engineering and Construction Co., Ltd. 
• Dong-Ah Geological Engineering Company Ltd.

• Quadruple A (AAAA) Platinum contractor licensed
by the Philippine Contractors Accreditation Board (PCAB)
 
• ISO 14001:2004 Environmental Management System (EMS)

• ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management System (QMS)

• OHSAS 18001:2007 Occupational Health & Safety
     Management System

• Accreditation of Indigenous Technologies for Housing (AITECH)
     for Pre-fabricated Concrete Products (Building Components)

• Philippine Government Electronic Procurement System -
     Platinum Membership (PhilGEPS)

Membership of Associations &
External Initiatives

Strategic Partners

Licenses & Certifications
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Steadfast Practices
in Sustainability

Megawide believes it can improve its 
sustainability performance by setting 
higher standards and targets year 
after year. Our targets are anchored 
on having better recognition of how 
operations affect the environment 
and society, leading us to find new 
ways to reduce the negative impacts.  
Through each action, we further 
build on our relationships with our 
stakeholders.

Our Blueprint for
Sustainable Growth

By practicing sustainability in everyday 
operations, Megawide circles back to the 
qualities that define our Company and 
its vision of a First-World Philippines. 

Our sustainability framework visualizes 
how we translate our Company values 
to action through our environmental 
stewardship goals, social responsibility 
agenda, and corporate governance 
initiatives.

In turn, we identify our areas for 
improvement in our sustainable 
community development, measurable 
stakeholder relations, and applied 
business ethics. On the other hand, 
our corporate social responsibility 
(CSR) policy statement defines our 
commitment to advancing national 
development through our environmental 
conservation, community interactions, 
and stakeholder management initiatives.

What
We Do

How We Do It

What We Improve

EXCELLENCE INNOVATION TEAMWORK

Environmental Stewardship Social Responsibility Good Governance

COMMUNITY INTEGRITY MALASAKIT

We will be at the forefront of building a
First-World Philippines through engineering
excellence and innovation

We employ first-world
innovations to minimize

our impact on the
environment

Sustainable cities &
communities

Environmental conservation
Responsible production

Community development
Accessible & affordable

education
Accessible & affordable

healthcare

Business ethics
Employee wellbeing
Healthy & safe work

environment

We find first-world
solutions to uplift
underprivileged

communities

We demonstrate
first-world concern

toward our suppliers
and employees

“In line with its vision to engineer a First-World Philippines, Megawide 
Construction Corporation commits to do its utmost to exemplify First-World 
corporate social responsibility. Megawide shall build a corporate culture of 
excellence, innovation, integrity, and teamwork wherein each employee will have a 
role to play in helping Megawide:

• Achieve the status of an outstanding steward of the environment
• Give back to its host communities; and
• Demonstrate malasakit towards its employees, partners, suppliers, and clients.”

We follow an organized structure and a chain of responsibility for enacting our 
sustainability strategy. With the Company’s President and CEO at the helm of 
our initiatives, the Megawide Sustainability Office ensures that the concerned 
committees are given the technical support and direction they need to carry out 
sustainability practices throughout the different BUs.

Currently, the Sustainability Office composition is as follows:
a. Megawide Construction Corporation: VP, Total Quality Management
b. Megawide Construction Corporation: AVP, Investor Relations
c. Megawide Foundation: CSR & Sustainability Manager
d. Megawide Foundation: Program Officer

CSR POLICY STATEMENT:

Megawide Sustainability Structure

High-Level Responsibility

Megawide President
and CEO

Steering Committee

Working Committee

• Lead the Company’s sustainability initiative
• Provide management directive and needed support

• Determine sustainability initiatives and strategies to be
     implemented
• Support the Steering Committee and Working Committee
     in providing technical expertise
• Provide technical and financial support in implementing
     programs

• Review and assess the targets and initiatives for the
     respective business units
• Support the Working Committee in identifying BU/ 
     department level strategies

• Implement programs in their respective business units
     and departments
• Coordinate and work closely with the Steering Committee

Megawide President and CEO

Steering Committee Working Committee

102-32, 103-3
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Our CSR Roadmap lays out our long-term vision for our society and reports on the 
contributions made by the different departments annually across the Megawide 
Group to ensure that the organization remains on track with its goals and objectives: 

• The Board and Management review the alignment of policies and operations 
     with CSR, while the latter ensures the compliance of the BUs to internal and 
     external regulations.
• The BUs, as the “CSR Champions,” execute their respective services while 
     being directly involved in sustainability reporting and community 
     engagement. 
• The Megawide Foundation is a unit responsible for the Company’s CSR
     programs that address continuous education, environment, and employee 
     well-being.

CSR Roadmap

Management

SEC Reporting CSR Policies Corporate
Governance CSR Awards

CSR Programs
and Champions

Sustainability
Report CSR Budget CSR Working

Committee
Employee

Engagement

CSR Reporting Awareness
Trainings

Community
Stakeholder
Engagement

CSR Strategic
Plans

Business Units

Engineering
Scholarships

Vocational
Training

Eco-Brick
Projects

Plastic Neutral
Initiatives

Foundation

The Megawide 
Foundation

Mission
We engineer a better future for underprivileged 
Filipinos by providing high-quality technical 
education and eco-friendly community-building 
programs.

Vision
To be the innovator in providing underserved 
Filipino communities with access to First-World 
solutions and services.

103-1
The Megawide Foundation has been responding to the needs 
of the Company’s local communities since 2012. It serves as 
Megawide’s CSR arm, tapping into the Company’s available 
First-World solutions, such as technical training and sustainable 
infrastructure, to support and achieve the organization’s goal of 
building more resilient communities.
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103-2, 203-2
In response to the events of 2020, the Megawide Foundation reinforced its initiatives 
to address the immediate needs of communities in health and safety, alongside its 
longstanding and sustaining programs.

These projects continue to align with the Foundation’s program pillars and contribute 
to the United Nations’ Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs).

Initiatives in 2020
Identifying Topics that Matter

High-Quality Technical Education

Licenses

Community Building

Memberships and Affiliations

Strategic Partnerships

• Megawide Engineering Excellence
• Scholarship Program
• Megawide - SKILLS Builder Program

• Philippine Council for NGO 
   Certification
• Department of Social Welfare and 
   Development (DSWD)
• Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR)

• Medical missions
• Disaster Response

• Philippine Business for Social Progress 
   (PBSP)
• League of Corporate Foundations

• School for Knowledge in Industrial 
     Labor, Leadership, and Service (SKILLS)
• Green Antz Builders, Inc.
• World Surgical Foundation Philippines
• Mesa ni Misis

102-40, 102-42, 102-43, 102-44

To determine these topics, Megawide conducted a materiality assessment in 2018, which included an 
engagement process with internal and external stakeholders to understand their issues and concerns. 

For 2020, the Company did a review of stakeholder concerns with its business units to understand the specific 
issues raised during the period covered.

Megawide abides by the sustainability reporting 
requirements of the Security and Exchange 
Commission (SEC), as well as the reporting 
principles of the GRI Standards. The Company 
reports on critical topics that are most relevant to 
the business and its stakeholders. 

Megawide rolled out its Sustainability 
Policy Framework in 2018 anchored 
on three pillars: Environmental 
Stewardship, Good Governance, and 
Social Responsibility. The Company’s 
strategic business units take guidance 
and direction from this policy and align 
their projects and programs with these 
sustainability goals.

Stakeholder Engagement

Materiality and Stakeholder Engagement

Stakeholder Engagement Channels Concerns in 2020

Employees

FMD Staff

Facebook Live, Google Meet, 
Text Messages, MS Teams, Email, 
Townhall Meeting, Call, Viber

Viber, Cellphone, Emails, 
Memorandums

BATCHING PLANT: Safety due to 
COVID-19, Security of tenure (fear 
of job loss and implementation of 
reduced workdays), Transportation 
for required employees to work, 
Accommodation for Stay-in 
employees

CELS: No salary increase, Reduced 
OT hours, Reduced working 
schedule for some employees

EPC-HSE: Procurement, BU

FORMWORK BUSINESS UNIT 
GRP:
No overtime allowed

PITX FACILITIES: Submission 
of material request, Payment/
collection issues, Complete and 
specified material request 

PRECAST: COVID-19 protocols on 
entry and exit 

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT: 
COVID-19

Work restrictions during COVID 
19, Limited communication 
channels, Limited transportation 
during partial work restrictions

MCC Employees Memorandums, Emails Work restrictions during COVID 
19, Limited communication 
channels, Limited transportation 
during partial work restrictions



30 MEGAWIDE 2020 ANNUAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT INDOMITABLE FOR A FIRST-WORLD PHILIPPINES | STEADFAST PRACTICES IN SUSTAINABILITY 31

Megawide’s management team used this review as input into its discussion to update the list 
of material topics for this year’s report. The team also based its materiality assessment on the 
degree of impact that the topics had on both the business and its stakeholders, which is regularly 
assessed based on its degree of impact on both the business and its stakeholders. Material topics 
are those found to be at high or medium levels of criticality.

102-46, 102-47
Material Topics

Stakeholder Engagement Channels Concerns in 2020

Customers

Communities

Contractors

Monthly C-Sat Survey, Meetings, 
Coordination with Bus Operators, 
Viber, Phone, Emails

Call, Text, Meetings, Coordination 
with Chapel Caretaker, Mayor’s 
Office of Lapu-Lapu City

Meeting, Verbal/Virtual 
Negotiations

BATCHING PLANT: Timeliness

FORMWORK BUSINESS UNIT 
GRP: Prices

PITX FACILITIES: Operational 
challenges for provincial operations 
to adapt to the new normal 
guidelines

PRECAST: Planning misalignment 

FACILITIES MANAGEMENT: 
COVID-19

BATCHING PLANT: Denial of 
neighbors in consent in our project

CORPORATE AFFAIRS & 
GMAC-SQE: Community chapel 
reconstruction, Typhoon Ulysses

CELS: Delayed payment

FORMWORK BUSINESS UNIT 
GRP: Delayed payment

PRECAST: Delayed payment 

Local Barangays

Investors

Meeting, Communication with 
Local Barangay Chief, Call

Coordination with Bus Operators

BATCHING PLANT: Delay issuance 
of Barangay Permit due to their 
request of desktop as our donation

CORPORATE AFFAIRS & GMAC-
SQE: Affected by suspected storm 
surge during the pandemic

EPC-HSE: Brgy. Valencia

PITX FACILITIES: Lack of staging 
area prior to resumption while 
maintaining the flow of provincial 
operations

Regulatory Bodies Online Application, Personal 
Interaction, Meetings, Email, Call, 
Communication with DENR and 
DOLE representatives, Letters and 
Memorandums

BATCHING PLANT: Slow 
processing of govt related permits 
due to COVID-19, Consolidated 
FS and other BIR related concerns 
affecting retirement and renewal of 
plans

EPC-HSE: LLDA, DENR, DOLE

GMAC-SQE: DENR (Proper 
disposal of hazardous/solid wastes 
related to COVID-19), DOLE 
(Implementation of COVID-19 
regulations)

PITX-HSE AND FACILITIES: 
Compliance to regulatory 
requirements

Criticality Material Topic Relevant GRI Standard Contribution to SDGs

HIGH

GRI 403: Occupational Health 
and Safety

GRI 416: Customer Health
and Safety

GRI 403: Occupational Health 
and Safety

GRI 401: Employment

GRI 201: Economic 
Performance

GRI 102-40 to 102-44: 
Stakeholder Engagement

GRI 102-2: Activities, brands, 
products, and services

GRI 403: Occupational Health 
and Safety

GRI 206: Anti-corruption

GRI 307: Environmental 
Compliance 

GRI 419: Socioeconomic 
Compliance

GRI 205: Anti-corruption

GRI 416: Customer Health
and Safety

GRI 404: Trainings

Pandemic

Employee Welfare
and Well-being

Shareholder Confidence

Innovation in Operations/
Products & Services

Health and Safety

Ethical Business 
Operations

Corruption/Fraud

Customer Satisfaction

Employee Training
and Competency

SDG 3: Good Health and
Well-being

SDG 8: Decent Work
and Economic Growth

SDG 3: Good Health and
Well-being

SDG 8: Decent Work
and Economic Growth

SDG 16: Peace, Justice, and 
Strong Institutions

SDG 9:  Industry, Innovation, 
and Infrastructure

SDG 3: Good Health and
Well-being

SDG 8: Decent Work and 
Economic Growth

SDG 16: Peace, Justice, and 
Strong Institutions 

SDG 16: Peace, Justice, and 
Strong Institutions

SDG 16: Peace, Justice, and 
Strong Institutions 

SDG 8: Decent Work and 
Economic Growth

102-40, 102-42, 102-44
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MEDIUM

GRI 102-2: Activities, brands, 
products, and services

GRI 307: Environmental 
Compliance

GRI 308: Supplier 
Environmental Assessment  

GRI 414: Supplier Social 
Assessment

GRI 416: Customer Health 
and Safety

GRI 419: Socioeconomic 
Compliance

GRI 408: Child Labor

GRI 409: Forced or 
Compulsory Labor

GRI 411: Rights of Indigenous 
Peoples

GRI 412: Human Rights 
Assessment

GRI 304: Biodiversity

GRI 306: Effluents and Waste

GRI 303: Water and Effluents

GRI 306: Effluents and Waste

GRI 201: Economic 
Performance

GRI 102-9: Supply chain

GRI 204: Procurement 
Practices

GRI 418: Customer Privacy

GRI 401: Employment 

GRI 402: Labor/Management 
Relations

GRI 203: Indirect Economic 
Impacts

GRI 413: Local Communities

GRI 302: Energy

GRI 305: Emissions

GRI 305: Emissions

Product Quality and 
Responsibility

Human Rights (Child 
Labor/Forced Labor/
Discrimination)

Impact on Biodiversity

Waste Disposal and 
Recycling

Water Consumption

Financial Sustainability/
Profitability

Local Sourcing/
Procurement

Information Security/
Data Privacy

Employee Turnover, 
Attrition, and Retention

Impact on Community/
Contribution to Society

Energy Management/
Efficiency

GHG Emissions/Climate 
Change

SDG 12: Responsible 
Consumption and Production 

SDG 16: Peace, Justice and 
Strong Institutions

SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities

SDG 13: Climate Action

SDG 14: Life Below Water

SDG 15: Life on Land

SDG 11: Sustainable Cities 
and Communities

SDG 12: Responsible 
Consumption and Production

SDG 6: Clean Water and 
Sanitation

SDG 1: No Poverty

SDG 8: Decent Work and 
Economic Growth

SDG 12: Responsible 
Consumption and Production

SDG 16: Peace, Justice, and 
Strong Institutions

SDG 1: No Poverty

SDG 8: Decent Work and 
Economic Growth

SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities

SDG 7: Affordable and Clean 
Energy

SDG 13: Climate Action

102-47



CHAIRMAN AND

REPORT
PRESIDENT’S

“
In 2020,

we refused to
languish and
instead kept
resolute as

we laid a
solid foundation

for recovery.

”

Even as the COVID-19 pandemic slowed down the global economy,
Megawide advanced its vision of Engineering a First-World Philippines.
We were relentless but never reckless as we pursued the opportunities that opened
and prudently managed our businesses and operations in 2020. 

We set our eyes on success, strategically moving forward in the wake of the pandemic.
We remain cognizant that we serve in industries that are essential in the pursuit of faster economic recovery.
Our agility as an organization will get us to where we want to be and enable us to maneuver through
the challenges along the way.

The entire construction industry stalled 
during the reporting year, with many 
suspending their operations either 
due to lockdown provisions, deferred 
contracts, or government mandates. 
Megawide wasn’t spared from this, yet 
we forged ahead. 

The Company, after all, was established 
amid the Asian Financial Crisis of 1997. 
We are a young company—but our 
unique history has allowed us to build an 
attitude that refuses to buckle down in 
the face of adversity. These experiences 
allowed us to quickly adapt to the 
pandemic and shift our focus as we 
completed priority projects and secured 
new ones.

We finished another First-World 
passenger terminal building at the Clark 
International Airport in September 
2020, one month ahead of the October 
2020 deadline. We also entered a new 
dimension in our transport-oriented 
developments, receiving the Notice 
of Award for the Carbon Market 
Redevelopment Project in Cebu 
after successfully hurdling the Swiss 
Challenge in November. 

102-14
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The Essentials
Construction and Transportation

In addition, we secured fresh contracts, which included 
the Suncity West Side City and the Newport Link 
in the commercial segment, and the Aglipay Sewage 
Treatment Plant, and the Malolos-Clark Railway Project 
(MCRP) in the infrastructure space. Government 
infrastructure projects remained a priority to jumpstart 
the economy and we steered towards this direction, 
looking forward to including more landmark projects in 
our pipeline, such as the Metro Manila Subway System 
and the North-South Commuter Railway-South Line. 

Operationally, we ramped up our site works on 
live projects with our available resources while 
renegotiating contracts with other clients. Digitization 
and manpower optimization allowed us to sustain 
an upward trajectory in quarterly revenues from the 
second quarter—apart from recording an improved 
EBITDA margin—which helped deliver a positive 
bottom line in 2020.
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Meanwhile, the Parañaque Integrated Terminal Exchange (PITX), our landport, 
temporarily suspended operations during the nationwide lockdown in March, 
but continued as a convergence point for OFWs and the medical frontliners’ 
free transportation service arranged by the government. Commercial operations 
immediately resumed as soon as quarantine policies relaxed in June. 

We believe that PITX is essential to the country’s public transport system and, 
with proper protocols in place, we continue to ferry our medical and economic 
frontliners to and from their destinations. Passenger traffic managed to bounce 
back almost immediately after reopening and has continued to trend towards pre-
pandemic levels.

The pandemic may have pushed many to operate at a minimum and brought long-
established corporations to their knees, but we were determined to build forward. 
Megawide recorded its highest order book in Company history at PhP 68.4 billion 
amid the pandemic. Beyond this achievement, we looked inward and found new ways 
to enhance our internal systems and processes. 

While efficiency and automation have been longstanding Company qualities, we saw 
this year’s remote work set-up as an opportunity to involve the whole organization in 
another digitalization journey. We moved away from old collaboration platforms and 
built on applications that would streamline processes for the Company, our clients, 
and other important stakeholders.

We refused to leave our communities behind, as well. A number of projects during 
2020 were devoted to assisting local governments and those affected by crises. In 
this light, we leveraged our construction capabilities to answer the call for additional 
quarantine facilities and food assistance for victims of natural disasters and the 
enduring health crisis.

Despite all these wins, we avoid taking risks that could hinder us from walking our 
talk. We calculate every decision while balancing the right amount of pragmatism 
and progressiveness.

Our strategy has always been to create our own opportunities when possible, as 
evident in our planning and execution during the strict community quarantine. We 
do, however, recognize that the business environment remains unpredictable. The 
uncertainties surrounding how the ongoing health crisis will end and developments 
related to it will guide our next move.

For now, we won’t lose sight of our goal. More than ever, we’ve shown that our 
progress towards a First-World Philippines isn’t just a move towards innovative 
construction, essential infrastructure, and effective stakeholder management. We 
aspire for a First-World quality of life for Filipinos that is backed by stronger ESG 
initiatives, closer cooperation within the organization, and greater collaboration 
across sectors – regardless of the odds. 

Indomitable -- that’s how we are and who we will always be. As we rise to the top 
and remain unyielding through each challenge, we want to bring this country on an 
upward journey with us. 

Thank you very much for placing your trust in our Company. For Megawide, the 
sky’s the limit. Let us see each other at the top.

The global pandemic, however, had a significant effect on 
our airport operations. Routine travel arrangements were 
canceled and national borders were closed to avoid the spread 
of the virus, resulting in low passenger volumes. Despite the 
slowdown of commercial flights, we responded to the challenge 
of assisting Filipinos returning to the country time and time 
again. To facilitate the safe repatriation of our fellow Filipinos 
and foreign nationals, we quickly adopted and employed 
COVID-19 travel measures at the Mactan-Cebu International 
Airport (MCIA). 

We constructed and operated a Department of Health (DOH)-
accredited bio-molecular laboratory inside MCIA to perform 
and release COVID-19 test results within 24 hours or less. 
Initial NAIA-bound passengers, who required prompt health 
clearance, were rerouted to and accommodated at our airport. 

With the implementation of strict health and safety protocols, 
we received the Airports Council International-Airports Health 
Accreditation (ACI-AHA), becoming one of the first airports in 
the country to be recognized for global health and safety travel 
standards. To support our affected commercial partners, we 
likewise automated our retail and transactional processes to 
promote and encourage cashless purchases and generate sales.

Digitization and manpower optimization allowed us to sustain an 
upward trajectory in quarterly revenues from the second quarter—
apart from recording an improved EBITDA margin—which helped 
deliver a positive bottom line in 2020.

“
”

The pandemic may have pushed many to operate at a minimum and 
brought long-established corporations to their knees, but we were 
determined to power forward. Megawide recorded its highest order 
book in Company history at PhP 68.4 billion amid the pandemic.

“
”

Responding to safe travel

Getting ahead of the game

Onto the next

Chairman, CEO, and President

102-14
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Age 46; Filipino citizen; co-founder of the Company; first elected Director of Megawide on 
28 July 2004; Chairman of the Board since 18 September 2017; Chairman of the Executive 
Committee; and Member of the Board Risk Oversight Committee.

Mr. Saavedra’s engineering experience spans over twenty (20) years. He received his 
Bachelor’s degree in Engineering from De La Salle University. After obtaining his license as 
a Civil Engineer, he pursued special studies in Foundation Formworks in Germany, through 
the Philippine Institute of Civil Engineers.

Aside from serving as the Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President of 
the Company, he is also the Chairman of the Board of MWM Terminals, Inc. (“MWMTI”), 
Megawide Terminals, Inc. (“MTI”), Altria East Land Inc. (“Altria”), PH1 World Developers, 
Inc. (“PH1”), Cebu2World Development, Inc. (“Cebu2World”), Citicore Infrastructure 
Holdings, Inc. (“CIHI”), Citicore-Megawide Consortium, Inc. (“CMCI”), Megawide Land, 
Inc. (“MLI”), and Wide-Horizons Inc. (Wide-Horizons). Moreover, he is a Director and 
President of Citicore Holdings Investment Inc. (“Citicore”), a Trustee and Vice President 
of Megawide Corporate Foundation, Inc. (“MCFI”), and a Director of GMR MEGAWIDE 
Cebu Airport Corporation (“GMCAC”), and GlobeMerchants, Inc. (“GMI”).

Mr. Saavedra is not a Director in other reporting companies.

Edgar B. Saavedra
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, and President

Members of
the Board
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Age 46; Filipino citizen; first elected Director of 
Megawide on 18 September 2017; subsequently 
elected as Executive Director, Infrastructure 
Development on 06 November 2020; Vice 
Chairman of the Executive Committee; and 
Member of the Governance, Nominations, and 
Compensation Committee.

Mr. Ferrer obtained his degree in Industrial 
Design from De La Salle University in 1996.

Mr. Ferrer has acted as Megawide’s Chief 
Corporate Affairs and Branding Officer since 
2011. In 2020, he was appointed as the 
Company’s Executive Director, Infrastructure 
Development. He is the Chairman of the Board 
of Trustees and President of MCFI and the Vice 
Chairman of the Board of PH1. He is also a 
Director and President of GMCAC, MWMTI, 
MTI, Altria, Cebu2World, and Wide-Horizons. 
He is a Director of Citicore, MLI, and GMI. 
He previously served as a Managing Director at 
MagicWorx Licensing Inc. 

Mr. Ferrer is not a Director in other reporting 
companies.

Age 85; Filipino citizen; first elected 
Independent Director of Megawide on 18 
September 2017; Chairman of the Governance, 
Nominations, and Compensation Committee; 
and Member of the Finance Committee, Board 
Risk Oversight Committee, and Audit and 
Compliance Committee.

Mr. Davide obtained his Bachelor of Laws from 
the University of the Philippines.

Mr. Davide was the former permanent 
Representative of the Republic of the Philippines 
to the United Nations in New York from February 
2007 to April 2010. He also served as Chief 
Justice of the Supreme Court of the Philippines 
from November 1998 to December 2005. Mr. 
Davide was also the Commissioner of the 1986 
Constitutional Commission.

He is currently an Independent Director and 
Vice Chairman of the Manila Bulletin Publishing 
Corporation, an Independent Director of the 
Philippine Trust Company, and a Director 
and Vice Chairman of KOMPASS Credit and 
Financing Corporation. Lastly, Mr. Davide is 
Chairman of the Board of Trustees of Heart of 
Francis Foundation, Inc. and a Trustee of the 
University of San Carlos in Cebu City.

Age 43; Filipino citizen; first elected Director 
of Megawide on 16 September 2016; Vice 
Chairman of the Finance Committee; and 
Member of the Executive Committee and Audit 
and Compliance Committee.

Mr. Tan holds a degree in Business 
Administration from the Philippine School of 
Business Administration.

Mr. Tan serves as a Director and President of 
CIHI and CMCI. He is also a Director, Vice 
President, and Treasurer of Citicore, a Director 
and Treasurer of MTI and MLI, and a Director of 
Megawide World Citi Consortium, Inc.

Mr. Tan is not a Director in other reporting 
companies.

Age 74; Filipino citizen; first elected 
Independent Director of Megawide on 02 July 
2018; Chairman of the Audit and Compliance 
Committee; Vice Chairman of the Board Risk 
Oversight Committee; and Member of the 
Governance, Nominations, and Compensation 
Committee and Finance Committee.

Mr. Vivas serves as an Independent Trustee of 
MCFI. He is also an Independent Director of 
Keppel Philippines Holdings, Inc. since June 
2005 and is currently its Lead Independent 
Director and Chairman of its Audit and Risk 
Management Committee. Furthermore, he is an 
Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit 
and Risk Management Committee of Keppel 
Philippines Marine, Inc. and an Independent 
Director and member of the Audit Committee 
of Keppel Philippines Properties, Inc. Lastly, 
he is an Independent Director of Republic 
Glass Holdings Corporation, Chairman of its 
Governance, Nomination, and Remuneration 
Committee, and member of its Audit and Risk 
Management Committee.

He was a Risk Consulting Partner and Assurance 
Business Advisory Partner of SGV & Co. until 
his retirement in 2001. Mr. Vivas obtained his 
Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration 
(Cum Laude) from the University of the East. 
He also obtained a Master’s Degree in Business 
Management from the Asian Institute of 
Management (as a scholar of SGV & Co.). He 
is also a graduate of the Company Directors’ 
Course from the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors (as a scholar of the Institute of 
Corporate Directors). Mr. Vivas is a Certified 
Public Accountant and has over fifty (50) years 
of experience in the areas of audit, finance, 
enterprise risk management, and corporate 
governance.

Age 76; Filipino citizen; first elected 
Independent Director of Megawide
on July 19, 2010; Lead Independent Director; 
Chairman of the Finance Committee; Vice 
Chairman of the Audit and Compliance 
Committee; and Member of the Governance, 
Nominations and Compensation Committee and 
Risk Oversight Committee.

Mr. Coronel obtained his Bachelor of Arts 
degree, Major in Economics from the Ateneo de 
Manila University.

Mr. Coronel is the Managing Director of BAP 
Credit Bureau Inc., an Advisor of the Philippine 
Clearing House Corporation, the Treasurer of 
PDS Holdings, and a Consultant of the Bankers 
Association of the Philippines. He also serves 
as an Executive Director of RBB Micro Finance 
Foundation, an Independent Director of DBP-
Daiwa Securities and SMBC Philippines, Inc., 
and a Non-Executive Director of Philippine 
National Bank since May 2013.

Mr. Coronel served as Project Director of 
Small & Medium Ents. Credit Program of the 
Philippine Business for Social Progress; a 
Consultant of the Land Bank of the Philippines; 
a Director of Software Ventures International 
Corporation; a Director at the Philippine Dealing 
System, Philippine Depository & Trust Corp., 
and Philippine Clearing House Corporation; and 
a Trustee/Treasurer and Member of the Capital 
Market Development Council Institute.

Age 72; Filipino citizen; first elected 
Independent Director of Megawide on 09 
October 2018; Chairman of the Board Risk 
Oversight Committee; Vice Chairman of the 
Governance, Nominations and Compensation 
Committee; and Member of the Audit and 
Compliance Committee and Finance Committee.

Mr. Pascual is the Lead Independent Director of 
SM Investments Corporation and an Independent 
Director of Concepcion Industrial Corporation, 
Asiabest Group International Inc., and Enderun 
Colleges, Inc. He is also the Chairman of 
Arkstone Group, Inc.

In 2018 and 2019, Mr. Pascual was the President 
and Chief Executive Officer of the Institute 
of Corporate Directors. He is now a Trustee 
of the Institute of Corporate Directors, the 
Institute for Solidarity in Asia, University of the 
Philippines (“UP”) Foundation, Inc., and the 
FINEX Academy. From 2011 to 2017, he led 
the UP System as President and Board Co-Chair. 
Before UP, Mr. Pascual worked at the Asian 
Development Bank (“ADB”) for nineteen (19) 
years in such positions as Director for Private 
Sector Operations, Director for Infrastructure 
Finance, and Advisor for Public-Private 
Partnership (Infrastructure Development). At 
ADB, he had postings in the Philippines, India, 
and Indonesia, and represented ADB on the 
board of its investee companies in China, India, 
and Philippines. Earlier on, Mr. Pascual held 
executive positions in investment houses, such 
as, First Metro Investment Corporation, and 
was a finance professor at the Asian Institute 
of Management. He finished MBA and BS 
Chemistry (Cum Laude) at UP.

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer
Executive Director, Infrastructure 
Development and Chief Corporate Affairs 
and Branding Officer

Hilario G. Davide, Jr.
Independent Director

Oliver Y. Tan
Director

Celso P. Vivas
Independent Director

Leonilo G. Coronel
Independent Director

Alfredo E. Pascual
Independent Director
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KEY OFFICERS
Corporate Office

Edgar B. Saavedra

Jaime Raphael C. Feliciano

Anthony Leonard G. Topacio

Christopher A. Nadayag

Charlotte Y. King

Kama Neson Ganeson

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer

Joan Cosico

Maria Belinda B. Morales

Jennifer C. Lee

Zheena E. Ocampo

Ramon H. Diaz

Rogelio Ramos, Jr.

Raymund Jay S. Gomez

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive 
Officer, and President

Chief Business Development Officer 

Corporate Secretary, Assistant 
Compliance Officer, and Corporate 

Information Officer

Treasurer and Deputy Chief Financial 
Officer

Assistant Corporate Secretary

Acting Chief Risk Officer and Head of Total 
Quality Management

Executive Director, Infrastructure 
Development and Chief Corporate Affairs 

and Branding Officer

Head Investor Relations

Chief Human Resources Officer

Assistant Corporate Secretary

Acting Chief Audit Executive

Group Chief Financial Officer

Branding Head

Chief Legal Officer, Compliance Officer, 
and Data Protection Officer
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ERIC GREGOR G. TAN

Mohit Malhi

Mia Grace Paula S. Cortez

Manuel Ongjungco

Robert Jason L. Torres

Rolando S. Bondoy

Jez G. Dela Cruz
Assistant Vice President
– BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Chief Commercial Officer

Assistant Vice President
– Comptrollership and
   Group Comptroller

Assistant Vice President
– Human Resources Operations

Assistant Vice President
– Corporate Affairs

Assistant Vice President
– Investor Relations

Assistant Vice President
– Corporate Finance and

   Financial Planning

KEY OFFICERS
Construction and

Business Units

Frederick T. Tan

Sean Edward Farrell

James Campbell

Markus Hennig

Neil Sharpe

Bram Van Olffen

Lydwena R. Eco

Chief Operating Officer

Vice President
– Commercial and Contracts

Vice President
– BU Cebu Operations

Executive Vice President
– Business Units Group

Vice President
– Formworks

Vice President
– Engineering

Operations Director
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Jose Voltaire M. Dela Rosa

Rexford D. Ilagan

Jouie V. Lee Oliver

Reynaldo P. Rodrin

Romeo P. Furigay Emerson C. Jonson

Bonnie Bryan L. Sy

Jules Norman B. Ronquillo
Human Resources Head – Business Units

Assistant Vice President – Batching Plant

Vice President – C.E.L.S.

Assistant Vice President – Operations

Assistant Vice President – Operations Assistant Vice President – Infrastructure

Vice President and Human Resources Head

Assistant Vice President – Operations
Bena Kristie U. Balandra

Alejandro A. Manalo

Ronald M. AsuncionTeofilo Fernando G. Marzabal

Joselito O. Inamarga

Grant Lee Fellowes

Jeralbine R. Nuguid

ANdrian B. Villanueva
Assistant Vice President – Supply Chain 

Management

Deputy Chief Financial Officer – GMCAC

Assistant Vice President – OperationsAssistant Vice President – Quality 
Assurance/Quality Control

Assistant Vice President – Cebu Operations

Project Director

Assistant Vice President – Precast

Head of HR & Facility Management Service
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KEY OFFICERS
SUBSIDIARIES

Megawide land, INC. GMR Megawide Cebu Airport 
Corporation

MWM Terminals, Inc.

Megawide Corporate
Foundation, Inc.

Edgar B. Saavedra 
Chairman and President

Oliver Y. Tan
Director and Treasurer

Raymund Jay S. Gomez 
Director

Jaime Raphael C. Feliciano 
Director

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer 
Director

Anthony Leonard G. Topacio
Corporate Secretary

Charlotte Y. King
Assistant Corporate Secretary

Srinivas Bommidala 
Chairman of the Board

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer 
Director and President

Edgar B. Saavedra 
Director

Ramon H. Diaz
Director and Treasurer

Jez Dela Cruz
Director 

Vivek Singhal 
Director

P Sripathy
Director

Andrew Acquaah-Harrison 
Chief Executive Advisor

Ravi Bhatnagar
Chief Finance Advisor

Alejandro Manalo
Deputy Chief Financial Officer

Ravishnankar Saravu
Chief Commercial Advisor

Florentino A. Tuason, Jr.
Corporate Secretary

Jennifer Lee
Assistant Corporate Secretary

Edgar B. Saavedra 
Chairman of the Board

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer 
Director and President

Jaime Raphael C. Feliciano 
Director

Christopher A. Nadayag 
Director and Treasurer

Ramon H. Diaz
Director

Maria Belinda B. Morales
Director

Raymund Jay S. Gomez
Director

Mohit Malhi
Chief Executive Advisor

Anthony Leonard G. Topacio
Corporate Secretary

Ma. Criselle R. Zapata-Herrera
Assistant Corporate Secretary

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer 
Chairman and President

Edgar B. Saavedra
Trustee and Vice President

Teresa Chua Saavedra 
Trustee and Treasurer

Celso P. Vivas 
Independent Trustee

Paulette Deduque-Liu 
Independent Trustee

Anthony Leonard G. Topacio
Corporate Secretary

Ma. Criselle R. Zapata-Herrera
Assistant Corporate Secretary
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2020 Business
REVIEW

Megawide was confronted with an array of challenges throughout 
2020, most of which were brought about by the pandemic. We 
relentlessly rose above these challenges and stayed ahead of 
our game to maintain excellent performance under a constantly 
evolving regulatory and operating environment. 

Our long-term strategy is to diversify our pipeline across our 
existing portfolio. In construction, we aim to increase our 
presence in public infrastructure while growing our traditional 
segments. In our landport segment, we want to add more locations; 
while in the airport, we envision serving more areas. Putting 
this into action during an economic downturn required notable 
adjustments to our methods, but we remained persistent and 
gained solid ground.

The year 2020 was still a record year for us as we 
completed significant milestones, booked our 
biggest order book to date, and quickly adopted 
stringent health protocols at our offices and 
project sites. 

We identified a number of sites to expand our 
landport business and continued to evolve 
our airport to provide First-World services 
even under unprecedented circumstances. 
We harnessed the strengths of our people and 
technology, complemented with internal changes 
and support mechanisms such as digitization 
and streamlining, to be able to face our external 
environment.

We’ve gone digital before and now it’s time to go 
further. Since 2012, MCC has been integrating 
its business processes with SAP to meet First-
World efficiency through the availability of real-
time information and updated financial reporting 
platforms. By 2019, SAP was fully rolled out and 
implemented across the business in conjunction 
with our own internally-developed applications. 
We’re currently in the process of developing 
applications to streamline transactional and 
operational accounting for our business units, 
vendors, and insurance management.

As business activities slowed down due to 
COVID-19, Megawide accelerated its digital 
development initiatives to stay on top of new 
occupational guidelines and efficiency needs. In 
2020, our Company shifted from our previous 
workspace platform to the Microsoft Office suite 
for more robust collaboration amid new remote 
work arrangements. To get everyone on board, we 
provided our employees with training, user guides, 
and orientations over the course of two to three 
months to get them accustomed to the new system.

The Engineering, Procurement, and Construction (EPC) segment under MCC 
applies our first-world engineering solutions to every project we develop. Our 
clients benefit from the technologies that each business unit (BU) has to offer:

We operate a Precast plant in Taytay, 
Rizal which has passed evaluation 
and received certification from 
the Accreditation of Indigenous 
Technologies for Housing (AITECH).

We are capable of setting up multiple 
mobile batching plants using efficient 
long-retention concrete that meets 
international standards and can be set 
within 14 hours.

We operate a Precast plant in Taytay, 
Rizal which passed evaluation 
and received certification from 
the Accreditation of Indigenous 
Technologies for Housing (AITECH).

We are capable of setting up multiple 
mobile batching plants. We developed 
efficient long-retention concrete that 
meets international standards and can be 
set within 14 hours.

Our strategic business units (SBUs), together with our construction arm, make up the entire Megawide 
Construction Corporation (MCC) parent company, which handles the overall operations, execution, and 
management of our construction projects. Our SBUs also provide key inputs and ancillary services that bring
our engineering innovations to life.

Our two main offices are as follows:

Megawide Head Office
20 N. Domingo Street,
Barangay Valencia, Quezon City

Corporate Holding Company (HoldCo)
10F Santolan Town Plaza, Santolan Road, 
San Juan City
The Megawide Foundation office is also located here.

Megawide Construction Corporation

Enhancing Digitalization

Engineering, Procurement, and Construction

The digitally-driven Pandi Batching Plant
was inaugurated on December 9, 2020.
It is the latest addition to Megawide’s
mobile batching plants.
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Increasing external sales
for infrastructure

We solidified our pivot towards the 
infrastructure segment by looking 
into more public sector projects and 
supporting our own service business 
units. 

Our batching plant is in the process 
of securing certification from the 
Department of Public Works and 
Highways (DPWH) in order to 
participate in more government 
bids. Groundwork developments 
for C.E.L.S. carry huge potential as 
well, as we eye more collaboration 
with foreign firms. Precast has zoned 
in on horizontal housing, a growing 
revenue stream for the BU, while 
remaining highly customizable for 
other segments.

Currently, EPC is handling projects across several segments. Among the ongoing 
projects under Megawide as of the end of 2020, our order book in infrastructure has 
been steadily growing. Apart from the following, we are engaging future work for a 
modernization project of Cebu’s Carbon Market.

Megawide, in partnership with Indian developer GMR Infrastructure Ltd., booked 
a PhP 9.36 billion contract in 2017 for the expansion of the Clark International 
Airport’s new passenger terminal building.

With previous success in the construction and development of Mactan-Cebu 
International Airport, Megawide was able to continue carrying out the Clark 
International Airport project in 2020, having completed the project in September, 
one month ahead of the October schedule.

The Parañaque Integrated Terminal 
Exchange (PITX) is a multi-modal 
transport terminal with commercial 
office and retail spaces developed by 
Megawide and managed by MWM 
Terminals, Inc. (MWMTI) through a 
35-year concession agreement under 
the Philippine government’s PPP 
program.

PITX quickly overcame the operational 
slowdown from government-imposed 
lockdowns in the months of March 
to June 2020. As the lockdown 
period ended, PITX began to steadily 
build up its foot traffic by addressing 
enforcement issues, upholding health 
and safety protocol, and developing new 
routes.

In 2020, several routes from PITX were 
commissioned, including the PITX-
Monumento under the EDSA Carousel.

The following provincial routes were 
also added in 2020:

• Gen. Mariano Alvarez (GMA), Cavite
• Lipa City, Batangas
• Lemery, Batangas
• Batangas City, Batangas
• Sta. Cruz, Laguna
• SRIT

PITX further improved its terminal 
operations for provincial destinations 
by providing more transport options 
while strictly implementing COVID-19 
protocols. The landport altered the 

terminal’s operating system and began 
to allocate boarding gates and bus 
bays based on route classification for 
efficiency. 

As a means of receiving feedback, 
PITX opened a customer satisfaction 
survey through its customer service 
department.

79,637 highest recorded foot traffic
(January 2, 2020)

58,000 daily average
(January-March 2020)

37,000 daily average
(JUNE-DECEMBER 2020)

We also have several key projects in other segments:

PNR Clark Phase 2 (Malolos-Clark 
Railway Project)

A 17-kilometer rail line that includes 
stations in Calumpit and Apalit, together 
with consortium partners Hyundai 
Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd., and 
Dong-ah Geological Engineering Company 
Ltd.

Newport Link

A commercial project of Megaworld 
Corporation located in Newport, Pasay City,
which is a 7-storey building, with a total 
floor area of 50,174.27 square meters. 
Megawide has been contracted to construct 
the ground floor of the Newport Link.

PHirst Park Homes Development

A housing project for PHirst Park Homes, 
Inc.. Megawide built one site-based 
precast plant and batching plant for on-
site production and ease of installation. 
Approximately 9,384 units will be built 
across Cavite, Batangas, Laguna, and 
Bulacan.

Aglipay STP

A Sewage Treatment Plant in Mandaluyong 
City, with a treatment capacity of 60
million liters per day (MLD) of wastewater 
and using the Moving Bed Biofilm Reactor 
(MBBR) process with Biological Nutrient 
Removal (BNR) technology. Construction 
of the STP is expected to be completed by 
2024 and the sewer network by 2025.

Westside City Phase 1 - Site B

A five-star hotel and casino project with 
Suntrust Home Developers, Inc., a 
subsidiary of Suncity Group Holdings 
Limited. The said project has a development 
timetable of 30 months and is located at the 
entertainment city in Parañaque City.

Early completion for the Clark International Airport project

Foot Traffic

PITX: The Future-ready Landport

Landport
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The Mactan-Cebu International 
Airport (MCIA) was developed 
with the GMR Group and is 
currently operated and managed by 
GMR MEGAWIDE Cebu Airport 
Corporation (GMCAC). The multi-
awarded airport remains to be one of 
Megawide’s most successful projects in 
airport infrastructure.

MCIA led by example with its thorough 
health measures, COVID-19 testing, 
and related facilities. The airport 
received the Airports Council 
International - Airport Health 
Accreditation (ACI-AHA) for meeting 
global standards of health and safety, 
the first among Philippine airports. 
(For more information on MCIA’s 
COVID-19 response, see pages 15-16)

Beyond upholding safe terminals and 
travel, GMCAC continued its domestic 
sales mission initiative that started in 
2018. This year, the airline marketing 
team collaborated with airlines and 
travel agencies to provide them with 
opportunities to meet, network, and 
forge partnerships with each other.

The sales missions were primarily held 
at the start of the year 2020, spanning 
key cities in Visayas and Mindanao. The 
business-to-business meetings facilitate 
faster communication and coordination 
among key participants in the travel 
industry, with a rise in participating 
agents observed since 2018 despite the 
pandemic.

MCIA:
The World-class Airport

AIRPORT

300+ participating 
travel agents

in 2020

< 200 participating 
travel agents

in 2018

6-10 participating 
airlines
in 2020
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301-1

Materials Used by the Organization

Environmental
Initiatives:
Taking Charge
of a Greener Future
Our business’s environmental impacts and carbon footprint are key concerns 
and considerations in our overall sustainability strategy. At Megawide, we aim 
to constantly innovate our construction methodologies to be both efficient and 
environment-friendly.

MATERIALS

HOLDCO

MATERIALS QUANTITY UNIT

Ready mix concrete 276,691.66 cubic meters (cu.m.)

Rebar 22,375,947.84 pieces (pcs.)

Tiles 868,052.00

Office materials 254,062.01 gallons (gal.)

Precast materials 334,346.51 square meters (sqm)

Block works 1,316,710.14

Plumbing/Sanitary works 125,756.00 sets

Sealant Works 577,858.99 tubes

BUs

BU MATERIALS QUANTITY UNIT

Precast

Formworks

Batching Plant

Cement

EA assembly lock

Deco nut

Stacking rack

Articulated flange nut
15/120 SW27

Push pull props

Gravel

Sand

Cement

Fly-ash

Additives

Spare parts

318,486

1.500

17.500

0.847

72.890

1.000

15%

15%

30%

10%

15%

15%

bags

kilograms (kg)

liters (L)

bags

metric tons (mt)

--

Diesel 225,000 liters (L)

Form oil 52,400

Admix 38,524

GI wire 53,865 kilograms (kg)

LPG 51,170

Rebar 2,693 tons

Gravel 50,908 metric tons (mt)

PVC pipe 32,741 pieces (pcs.)

Phenolic 6,745

Lumber 50,915

Skim smoothing 
rendering paste

704 pails
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103-1, 103-2, 103-3
As a construction and engineering 
innovator, our raw material inputs 
consist primarily of steel, cement, 
and aggregates. Proper procurement, 
storage, and utilization of these 
materials help ensure consistent 
quality, supply availability, and cost-
efficiency. Except for raw materials, 
MWM Terminals and GMCAC mainly 
transact with local providers and vendors 
for maintenance, marketing, and other 
operations-related services. 

EPC’s materials are procured centrally 
by the head office. These are used across 
all our project sites, depending on each 
project’s requirements. We endeavor 
to work only with trusted and legitimate 
suppliers that can meet our quality 
and volume requirements in a timely 
manner. 

Our main raw materials are readily 
available in the market but we engage 
with different suppliers to avoid 
concentration risk and ensure price 
equity and sufficient quantity.

In obtaining concrete, it is our best 
practice to subject samples to testing at 
specialized laboratories to verify quality 
and compliance with applicable codes 
and standards. This process enables us 
to guarantee the uniformity and quality 
of our work. Further, the satisfaction of 
our clients is of paramount importance 
to us and the quality of raw materials 
allows us to deliver excellent results that 
meet their specifications.

At Megawide, we abide by both local and 
international standards, including the 
Philippine National Standards (PNS), 
American Society for Testing and 
Materials (ASTM), American National 
Standards Institute (ANSI), American 
Concrete Institute (ACI), Construction 
Specifications Institute (CSI), American 
Association of State Highway and 
Transportation Officials (AASHTO), 
and ISO standard on Quality, 
Environmental, Safety, and Health. 

On the other hand, the BUs practice 
forecasting and planning for their raw 
material needs to facilitate a more 
accurate purchasing system. Monthly 
forecasts and delivery schedules are 
shared with suppliers so that they 
can plan their deliveries accordingly. 
Material requirements are categorized 
into groups, with bidding conducted 
by bulk orders to lock in the best price 
and quantity. Material forecasting 
and alternative sourcing strategies 
are continuously improved to help 
guarantee the availability of critical 
supplies and avoid delays. 

Price volatility of raw materials is a 
risk and we procure supplies upon 
the awarding of contracts to minimize 
exposure to this risk. Any disruptions 
in supply will also have implications on 
the project timelines indicated in our 
contracts. At Megawide, we established 
supplier partnering agreements to 
reduce the impact of price fluctuations, 
material shortage, and production 
delays. 

Through detailed agreements, we 
can help secure the timely delivery of 
supplies at the best prices and ensure 
that suppliers prioritize our needs. 
There are still opportunities, however, 
for our BUs to develop more robust risk 
management policies, establish stronger 
relationships with our partner suppliers, 
and invest in building the capacity of our 
supply chain.

MWM Terminals, Inc. continued 
to reduce paper consumption at its 
offices through the use of digital 
documentation. While employees 
are discouraged from printing 
documents and handling physical 
paperwork when digital means are 
available, MWM is eyeing to enhance 
this initiative through monitoring its 
paper trail.

103-1, 103-2, 103-3
Our company practices proper solid waste management in compliance with national regulations. 
Compliance is monitored by relevant regulatory agencies, including the DENR, Laguna Lake Development 
Authority (LLDA), and the Department of Labor and Employment. To facilitate this, we engage the services 
of accredited third-party contractors to haul and dispose of our solid waste and are required to submit 
documents and certificates of compliance to these government bodies.

Megawide Foundation 
donates
environmentally-friendly 
waiting sheds

Megawide Foundation, in 
collaboration with Green Antz, 
turned over two environment-
friendly waiting sheds to the 
Municipality of Taytay, Rizal.  As 
part of our efforts to promote 
sustainability and recycling, the 
waiting sheds were constructed for 
Taytay commuters using concrete 
debris from Megawide’s precast 
and batching plants as well as 
plastic wastes from neighboring 
communities.

306-2

*Detailed breakdown and complete data can be found in the Annex

Solid Waste Generated

Solid Waste Management

Reusable 0 0 0

Recyclable 47,252.00 92,342.88 16,977.44

Composted 0 0 0

Incinerated 0 0 0

Residuals/
Landfilled

3,485,864.00 369,371.52 292,376.44

Total solid waste 
generated

3,533,116.00 461,714.40 309,353.88

Waste Generated (in kg)
MCC MWM GMCAC
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HoldCo

For HoldCo, solid waste is generated 
primarily by office activities. Bins 
are provided in the common office 
and meeting rooms for proper waste 
segregation and further disposal in the 
building’s Material Recovery Facilities 
(MRF) as arranged with building 
administration. Hazardous waste 
generated by HoldCo is transferred 
to the Head Office for appropriate 
handling by the contracted accredited 
third-party haulers.

EPC

Our construction sites uphold MCC 
procedures for waste management. 
Waste is segregated in designated 
MRFs according to type: hazardous, 
biodegradable, non-biodegradable, 
scrap metal, and debris. The volume 
of waste generated and disposed is 
monitored during scheduled pick-up 
by accredited haulers. In addition, our 
company engaged a concessionaire 
for the canteen services, who is also 
responsible for managing food waste.

EPC Management ensures that partner 
haulers also operate in compliance with 
DENR standards and that business 
permits are updated, as required. 

BUSINESS UNITS

Among the BUs in the Megawide 
Industrial Complex, the Precast Plant 
generates the most waste, although the 
actual amounts fluctuate depending on 
their production levels. Some precast 
waste, such as phenolic, styro plastic, 
metal, and steel rebar, are recyclable and 
the accumulated scraps are scheduled 
for hauling. Meanwhile, styrofoam 
waste is crushed into smaller pieces 
and collected weekly by a third-party 
contractor, CEMEX. 

The Precast Plant has a temporary 
MRF for the storage and segregation of 
waste prior to disposal. Plans are also 
underway to establish separate MRFs for 
the other BUs to promote proper solid 
and hazardous waste management.

Solid waste generated by the 
Batching Plant is picked up by the 
same contractors who deliver the raw 
materials, resulting in significant 
disposal cost savings. The plant carefully 
monitors concrete waste to minimize 
losses and takes measures to recycle 
concrete waste by diverting it to other 
project sites, making concrete blocks, 
or discharging the waste to the concrete 
re-claimer or settling pond.

The BU strictly implements a “no proper 
segregation, no collection” policy to 
promote the separation of residual 
and recyclable waste. Plastic bottles 
are handled by a separate collector. 
Improper waste segregation can result 
in delayed hauling or collection and may 
cause hygiene issues.

MWM Terminals (PITX)

Waste generation at the MWM Terminals also depends 
on the volume of passengers and tenants in the facility. In 
compliance with national laws, the Terminals operate an 
MRF, with plans to expand its capacity to accommodate the 
increased volume of waste generated in the terminal.

The MWM Terminals must deal with residual and food wastes 
from its food and beverage tenants. Although there was a 
temporary drop in traffic due to the quarantine restrictions, 
the volume of waste rose with an increase in foot traffic and 
under normal retailing conditions. Management of food waste 
is enhanced through daily inspection and close monitoring of 
food service tenants to ensure that such wastes are handled 
and disposed of appropriately.

GMCAC has an accredited contractor to haul solid waste 
generated by the terminal, as well as waste from the aircraft. 
The terminal practices segregation at source to reduce the 
amount disposed of at the landfill. A Central Waste Storage 
Facility is provided as a temporary holding area for the 
collected wastes prior to final disposal. Hazardous waste is 
stored and treated in accordance to the DENR-Environmental 
Management Bureau (EMB) guidelines.

High costs of hauling and treatment for solid and hazardous 
waste may be incurred as part of GMCAC’s operating 
expenses. In this regard, the management tapped the ABS-
CBN Bantay Langis Program for the treatment and disposal of 
used cooking oil.

We are exploring the implementation of a zero-plastic 
policy, recognizing the negative impact of plastics on the 
environment. Therefore, the practice of proper waste 
segregation through MRFs should be improved and made 
more efficient across the business.

GMCAC already enforces a no single-use plastic policy for 
all employees in order to minimize non-biodegradable waste. 
Furthermore, there is a plan to develop communication 
materials and seminars to communicate the importance of 
best practices in waste management.

GMCAC (MCIA)

GMCAC has an Environmental Compliance Certificate 
(ECC) to govern the airport operations and is obliged to 
abide by the conditions of the ECC, as well as the relevant 
government regulations on solid and hazardous waste. 
We also extend this environmental responsibility to our 
stakeholders and concessionaires through a Management 
Information Notice (MIN). This allows GMCAC to work with 
its partners to manage solid waste and ensure compliance 
with regulations. 

306-2, 306-4

103-1, 103-2, 103-3

103-1, 103-2, 103-3

Hazardous Waste

MCC
MWM GMCAC

HOLDCO

N/A

N/A

9,590

N/A

N/A

N/A

No disposal 
done for the 

year.

BU

Total weight of hazardous 
waste generated (in kg)

Total weight of hazardous 
waste transported (in kg)
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302-1

103-2

*Detailed breakdown and complete data can be found in the Annex

Energy Consumption

HoldCo

For our HoldCo office operations, we coordinate closely 
with the Santolan Town Plaza building administration to 
maintain the generator sets of the building. The location has 
two generator sets for alternate power as predetermined and 
considered in the agreement on office equipment and backup 
power requirements.

EPC

EPC project sites utilize diesel-fueled generator sets to 
provide their power needs. Construction activities have 
high power demands and as activities ramp up, so does 
diesel consumption for the generators. Energy consumption 
metrics are included in the monthly monitoring forms that are 
accomplished for all EPC project sites. 

The EPC Head Office maintains 10 floors for Megawide’s 
operations and utilizes both purchased electricity and 
backup generator sets. EPC ensures proper maintenance of 
generators (both those at project sites and at our Head Office) 
to ensure optimal and efficient operations.

BUSINESS UNITS

Megawide’s BUs are dependent on electricity and only utilize 
diesel for secondary or emergency purposes. Uninterrupted 
energy supply is critical for the BUs to achieve their monthly 
production requirements and targets. Energy consumption 
in the BUs is related to the production output and project 
requirements per month–the higher the requirements for 
projects, the greater the energy demand and, therefore, 
consumption. Management reviews production requirements 
and targets regularly to maintain continuous and efficient 
operations and to mitigate any risks related to energy.

In the Megawide Industrial Complex, BU operations, 
particularly those of the Precast Plant, would be impacted by 
possible power outages. A generator set is utilized to provide 
backup power.  With the current load of the whole plant, the 
BU generator set can supply power for over 24 hours.

MWM TERMINALS (PITX)

For 2020, MWM Terminal’s energy consumption was low, 
given that operations were suspended during the lockdown. 
In general, however, the Terminal adopts energy-efficient 
practices to manage its consumption. This includes the shift 
to LED lighting, using only 50% of lighting during daytime 
hours, and turning off escalators and elevators at midnight. 

MWM Terminals also have standby generators to ensure 
continuous operations, even during power outages. An 
energy conservation program is also in the works for MWM 
Terminals, with the goal of managing energy consumption 
without sacrificing the comfort of passengers, tenants, and 
employees.

GMCAC (MCIA)

Under normal conditions, GMCAC is the second-busiest 
airport in the Philippines and has significant energy demands. 
Responsible energy use enables the airport to manage 
costs and reduce the use of fossil fuels, which impacts the 
environment. With this in mind, GMCAC has invested in the 
development of solar resources through a 1.64 MW rooftop 
solar farm in 2018.

For GMCAC, power costs through the local power utility in 
Cebu are higher, which poses a risk to financial stability. As 
a result, the strategy since 2018 has been to source power 
through the open market for Terminal 1 and 2. For its part, 
GMCAC is moving towards expanding their use of alternative 
and renewable energy sources.

103-1, 103-3
We have significant energy 
requirements and recognize that it is 
critical for us to monitor and manage 
our energy usage not only to improve 
our operations but also to address our 
responsibility to the environment and 
participation in the climate change 
agenda.  

Overall in 2020, our businesses 
experienced reductions in energy 
consumption due to the pandemic 
and the associated lockdowns. A 
number of our offices and project sites 
suspended work during the strictest 
levels of quarantine and as a result, both 
electricity and fuel consumption are 
lower compared to the previous years. 

We understand, however, that this 
reduction is an aftermath of the 
conditions during the year and cannot 
be claimed as a result of management 

initiatives. Moving forward, we are 
developing strategies across our 
businesses to improve our energy 
management practices for improved 
efficiency and cost reduction.

Power interruptions will disrupt 
business operations and result in 
delays. With this, our focus is to ensure 
that our businesses are equipped 
with the necessary backup equipment 
and generators to ensure operational 
continuity. 

Across our businesses at Megawide, 
we are undertaking efforts to improve 
energy efficiency. The HoldCo, EPC, 
and BUs adopt energy conservation 
methods, such as the shutdown of 
appliances and equipment, lights, 
and air-condition during break time, 
holidays, and after office hours.

Energy Consumption

MCC MWM GMCAC

Energy consumption 
(renewable sources in kWh)

Energy consumption
(diesel in L)

Energy consumption 
(electricity in kWh)

N/A

628,441

8,266,382.49

N/A

32,305

28,573,900

3,741,889.56

3,606.69

16,935,562.68
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103-1, 103-3
As part of our commitment to the 
environment, we seek to manage 
emissions associated with our 
operations. We acknowledge that 
we must also comply with national 
environmental standards and regulations 
governing air emissions.

At present, HoldCo, EPC, and MWM 
Terminals do not have a testing device to 
monitor emissions.

In terms of risk, our company 
acknowledges that any failure to comply 
with DENR emissions standards may 
jeopardize the renewal of the BU’s ECC. 
To manage this, our facility conducts 
regular monitoring, with the BU’s’ 
Pollution Control Officers (PCO) also 
regularly submitting reports as required 
by the DENR. 

Although there was a decrease in the 
number of flights during the quarantine 
period, GMCAC recognizes that 
at peak operations, noise pollution 
may increase and have a significant 
impact on neighboring communities. 
A communication campaign can help 
inform communities of GMCAC’s 
efforts to manage noise pollution and 
mitigate its harmful effects on them.

305-7

103-2

Note: Figures are presented in 
metric tons CO2e

*Detailed breakdown and 
complete data can be found in the 
Annex

Air Pollutants

BUSINESS UNITS

Emissions come primarily from our 
use of equipment in the BU and 
project sites. Such equipment includes 
generator sets, diesel fire burners, and 
LPG vapor burners which consume 
diesel and LPG. These equipment 
are regularly monitored and properly 
maintained. The Precast Plant also 
conducts quarterly stack emission 
testing, to confirm that emissions are 
compliant with the Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources 
(DENR) standards. 

Pollution control officers monitor 
air emissions to ensure that these are 
within the air quality standards set by 
the DENR. Quarterly self-monitoring 
reports are submitted to the DENR, 
which cover accounting of Scope 1 and 
2 emissions and other air pollutants. 
The BUs, with the guidance of the 
Health, Safety, and Environment 
(HSE) manager, also submits quarterly 
monitoring reports as part of the 
annual renewal of our Environmental 
Compliance Certificate.

EPC

EPC’s project sites utilize portable 
generator sets provided by a third-
party supplier. This business partner 
is responsible for managing and 
maintaining the equipment, as well as 
any waste generated by the equipment.

GMCAC (MCIA)

For GMCAC, the number of flights 
that pass through the airport dictate 
the level of carbon emissions and noise 
pollution. GMCAC has an approved 
Environmental Management Plan, which 
provides for the monitoring of ambient 
air and noise quality indices in specific 
areas surrounding the airport complex. 
This is in line with the requirements of 
the Philippine Clean Air Act (RA 8749).

GMCAC conducts Ambient Air Quality 
monitoring in six areas, while Noise 
Quality Monitoring is implemented 
in four areas around the airport’s 
perimeter:

To reduce pollution, GMCAC’s motorized ground support equipment (GSEs) 
are tested for hydrocarbon emissions. Since there are neighboring communities 
in the surrounding areas, GMCAC also recognizes its responsibility to educate 
stakeholders about emissions and their effects, as well as provide them with 
information on how GMCAC is managing and maintaining emission standards.

Air Quality Management

Ambient Air Quality Monitoring Sites Noise Quality Monitoring Sites

• Carbo Bay Area (MCIA Gate)
• Bangkal Brgy. Hall
• STEC – Science & Technology
     Education Center 
• Pusok National High school
• Terminal 1 and 2 Ramp area

• STEC – Science & Technology
     Education Center 
• St. Augustine International School
• MCIAA General Aviation Building
• Carmelite EMD Foundation School

3,448.99

13,144.00

7,790.36

2,010.954 MCC

MWM

GMCAC

MCC

MWM

GMCAC

103.38

11.54

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG Emissions

305-1, 305-2
Emissions

SOURCE

BU

GMCAC

Pollutant (in mg/Ncm)

Nitrogen Oxide (NOx)

Generator set 293.41 99.77

Diesel-fired burner 85.16 12.11

Vapor generator 43.05 375.37

T1 Generator Set 537 kVa 589.34 54.08

T2 Generator Set 1 1420 kW 1,468.39 41.01

T2 Generator Set 2 1420 kW 1,552.12 95.58

T2 Generator Set 3 1420 kW 1,539.28 163.87

Carbon Monoxide (CO)
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103-1, 303-1
Water is a basic resource utilized by 
all of our businesses, although they 
may have varying requirements. Even 
beyond our business, we recognize 
that water is a limited resource shared 
with our neighboring communities. 
We acknowledge the need to manage 
our water usage and reduce, if not 
eliminate, wastage. This is a priority 
given the frequency of water shortages 
in Metro Manila and other cities across 
the Philippines. We are making efforts 
across the business to improve our water 
efficiency metrics to ensure that water 
continues to be distributed to those who 
need it with minimal negative impact 
from our operations.

103-2, 103-3
We source our water from third-party water concessionaires and do not operate any 
deep wells.

Water shortage is a potential risk to our business. The BUs, in particular, are keen 
to address this risk, given their reliance on water for their operations. Container 
drums are used to store water as standby sources in case of interruption or 
disconnection. The Industrial Complex undertakes regular repairs of its piping 
system to monitor and address leaks. The BUs maintain contact with third-party 
water suppliers as options should there be disruptions in supply.

The Head Office is also exploring the possibility of installing a rainwater harvesting 
facility to help conserve freshwater resources.

303-3, 303-5

103-1, 103-2, 103-3

Note: Figures are presented in cubic meters.
*Detailed breakdown and complete data can be found in the Annex

HOLDCO and EPC

Our HoldCo and EPC Head Office’s 
water use is primarily for domestic 
purposes, such as for washing, 
gardening, and maintenance. These 
offices need a regular and reliable water 
supply to ensure that our employees 
are able to maintain a clean, safe, 
and healthy work environment. We 
have installed water-efficient fixtures 
in our washrooms, such as faucets 
with sensors, to control flow and 
consumption and prevent wastage. 

HoldCo is a tenant in the Santolan 
Town Plaza, but Facilities Management 
monitors daily operations and 
coordinates with the building 
administrator to pursue efficient water 
supply and quality initiatives. HoldCo 
also abides by the requirements set by 
the building administrator with respect 
to water use and management. 

As for EPC’s project sites, water is a 
requirement both for construction, as 
well as for domestic use in the barracks, 
canteen, washrooms, and offices. 

business units

Our BUs utilize significant amounts 
of water in their operations, with the 
Precast Plant having the highest water 
consumption, due to daily concrete 
pouring. Formworks also uses water to 
remove concrete lintels in formworks 
materials before the recovery process. 
The BU’s consumption is influenced 
by their monthly production targets: 
high production targets require more 
water, while lower production targets 
correspond to reduction in water 
utilization.

The BUs maximize their use of water 
by reusing or recycling water where 

possible. At the Precast Plant, the 
BIBKO machine recycles graywater 
from the concrete pouring process. 
The Batching Plant also adopts the use 
of recycled water, while maintaining 
the client’s concrete specifications. 
For specific structures, the Batching 
Plant can use recycled water for up to 
half of the total requirement, while for 
major designs, 20% recycled water is 
acceptable.

GMCAC (MCIA)

The cost of water utilities also has 
an impact on GMCAC. There are 
ongoing initiatives to monitor water 
consumption, such as internal metering.  
While water use monitoring will help 
determine costs, part of the management 
directive is to consolidate the water 
sources of both Terminals to maximize 
the benefits of lower price supplied in 
Terminal 2. 

As mentioned, GMCAC is keen to 
manage the impact of water costs. 
The management is exploring the 
use of recycled water, or greywater, 
from the MCIAA STP for landscaping 
and possibly, cooling tower water 
replenishment.

MWM Terminals (PITX)

The MWM Terminals use water for 
their domestic and commercial use 
in washrooms, as well as for cleaning, 
landscaping, and maintenance activities. 
The Terminals have a water conservation 
strategy in place to ensure the prudent 
use of water. Water flow from sinks 
in our washrooms was monitored and 
adjusted from 15-second intervals to 
5-second intervals. This has resulted in a 
35% reduction from our baseline water 
consumption of 900 cubic meters per 
day.

The Terminals have cistern tanks, 
maintained and cleaned regularly, for 
both potable and non-potable water.  
These tanks are separate from the 
main water supply system to ensure 
continuous water supply and prevent 
inconvenience to passengers and 
tenants.

MWM Terminals are also exploring 
opportunities to optimize water use 
and improve efficiency. This includes 
research on augmenting water use in 
washrooms, adjusting pressure for both 
potable and non-potable water systems, 
and rainwater harvesting.

329,070

238,641

N/A

MCC MWM GMCAC

260,579.06

202,034.06

N/A

Water withdrawal

Water consumption

Water recycled
and reused

306,433

109,863

N/A

water consumption
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103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 303-2
We take responsibility for wastewater 
and ensure any water discharge is 
within the standards established by the 
DENR and the Clean Water Act. This is 
part of our commitment to protect the 
environment and manage the natural 
resources that we use. We seek to reuse 
or recycle wastewater where possible in 
order to save on freshwater.

At Megawide, we run the risk of 
penalties or work suspension should 
the businesses fail to comply with 
wastewater standards. Therefore, our 
businesses implement wastewater 
management strategies, monitor effluent 
quality, and submit necessary reports 
as required by the relevant regulatory 
agencies.

303-4

103-1, 103-2, 103-3

Water Discharge

*Detailed breakdown and complete data can be found in the Annex

HOLDCO

The Santolan Town Plaza building, 
where the HoldCo office is located, has 
a sewage treatment plant (STP) managed 
by the building administrator, which 
receives all water discharge of all the 
building tenants.

BUSINESS UNITS

The Taytay Industrial Complex also 
has an STP with a capacity of up to 300 
cubic meters of discharge per day. The 
Batching Plant reuses wastewater from 
the reclaimer and settling pond for 
various uses. Wastewater, in acceptable 
amounts, is used in fresh concrete 
mixture, equipment cleaning, and dust 
suppression. The BUs partnered with 
a third-party outfit to monitor effluents 
in both upstream and downstream 
activities. The organization submits 
monitoring reports to the DENR in 
compliance with regulations. 

The BUs conduct regular preventive 
maintenance and equipment checks 
to ensure these are operating properly 
at maximum efficiency. The BUs are 
proactive in their management of 
wastewater to ensure compliance with 
DENR effluent standards as compliance 
with DENR is a condition for the 
issuance of discharge permits.

EPC

EPC project sites utilize water primarily 
for cement mixing, thus effecting 
minimal water discharge. The project 
sites also use portlets, which are 
managed and maintained by the third-
party provider.

MWM Terminals (PITX)

MWM Terminals have an STP to treat 
wastewater before being discharged to 
public drainage systems. Typically, the 
Terminals discharge about 145 cu.m. of 
wastewater a day. In 2020, this amount 
was reduced due to the decreased 
traffic caused by pandemic-induced 
restrictions. MWM Terminals work with 
an accredited contractor to monitor the 
volume and quality of effluents and to 
prevent any negative impact on water 
bodies that receive the discharge.

The MWM Terminals implement 
measures to improve effluent quality 
and guarantee that discharge quality is 
within standards. MWM engages the 
services of an accredited contractor to 
maintain its grease chamber, as well as 
for the conduct of regular monitoring.

GMCAC (MCIA)

MCIA Management handles the 
treatment and disposal of domestic 
wastewater. GMCAC, for its part, 
conducts monthly monitoring of the 
effluent to ensure that it is within the set 
standards for quality prior to discharge.

90,428.80

MCC MWM GMCAC

58,834Total volume of water
discharged (in cu.m)

196,570.30

Wastewater Quality Management
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103-1, 103-2, 103-3, 307-1

We align our operations with Philippine environmental laws, 
rules, and regulations, as well as international benchmarks and 
standards. At Megawide, we want to uphold full compliance to 
set the bar for Philippine industry practice that can meet first-
world standards. Presently, we abide by:

• Toxic Substances and Hazardous and
     Nuclear Waste Control Act of 1990
• Philippine Clean Water Act (RA 9275)
• Ecological Solid Waste Management Act of 2000
• Submission of Environmental Impact Statement (EIS)
     and acquisition of  Environmental Compliance
     Certificate (ECC)
• Philippine National Standards (PNS)
• American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
• American National Standards Institute (ANSI)
• American Concrete Institute (ACI)
• Construction Specifications Institute (CSI)
• American Association of State Highway and
     Transportation Officials (AASHTO)
• ISO standard on Quality, Environmental,
     Safety, and Health

In 2019, our Company adopted a Regulatory Requirements 
Compliance Procedure to give our business and our 
subsidiaries, affiliates, BUs, departments, and project sites a 
framework for maintaining all our regulatory requirements. 
This includes permits, clearances, licenses, registrations, 
certifications, and others requirements as may be necessary to 
continue our operations. 

The Megawide Group’s compliance team tracks these 
requirements to monitor and ensure that these are updated 
accordingly. The same team is also in charge of keeping 
abreast with new environmental regulations that may be 
applicable to our businesses.

We did not receive any sanctions or fines for non-compliance 
with any environmental laws and/or regulations for the year 
2020.

Environmental Stewardship
and Climate Action
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SOCIAL
Initiatives:

Taking ACTION
FOR OUR PEOPLE
Our key stakeholders make up the community that we build alongside and serve. 
From Megawide Foundation’s initiatives to employee development programs, our 
projects support Megawide’s value of enhancing people’s lives and livelihoods.

103-1
A strong and committed workforce 
fuels efficient business operations. By 
enriching our people and helping them 
thrive, we develop talents that uphold 
our Company’s standard of excellence. 
We also encourage individuals to pursue 
healthier lifestyles, which ultimately 
translate to better work performance.

Working From Home

Despite the pandemic, we were 
able to sustain operations by 
successfully implementing special 
work arrangements where possible 
and establishing protocols to keep 
employees on-site safe. 

Based on the policies developed, a work 
from home (WFH) setup depends on 
an employee’s task and responsibilities. 
Most of our offices adopted blended 
work arrangements, with attendance 
time split between reporting to the 
office and WFH, without jeopardizing 
a unit or a team’s effectiveness. During 
the ECQ period, the HoldCo office 
underwent a fully-remote working 
structure. Meanwhile, MWM Terminals 
required around 45% of their workforce 
to report on-site to manage the 
continued operations of PITX.

103-1

In terms of HR management, our focus 
is on attracting, hiring, and retaining 
qualified and high-potential employees 
who can meet and deliver the quality of 
work our clients and customers expect. 
Our project sites require engineering 
professionals, project managers, and 
technical personnel, but the availability 
of these types of skilled workers remains 
tight. 

As such, our Company must maintain 
high standards of talent management 
and retention to remain an employer 
of choice among engineering and 
construction firms. This should include, 
at the minimum, an attractive and 
competitive compensation and benefits 
package and opportunities for career 
growth. 

Finding the Right Fit
for Our Workforce

Payment Option Program - 
Bayanihan ½

A survey conducted by BU’s HR 
department identified individuals 
who were most in need of help 
based on a review of typhoon 
impact and effect of rising flood 
water on their homes and water 
sources. Through the collective 
efforts of BU staff, 30 BU 
employees affected by Typhoon 
Ulysses were given 25-kg sacks of 
rice and canned goods worth PhP 
35,065.00.

102-7, 102-8
OUR TEAM

For Our People

EPC

256

1086

1342
BU

168

1828

1996

43 50

93
HOLDCO

40

12
28

PH1
51

12
26

MWM
249

141 108

GMCAC

FEMALE EMPLOYEES

MALE EMPLOYEES

TOTAL

Reinforcing Resilient Minds
At Megawide, we help our employees overcome challenges, feel motivated, and 
have a proper mindset at all times. To ensure these, we rolled out the following 
initiatives in 2020:

Psychological First Aid
A virtual 8-hour workshop designed 

to equip employees with first-aid 
skills to maintain mental health 

and knowledge for self-care 
management.

Tara, Usap Tayo
A referral program for free 
counselling with a licensed 

clinical psychologist, accessible 
through a QR code and link.

HR Care Desk
A centralized channel where 

employees can forward health-
related queries and concerns to 

the HR Department.

E-Kamustahan
A 3-part set of modules aimed at 
caring for and managing one’s 

mental well-being was attended by 
93 HoldCo employees.

Mental Health Champions
Contact persons identified for 
employees experiencing mental 

distress, where interactions 
range from conversations 

to endorsement for seeking 
professional help.

Usapang EPC
A venue for EPC employees to 
receive updates on Company 

happenings and developments.
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103-2, 103-3
Project employees receive a basic wage and allowance, including performance and 
project completion bonuses. We have also established employee retention programs 
to foster loyalty. 

Employees are covered by contracts, which include non-compete clauses and 
prevent employees from pursuing opportunities with direct competitors. In 
accordance with the Retirement Pay Law (Republic Act No. 7641), we also provide 
qualified employees with a retirement benefit equivalent to 231 days’ worth of pay 
for every year of service with Megawide.

HOLDCO

HoldCo is primarily tasked to manage 
and maintain productivity. In the event 
of executive-level vacancies, an officer-
in-charge is initially delegated to sustain 
operations under the Company’s 
succession planning program. HR 
manages a talent pipeline, especially 
for critical positions, to attract new 
hires and minimize attrition levels. 
Upon hiring, HR conducts Megawide’s 
Onboarding Program for all levels and 
shares its Employer Branding program 
to ensure that employees are properly 
oriented and understand their duties and 
responsibilities thoroughly.

EPC

Due to the nature of construction work, 
EPC employment is predominantly 
project-based and subject to high 
turnover rates. Employees are frequently 
moved across different sites as projects 
complete. Our HR department also 
looks at our internal manpower and 
prioritizes current project-based 
employees to augment needs of other 
ongoing projects. This allows us to 
provide employees with continued 
opportunities and avoid project delays.

Over the long run, EPC has adopted 
a more streamlined approach and 
strengthened its hiring strategies by 
tapping academic linkages, pursuing 
provincial recruitment, and increasing 
exposure in social media. 

EPC’s HR department conducts 
manpower forecasting and planning 
based on our project pipelines and 
phases to ensure that it is able to meet its 
present and future requirements. 

A cadetship training program was also 
introduced to develop its manpower 
base, together with the use of 
dashboards to monitor and manage 
employee transfers and movements.

If EPC is unable to fill certain positions, 
operations will be affected. In addition, 
manpower shortage or low-quality 
hires can result in project delays and 
overwork, with the latter also leading 
to low productivity and higher risks of 
illness and injury. To address this, EPC 
practices proactive manpower planning 
to ensure availability of workforce and 
operations are within budget. 

EPC’s HR is in the process of adopting 
its succession planning policy as part 
of business continuity, regardless of 
changes in management and leadership. 
This covers regular performance reviews 
and talent development programs to 
improve retention and provide career 
growth paths.

BUSINESS UNITS

The recruitment processes across our 
different BUs depend on manpower 
requirements of each department. The 
BUs also acknowledge the importance 
of recruitment and employing the right 
people for the job. 

To assist HR objectives and boost 
manpower quality, a Recruitment 
Referral Program was introduced. The 
BUs also participate in job fairs, post 
in online job portals, collaborate with 
the Public Employment Service Office, 
LGUs, and tie-up with the academe 
to expand their potential pool of new 
hires. The BU HR Team also maintains 
a Recruitment Tracker to monitor 
sourcing and hiring status, discussed 
during weekly meetings. For its part, the 
Formworks Team also implements its 
own apprenticeship program to beef up 
its future bench of resources.

Hired employees undergo an 
onboarding process to orient them 
about our mission, vision, corporate 
values, and to set expectations in terms 
of roles and responsibilities. The BUs 
also offer competitive benefits and 
compensation packages, as well as other 
employee perks, including learning and 
development programs and employee 
engagement activities. Attrition and 
retention rates are monitored and form 
part of our key performance indicators. 

Regular performance reviews are 
also conducted to support career 
development and professional growth as 
a means to enhance employee retention. 
Specifically, the BUs implement an 
Employee Retention and Withdrawal 
Behaviors (EWB) initiative and training 
program for this purpose. 

Requirements for specific positions and 
processing for our BUs are categorized 
under core businesses and bidded 
projects. The hiring for the latter group 
commences once the project has been 
signed off and the contract awarded.

The BUs also recognize the need for 
employees to air their grievances. 
Tools such as the Employee Suggestion 
Box, are maintained while Employee 
Hour, Kumustahan, and UMAGAHAN 
sessions are conducted regularly.

The Employee Hour is held monthly 
for HR to cascade new policies, 
updates, and scheduled activities. 
Kumustahan, on the other hand, is an 
interactive meeting where employee 
needs and concerns are discussed while 
UMAGAHAN sessions are conducted 
quarterly to keep employees abreast with 
latest developments on our Company’s 
performance, plans, and directions.

ph1 world developers

For PH1 World Developers Inc. 
(PH1), the synergy of talents is crucial 
for achieving the business goals and 
objectives of our Company. However, 
attrition is a common occurrence in the 
organization for which PH1 must be 
prepared for. The HR Team ensures that 
their talent banks for each key position 
are filled with “ready-later talent” to 
maintain a healthy and competent pool 
of replacements throughout the year.

PH1 implements core initiatives at the 
earliest possible time to prepare for the 
constant movement of individuals within 
the organization. While recruitment and 

sourcing, done within and outside the 
organization, provide the manpower, 
talent pipelining and banking are 
two key strategies used to address 
movements and resignation. 

PH1 invested in online and digital 
platforms to reach prospects and created 
a Viber-based community to facilitate 
talent sourcing within a captured 
market. Their company also improved 
its JobStreet accounts to differentiate 
itself from Megawide. PH1 also engaged 
Recruiter Plus in their LinkedIn 
accounts to tap passive candidates for 
hard-to-find positions. These initiatives 
produce talent that qualify for key roles 
and revolving door positions. 

For talent acquisition, PH1 measures 
success based on the “Regularization 
Rate” of their hires, which is premised 
on their performance appraisal based 
on the achievement of their KRA’s 
and work ethics. For talent retention, 
effectiveness is determined by the 
“Attrition Rate” of both Key and Non-
Key Personnel.

103-2, 103-3



76 MEGAWIDE 2020 ANNUAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT INDOMITABLE FOR A FIRST-WORLD PHILIPPINES | SOCIAL 77

103-2, 103-3
MWM TERMINALS (PITX)

At MWM Terminals, a strong 
recruitment process is our primary tool 
for hiring the right people who can help 
us achieve our objectives. Employees 
receive competitive packages, which 
include basic compensation, allowances, 
and regular salary increases, as well 
as premiums for holidays and night 
differentials. 

MWM’s risks include high turnover, 
prolonged job vacancies, and levels of 
employee satisfaction. To manage this, 
MWM offers above minimum entry-level 
compensation and eligibility for a salary 
adjustment after one year of service.

One of the major reasons for employee 
turnover in 2020 was the increased 
exposure to and risk of infection from 
COVID-19 while working inside 
the terminal, resulting in manpower 
shortage. 

A reorganization was also implemented, 
without retrenchment or termination 
due to redundancy, to strengthen 
collaboration within the Terminal 
Operations teams, form a facilities 
management group, and open positions 
for vacant critical functions. Additional 
functions were assigned to selected 
supervisors for role expansion while new

 hires filled up the recently-vacated and 
new positions. Despite an augmented 
plantilla, there was still a net decrease in 
the total number of positions as long-
vacant positions were removed.

Initiatives to improve retention include 
team building exercises, training 
platforms, leadership development and 
other employee engagement programs. 
Management also reached out to 
employees via a survey mechanism, 
asking for feedback and suggestions, 
to encourage involvement and increase 
employee participation in our company.

As a proactive measure to relieve 
employee anxiety amid the pandemic, 
a group chat on the Viber application 
was created to encourage employees 
to communicate their concerns, which 
turned out to be mostly related to the 
“No Work, No Pay” policy. 

In response, MWM Management 
compensated employees during the 
lockdown equivalent to one month 
salary, with an option to loan a half-
month pay. Other accommodations 
include the use of vacation and sick leave 
credits, early release of the 13th month 
pay, and approved work-from-home 
arrangements for selected employees. 

We also applied for the Small 
Business Wage Subsidy of the SSS, 
which benefited employees through 
a PhP16,000 subsidy each. MWM 
Management likewise extended financial 
assistance to outsourced workers by 
paying their salaries for one month.

GMCAC (MCIA)

GMCAC offers carefully-planned 
benefits to their employees that are 
deemed relevant to their needs. GMCAC 
regularly reviews its compensation 
and benefits packages, recognizing 
that these are important to workers, 
though acknowledges that this is not the 
only factor that determines employee 
satisfaction and promotes retention. The 
review allows us to design appropriate 
packages that will attract new employees 
and satisfy existing personnel, without 
incurring unnecessary expenditures.

We are cognizant that constant training and development is critical, particularly 
in the industries we operate in. Providing employees with skills enhancement 
and capacity building programs not only improves their quality of work and 
performance, but also promotes employees’ satisfaction with the organization.

103-1
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*In hours
**In hours/employee

*In hours
**In hours/employee
***Estimated total training hours provided to all employees.
Gender breakdown is unavailable.

Tapping Into Our People’s Potential

Employee Training Hours MCC
MWM GMCAC

HOLDCO

- - - -

No 
training 
held in 

2020

13.5 1,960.0 499.0 1,913.3

13.5 9,816.0 376.5 2,358.8

- - - -

6.2 8.9 20.0 16.5

6.2 9.8 14.5 15.3

EPC PH1

Total training hours
provided to employees*

Average training hours 
provided to employees**

Female employees

Female employees

Male employees

Male employees

BU
FMD PRECAST CELS FORMWORKS

- - --

64.0 652.0 576.0350.0

504.0 1024.0 848.0

- - --

32.0 8.1 80.2768.0

168.0 9.8 103.8768.0

Total training hours
provided to employees*

Average training hours 
provided to employees**

Female employees

Female employees

Male employees

Male employees

***
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HOLDCO

Holdco conducts a Training Needs 
Analysis seminar for each department to 
identify the scope and types of training 
needed to develop necessary skills 
and competencies. The Performance 
Management System allows us to 
determine the individual development 
plans required by each employee.

HR HoldCo initiated the Job Profiling 
and Competency Profiling Initiatives 
for all identified unique positions. The 
objective of the Job Profile is for every 
employee to know and understand what 
is expected from that role. Likewise, 
it enables the identification of critical 
technical competencies for an individual 
to be successful on the job.

During the WFH arrangement, we 
instituted processes to enhance 
work efficiency, collaboration, and 
productivity while employees were 
working remotely. HR and managers 
developed work plans to monitor and 
promote employee productivity despite 
the physical distance. Employees came 
up with work plans that were updated 
every two weeks. At the end of a two-
week cycle, work plans were validated 
and approved by the managers, then 
submitted to HR for consolidation.

HR HoldCo worked on the Talent 
Management System, beginning with 
Talent Classification, where every 
Business Unit and Department Head 
classified each employee according 
to performance and potential. This 
exercise identified high potential 
employees from Executive to Managerial 
level. After this was accomplished, 
Talent Development Plans were 
formulated for each of the high-potential 
employees.

To kickstart the learning journey, 
HR planned a three-day, face-to-face 
workshop on Leading to Drive Business 
Performance, anchored on the basic 
management functions. This was 
supposed to have been conducted by a 
Seasoned Subject Matter Expert for 
Supervisors, Managers, and Executives. 

However, due to COVID-19 
restrictions, the decision was made to 
defer this face-to-face workshop and will 
be pursued once conditions are more 
accommodating.

In the last quarter of 2020, HoldCo 
rolled out its Performance Management 
System (PMS). This was a top down 
initiative, beginning with Strategic 
Planning at the MCC Level, all the way 
to Individual Objective Setting. The 
intent is to embed the system in our 
Company to build a culture of consistent 

high performance. 

While there was already a Performance 
Appraisal Tool in place, there is still 
much to do to develop the entire PMS, 
which enables everyone to understand, 
align, and see how each one contributes 
to the company goals. Likewise, it 
enables employees to seek areas for 
improvement that can be addressed 
through coaching, learning sessions and 
in most cases, on the job learning.

In 2020, HR HoldCo was able to 
successfully update the Manual for PMS 
processes, tools, and templates.

EPC

EPC undertakes competency profiling 
and training needs analysis at an 
individual and department level. This 
helps EPC determine the competency 
and performance gaps that can be 
bridged through training. The HR 
department has also transitioned to 
online processing of training reports 
and evaluations.

Continued employment for employees 
of retirement age is possible through 
consultancy arrangements, which are 
subject to the recommendation of their 
respective Department Heads.

Furthermore, EPC maintains a Human

 Capital Management System and 
Performance Management System to 
aid succession planning, which aims 
to provide a steady pipeline of talents 
to fill critical positions and ensure that 
technical training programs are available 
for engineers and skilled workers.

EPC has also identified the need 
for a reliable HR system to improve 
training and performance management 
processes across the company. Apart 
from this, EPC will institutionalize 
career development programs to help 
employees understand and track their 
progress and motivate them to succeed 
within the company. Job competency 
and competency profiling will help EPC 
determine the training gaps of their 
personnel and allow them to design 
customized courses for engineers and 
skilled workers.

BUSINESS UNITS

The BUs prioritize training and 
development for their employees 
by investing in capacity-building to 

improve job satisfaction and boost 
talent retention. The BUs utilize 
training needs analysis, SWOT analysis, 
and strategic planning to determine 
the appropriate packages for their 
employees. They also have performance 
evaluations and Individual Development 
Plans to serve as guides in implementing 
effective skills enhancement and 
development programs for workers. 

With evolving trends construction, 
employees must stay up to date and 
be ready to adapt to new standards, 
systems, and processes. Failure to do 
so will render employees ineffective and 
unable to keep up with industry and 
client demands. 

BUs utilize a range of learning and 
development modalities for their 
employees since not all employees have 
the same learning style and may or may 
not respond well to a single training 
approach. The BU HR is also identifying 
potential resource persons or subject 
matter experts within the organization. 

Aside from external sources, internal 
experts can also be trainers who 
can share their experiences and 
competencies to the rest of the team. 
The adoption of free webinars is a 
cost-effective method to enhance both 
soft and technical employee skills. This 
strategy was especially important this 
year, given the difficulties of on-site and 
face-to-face learning.

PH1 World Developers

PH1 implemented a 100% digital-
based training platform for its 
employees, enabling them to ensure 
the continuous learning and education 
of employees based on new business 
trends and occupational demands. We 
also implemented special training and 
education programs that allowed leaders 
to learn from industry specialists. This 
enhanced employees’ capabilities to 
lead and drive the growth of the real 
estate business. The effectiveness of 
the training and education modules are 
evaluated based on employees’ actual 
Performance Appraisal scores.

103-2, 103-3
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MWM Terminals (PITX)

Team Building and Strategic Planning 
gave MWM managers and supervisors 
the opportunity to bond with colleagues 
and appreciate the role of each 
department to the Company goals.

Given the slowdown in business, 
however, lower financial results were 
expected and the management direction 
was to consciously reduce expenses. 
The budget for training programs was 
cut, and face-to-face meetings were 
restricted to 10 participants. 

Instead, the Company utilized more cost 
efficient online webinars to educate and 
update employees about COVID-19, 
specifically the Company’s responses, 
prevention and control measures, health 
and safety protocols, and the importance 
of a healthy lifestyle. 

Another priority initiative was 
cascading our Code of Discipline 
among employees to instill order, 
responsibility, and professionalism in 
the workplace. The learning sessions on 

the Code of Discipline were conducted 
face-to-face in several batches, with 9 
to 10 attendees each to achieve proper 
comprehension and understanding. 

Our Company also aligned with HR 
Holdco’s projects on Job Modeling, 
Competency Profiling and Work Plans 
for consistency and harmony. Through 
an online Job Profiling Writeshop, 
employees learned how to create their 
job profiles and were familiarized with 
accomplishing individual Work Plans 
as a performance management and 
feedback mechanism.

MWM created job profiles and 
competency profiles to determine the 
learning and development demands 
of employees. Developing the Key 
Result Areas and deliverables of each 
employee is an integral element in their 
performance evaluation. Although 
performance appraisals are conducted 
as a basis for regularization, monthly 
and semi-annual feedback and reviews 
shall be implemented as part of the 
Mega-PEAK Performance Management 
System.

GMCAC (MCIA)

GMCAC identified attrition as a training 
risk: once employees resign, they would 
not be able to capitalize on the training 
investments. Despite acknowledging 
this risk, GMCAC does not implement 
training bonds as a strategy to realize 
its training investments to the fullest. 
Rather, it focuses on strong employee 
engagement and welfare programs to 
retain employees, including regular 
talent review and succession planning 
programs to maximize the resources 
spent. 

GMCAC also has plans to tap internal 
subject matter experts to cover strategic 
planning and performance management 
agendas. With the investments in 
employee training and development, 
GMCAC’s vision is to be the leading 
airport operator in the Philippines.

HOLDCO

During the pandemic, HR conducted 
virtual engagement activities to engage 
employees and get them connected and 
motivated. These initiatives included 
virtual E-Kamustahan, Pow-wows, and 
Mega Mart. In some instances, actual 
activities such as Mega Treats and Mega-
Lunch are held in strict observance 
of health and physical distancing 
guidelines.

Recognizing that some employees were 
experiencing difficulties coping with the 
pandemic, HR HoldCo also conducted 
webinars to promote mental health, 
featuring “Champions” trained 

to provide psychological first aid to help 
employees challenged by the impact of 
COVID-19.

Internal events, such as Town Hall 
meetings, were also brought online 
along with the quarterly business 
updates through Mornings With The 
Bossings and an employee open forum 
titled Kape’t Bisig.

Business continuity and operational sustainability are anchored on a harmonious 
relationship between management and its workforce. We promote and cultivate 
strong labor-management relations to safeguard against the risk of labor disputes 
that might result in work stoppages or operational disruptions. Having the 
advantage of utilizing highly mechanized processes in our business, however, 
reduces our dependence on manual labor and mitigates this risk area.

The employees of HoldCo, 
MWM, and GMCAC have all been 
provided with channels to air their 
grievances to management and 
have been successful at addressing 
employee concerns and containing 
dissatisfaction, through effective 
engagement processes with the 
relevant departments.

103-1
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Labor-Management Relations
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EPC

Through quarterly employee hours, 
the HR department conducts site visits 
to update employees, facilitate values 
formation, and solicit feedback. EPC 
also manages an online tool, Share Your 
Concern, where employees can share 
and discuss their work-related concerns 
anonymously. 

The HR conducts a regular Employee 
Engagement Survey to gauge the level 
of employee engagement in company 
activities and decision-making. 
To ensure that managers are also 
involved in maintaining good relations 
with employees, they are provided 
continuous education on handling 
disputes and management of project 
employees.

Through issues upstreaming strategies, 
EPC has identified common employee 
concerns and devotes a key performance 
indicator (KPI) for the formulation of 
action plans on these identified issues. 
HR is compelled and committed to 
provide responses and action plans in 
relation to concerns raised.

BUSINESS UNITS

The BUs strictly implement the 
Company’s Code of Conduct, 
administering due process for violators 
and recognizing employees for 
exemplary performance. In addition, 
members of the organization promote 
a harmonious labor-management 
relationship to avoid incurring fines, 
prevent damage to the brand reputation, 
and ensure business continuity. 

To prevent the risk of industrial or labor 
disputes, the BUs comply with relevant 
labor laws and implement effective 
employee commitment strategies. The 
BUs are also supported by the Legal 
Department, which helps resolve 
concerns or disputes amicably.

The BUs plan to improve employee 
communications through the 
implementation of regular kumustahan 
sessions. Use of social media and other 
online platforms will continue and 
be enhanced as well. The MegaTalk 
activity, launched by the Batching Plant, 
is a platform that allows employees to be 
updated on the company’s plans. 

Furthermore, BUs are also committed 
to establish and maintain strong bonds 
with employees. For instance, the Me-
Karamay program aims to express the 
company’s empathy towards employees, 
the Me-KaTech focuses on digitization 
efforts, and the Me-Kaagapay affirms 
the company’s role of standing by for 
its employees.  On the other hand, 
the Precast Unit has also activated 
its suggestion box, which enables 
employees to forward their concerns and 
provide feedback anonymously.

PH1 WORLD DEVELOPERS

PH1 ensures openness and transparency in 
communications within the organization. They 
also ensure that the Supervisors and Rank & File 
employees are able to share their concerns related 
to their jobs or the company itself. These concerns 
are communicated to the Management, which is 
responsible for making strategic and impactful 
decisions on these matters.

The leadership team of PH1 strives to maintain 
pleasant labor-management relations within the 
organization. In line with this, Management sees to it 
that employee concerns are properly addressed. 

Our leadership confronts challenges and implements 
initiatives to ease the jobs of Supervisors and Rank 
& File employees. Labor-management relations 
performance is evaluated and monitored through the 
number of Labor or Administration Cases raised to 
the management level. To date, there are no active 
cases.

MWM Terminals (PITX)

Managers practice an open-door policy while 
employees are encouraged to voice their issues, 
concerns, queries, and suggestions. We are 
compliant with applicable labor laws and standards, 
and follow due process in resolving disciplinary 
cases. Policies and guidelines are communicated 
and disseminated to employees through alignment 
meetings to ensure clear understanding. 

Employee engagement programs encourage 
employees to spend two hours together once a month 
on non-work-related activities to bond, unwind, 
relieve stress, and build camaraderie. Different 
departments or sections are assigned as organizers 
each month to boost cross-functional collaboration, 
inspire employee involvement, and spur creativity.



Championing diversity
and equal opportunity
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At Megawide, we work as a team. We believe that a diverse workforce can become 
a source of strength for our Company, with fresh perspectives giving us the unique 
advantage to rise above the conventions of the industry and bring forth innovation.

We also acknowledge the different demographics that make up our team by 
recognizing international holidays for our expatriates and days such as Mother’s Day 
for women in our organization.

We uphold policies that protect people
regardless of their age or gender:

The Anti-Age 
Discrimination

in Employment Act
(RA No. 10911)

The Solo Parents’ 
Welfare Act
(RA No. 8972)

The Magna Carta
of Women

(RA No. 9710)

The Magna Carta 
for Persons with 

Disability
(RA No. 7277, as 

amended)

46 54

MCC (HOLDCO)

32
68

MCC (PH1 WORLD
DEVELOPERS)

49 51

MWM

57
43

GMCAC

19

81

MCC (EPC)

405-1
Workforce Demographics (% SHARE)

FEMALE EMPLOYEESMALE EMPLOYEES

LEADING BY
EXAMPLE
Get to know the business and department heads at the helm
of  Megawide’s operations. 

What are their leadership takeaways and experiences from 
their position?

Maria Belinda B. Morales
• FILIPINO •

Chief Human Resources Officer

Mohit Malhi
• INDIAN •

Chief Executive Advisor,
MWM

Cristina Angan
• FILIPINO •

Deputy Chief Commercial Officer,
GMCAC

I believe in diversity not only 
in terms of gender, but also in 
terms of age and nationality. It 

really depends on what you can 
bring to the table...Megawide 

allows everyone to be part of the 
discussion table as long as you can 

add value.

“ “ “

” ” ”

A diverse set of employees brings 
more innovation and creativity 

with their rich experiences from 
across industries, cultures, and 

geographies. It boosts the morale of 
employees to cross-learn from each 
other and raises their engagement. 

Eventually, the impact of this is seen 
in results—financially.

My first year working at GMCAC 
had its challenges, especially since 
it was a new industry for me and 
the fact that I was working with 

some who were not used to having 
women executives as colleagues...
As a seasoned professional, I took 

advantage of the appraisal sessions 
to bring out constructive feedback 

to level the playing field.
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The health and safety of our people is of 
utmost importance to our organization, 
especially being a major player in the 
construction and engineering industry. 
We adopt high standards of safety in 
all our operations and maintain an 
Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) 
certification across business units to 
manage these concerns.

We commit to providing our employees 
with a healthy and safe workplace and 
comply with national and local laws, 
rules, and regulations. We adopt the 
Philippine Occupational Safety and 
Health (OSH) Standards, which are 
implemented and
monitored by the Department of 
Labor and Employment (DOLE). 
Megawide also holds an OHSAS 
18001 certification and we adhere to 
the Occupational Health and Safety 
Management System’s procedures, 
policies, forms, and methodologies. 

403-1
We conduct Job Hazard and Risk 
Assessments as well as regular safety 
inspections and audits.Through these 
assessments, we are able to identify 

workplace hazards and determine the 
potential risks. We have a  Hazard 
Identification Risk Assessment and 
Control (HIRAC), and use this as a basis 
for controls and actions to improve on 
our OHS system. In addition, we have 
a Crisis Management Plan that covers 
man-made, biological, natural,
and technical emergencies and how to 
mitigate them. A Job Hazard and Risk
Assessment Procedure is also in place to 
standardize the practice of identifying
the hazards in the workplace and 
gauging the risk of potential accidents. 

403-2
For handling hazardous materials and 
chemicals, we adopt best practices to 
ensure protection of employees. We 
also require all suppliers to present 
a material safety data sheet (MSDS) 
before storing the chemical stocks in 
our warehouse.  A monthly audit is 
conducted at the different project sites 
to help monitor supplier compliance 
with regulatory and statutory 
requirements. Proper signages are in 
place in designated storage areas for 
proper disposal and to avoid confusion. 
The Facilities Management Department 
conducts scheduled general cleaning 

at the site, with prior notice given to 
employees.

We organized a central COVID-19 
Crisis committee, which acted as 
a policy-making body and oversaw 
the implementation of the policies 
and protocols developed with their 
respective teams. In addition, a 60-page 
manual on dealing with COVID-19 
served as a reference for all business 
managers and employees. This included 
guidance on how to keep our employees 
and premises safe, what to do should 
employees fall ill due to COVID-19, and 
where and how to quarantine. We also 
made sure to keep employees educated 
and informed on all safety and sanitation 
measures and requirements.

For our project sites, we performed 
systematic disinfection to reduce the 
risk of contracting the virus. We also 
provided meals staying in barracks and 
project sites, as well as supplied vitamins 
to employees and engaged in routine 
exercise activities.

103-1, 103-2, 103-3
Occupational Health and Safety

Neil Sharpe
• AUSTRALIAN •

Vice President
FORMWORKS

Kama Neson Ganeson
• MALAYSIAN •

Acting Chief Risk Officer
and Head of Total Quality 

Management

Bram Van Olffen
• DUTCH •

Vice President of Engineering
EPC

“Managers need to communicate 
with their employees in ways that 
make them comfortable—getting 

to know your employees and 
understanding what they need to 

get them to perform well. An open-
door policy also clarifies that their 

employees are free to communicate 
openly and honestly.”

“ “ “

”
” ”

“As a long-staying expatriate in this 
country, I did not have challenges 
integrating myself with the local 

culture, as being a Malaysian, some 
50% of our culture there is also 
seen here...I believe in Integrity, 

Malasakit, and Teamwork...which 
is one of the key reasons why I love 
being connected to this Company 

as it practices the same values I live 
by.”

“As a company, we have some 
people coming from abroad who 

all bring their expertise and way of 
working. However, what works in 
foreign countries does not always 
work in the Philippines. Hence, 

you need to ensure that there is a 
blend happening and you pick the 
good points from all cultures in the 

company.”
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PH1 WORLD DEVELOPERS

PH1 considers the provision of a 
safe and conducive workplace very 
important. In line with this, we place 
high priority on the implementation 
of and compliance with Occupational 
Health and Safety standards. 

With the emergence of COVID-19, 
PH1 doubled up on its efforts to prevent 
and control the transmission of the 
virus within the workplace and project 
sites. We also ensured compliance 
with the health guidelines mandated 
by government agencies, on top of 
pursuing other initiatives to reduce the 
risk to COVID-19, to support business 
continuity.

EPC
403-1

In accordance with the national 
regulations, EPC has an Occupational 
Health and Safety (OHS) system 
in place, guided by the Philippine 
Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) 
standards enforced by the Department 
of Labor and Employment (DOLE). 
Compliance with our OHS system 
provides necessary controls for the 
project sites, as well as their various 
departments, to help guarantee that all 
tasks are done safely and efficiently and 
safeguard against possible violation of 
government policies. In addition, we 
hold an OHSAS 18001 certification – 
an internationally-recognized standard 
for OHS procedures, policies, forms, 
and methodologies. 

Prior to employment, applicants 
undergo physical and medical 
examinations to determine their fitness 
to work and are required to complete 
an Environmental, Health, and Safety 
Orientation before working onsite. 
These measures will equip workers 
with basic knowledge that will enable 
them to perform their jobs safely and 
responsibly.

Toolbox and health talks are regularly 
conducted at the project sites at the 
start of each shift, to remind workers 
of health and safety protocols. The 
company also provides a dedicated staff 
nurse on-site to monitor workers’ health 
conditions. In cases of emergency, 
immediate care can also be provided by 
the staff nurse on duty.

Each project task is required to have an 
approved method statement, as well as 
a Job Hazard and Risk Assessment form 
prior to the start of the work activity. 
This guarantees that proper health 
and safety controls are in place on-
site. Controls are regularly monitored 
for compliance. Project sites are also 
required to conduct safety inspections 
and audits, with all observations relayed 
to the persons-in-charge for immediate 
corrective action and resolution.

BUSINESS UNITS
403-1, 403-3, 403-5, 403-6

In 2020, the BUs complied with the 
guidelines provided by the government 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Work was suspended during the 
imposition of the enhanced community 
quarantine, which was slowly relaxed 
starting May 2020. To promote the 
safety of all employees, a staggered and 
progressive remote work arrangement 
was implemented. In May, only 40% 
of employees reported back to work, 
which steadily increased to 60% in June 
2020 as quarantines were eased further. 
The businesses regularly assessed the 
risks and decided the safest and most 
efficient work setup, depending on the 
requirements of the business and on 
whether prescribed distancing could still 
be observed. 

The BUs also have an OHS system in 
place to minimize potential workplace 
hazards that may cause serious physical 
harm and even death. The OHS system 
includes the use of Personal Protective 
Equipment (PPE), the conduct of Safety 

and Health awareness sessions, constant 
reminders on policies and updates 
on the Safety Bulletin Board, and the 
provision of Training and Seminars.

The Health, Safety, and Environment 
Department issued an MCC Industrial 
HSE Manual/Program, which contains 
the guidelines for operating inside 
the Megawide Industrial Complex. 
The BU’s Occupational Health and 
Safety Management Systems (OHSMS) 
states our commitment to “customer 
satisfaction, environmental protection, 
and prevention of injury or ill health 
among its employees and stakeholders 
whom it interacts with.”

The BUs’ HSE Committee has 
identified that safety is everybody’s 
concern. All employees have specific 
duties and responsibilities to prevent 
cases of injury, damage to property, 
and degradation of natural resources. 
Employees are also expected to 
comply with the BUs’ HSE Policy. For 
the benefit of employees, the HSE 
Management provides a physician, three 
nurses (for 24-hour shifts), 16 Safety 
Officers, three Safety Advisors, and two 
Pollution Control Officers (PCO). 

Workers are provided with necessary 
health and safety trainings, like the 
conduct of regular safety drills to ensure 
that employees are prepared for any 
untoward incidents. Relevant courses 
and drills are provided to all employees 
to keep them aware of health and safety 
topics, as well as necessary procedures 
in case of emergencies.

The BUs’ HSE departments also 
conduct free glucose and cholesterol 
screening, random drug tests, and 
bloodletting programs as measures 
to protect the health and welfare of 
employees.

MWM TERMINALS (PITX)
403-1 

MWM’s OHS system involves its employees, 
agencies/service providers, tenants, government 
agencies, bus operators/drivers, and passengers. 
Additionally, employees are covered by a health 
card and undergo annual physical examinations to 
confirm their health and fitness.

One of its OHS initiatives is the Crisis Management 
Plan, which includes man-made (fire, bomb threats, 
terrorism), biological (pandemic & epidemic), 
natural (earthquake, volcanic eruption, storms), 
and technical emergencies (major power outage, 
IT network failure & breach, telecommunications 
failure). Having this initiative prevents extensive 
injuries and loss of life, property damage, 
reputational impairment, and loss of concession 
agreements. 

GMCAC (MCIA)
403-2

GMCAC’s main initiatives for OHS are the 
provision of PPEs and the conduct of information 
education campaigns (IECs) on health and safety 
to prevent the occurrence of accidents in the 
workplace and to ensure that the employees always 
maintain excellent health conditions.

GMCAC implements a Hazard Identification Risk 
Assessment to identify prior risks and establish 
OHS controls, while incident investigations are 
carried out to further improve on and observe 
gaps in existing systems. Our employees are also 
encouraged to take part in risk identification by 
reporting to their site’s assigned OHS officer 
directly or through email correspondence.

103-1, 103-2

103-1, 103-2
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Overall Pandemic Response
for Employees

Employees locked down in project sites 
and the Taytay barracks were provided 
free meals and safety kits during their 
approximately 3-month stay.

COVID-19 prevention through posters 
and general reminders were displayed 
across MCC project sites and the head 
office.

After morning toolbox meetings, project 
site employees engage in 10-15 minutes 
of stretching and physical exercise to 
promote wellness and fitness.

Swab and antigen tests for employees 
were shouldered by the Company 
and conducted across our business 
segments.

A shared shuttle service was made 
available for BU project site employees 
at common pick-up and drop-off points.

MCC developed a COVID-19 Manual 
to inform its employees of proper health 
protocol (prevention, response, and control) 
and conducted a coronavirus awareness 
campaign through virtual platforms.

The “BUst the Virus” Series is a 3-part 
webinar for BU that focused on safety 
precautions and mental wellness during 
the health crisis.

The pandemic affected the entire country and the construction industry, including 
hundreds of Megawide employees. Some employees were redundated or put on 
floating status due to ongoing negotiations for some contracts.

In response to this, Megawide Foundation launched the Megakabuhayan campaign, 
wherein business opportunities were introduced to aid employees in finding 
alternative and temporary means of livelihood while on floating status. Trainings 
on urban farming, cooking, and producing natural cleaners as potential business 
activities were conducted online alongside with other supplementary courses such 
as branding, online marketing, and basic accounting.

Through Megawide’s scholarship 
program, 18 underprivileged yet 
deserving engineering and architecture 
students recently earned their 
Bachelor’s Degrees from top schools 
across the country. 

Currently, the program supports 
60 students from University of the 
Philippines, Polytechnic University 
of the Philippines, Technological 
University of the Philippines, 
Pamantasan ng Lungsod ng Maynila, 
and Cebu Technological University 

by providing them with scholarships 
that support the students’ financial and 
educational needs.

In addition, 49 Megawide scholars were 
provided with the necessary gadgets to 
help them adjust to distance learning 

and the online mode of classes being 
prescribed as a safeguard against 
COVID-19. 
With its commitment to ensure that 
its scholars are assisted to adapt to the 
changing educational environment, 
Megawide Foundation has also donated 
other useful kits such as desktops, 
laptops, tablets, and iPads.

Mega-Kabuhayan

Megawide Engineering Excellence Scholarship Program

For the Community

Donation of tablets, laptops, 
and desktops to Megawide 
scholars

Renovation of Barangay 
Luz Daycare Center

Megawide Foundation, 
in partnership with 

Megawide’s Taft East Gate 
Team, renovated the 20-

year old Daycare Center in 
Barangay Luz, Cebu City 
to provide children with a 
safer and more conducive 

learning space.

413-1



92 MEGAWIDE 2020 ANNUAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT INDOMITABLE FOR A FIRST-WORLD PHILIPPINES | SOCIAL 93

Disaster Response

Megawide employees, together with Megawide Foundation 
and PITX staff, raised a total of PhP 115,000 from their 
own pockets to help families affected by the devastating 
eruption of the Taal volcano. With the matching-counterpart 
contribution from Megawide, over 1,000 evacuated families 
in Alfonso, Cavite and Malvar, Batangas received a supply of 
potable water last January 19 and 26, respectively.

Many families and individuals within the greater Metro Manila 
area struggled in the wake of Typhoon Ulysses. Megawide 
Foundation responded by providing around 1,110 families 
staying in evacuation centers in Taytay and Pasig City with 
244 and 200 half-cavans of rice, respectively, as a form of 
food assistance. Megawide, led by the CELS group, also 
supported the clearing and rescue operations in Taytay, San 
Mateo, and Marikina by sending its heavy equipment trucks, 
backloaders, and manpower to help the communities covered 
in mud and debris.

To support the government in its emergency preparedness and 
response, Megawide Foundation turned over communications 
equipment, generator sets, and other emergency/disaster 
response equipment to the Presidential Communications 
Operations Office’s (PCOO) Laging Handa Disaster Response 
Team. The group aims to provide the government immediate 
visibility and first response status in any disaster or emergency 
situation.

As a form of sharing, Megawide employees united to 
demonstrate the company’s culture of malasakit and community 
by raising PhP 101,650 from their personal funds to help 
provide Cagayanons with immediate assistance.  

In partnership with the Megawide Foundation, Department of 
Social Welfare and Development (DSWD) Region II, and the 
local government of Solana, Megawide employees were able 
to provide rice and other basic food necessities to almost 900 
families in the localities of West Bauan, East Bauan, and Iraga.

Megawide continues to aid health workers in preventing 
the spread of COVID-19. In partnership with World 
Surgical Foundation Philippines and the League of 
Municipalities, Megawide Foundation donated reusable 
personal protective equipment (PPE) to public hospitals 
in Luzon, Visayas, and Mindanao, benefiting over 4,000 
health workers enabling them to cater to more patients 
while staying protected and reducing waste.

Taal Volcano Response

Typhoon Ulysses Disaster Response Initiatives

Support to PCOO’s Laging Handa Program

Typhoon Ulysses Employee Fund-raising Campaign
for Cagayan Valley

In partnership with World Surgical Philippines
and League of Municipalities

Market ni Misis
203-2

Megawide Foundation served as the logistics partner of 
Mesa ni Misis for a mobile market initiative called Market 
ni Misis. With a total of 11 community visits, the project 
provided healthy, affordable, and locally-sourced food items 
to a total of 10 barangays in Taguig, Las Pinas, and Quezon 
City, benefiting more than 2,500 families during the ECQ. 
The project also supported the local farmers from Northern 
Luzon by transporting nine (9) tons of produce worth PhP1 
million.

COVID-19 Response for Communities
203-1, 203-2

As the pandemic took its toll on the country, Megawide did not stop engineering 
hope. Together with the Megawide Foundation and other partner organizations, our 
Company responded to key stakeholders’ needs throughout the year.

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

Donations:

Beneficiaries:

2 disinfection 
tents for QC LGU 

and DOTr

470 gallons of 
alcohol

3,500 
rotective suits

3,700
face shields

10,100
face masks

4 COVID-19 
government 
facilities

10 host
community
hospitals
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103-1, 103-2, 103-3

Customer Satisfaction
Both MWM and GMCAC are committed 
to manage and address any concerns 
raised by customers. Failure to do so will 
result in reputational and brand risks 
to MWM and GMCAC, and ultimately, 
Megawide. The two affiliates maintain 
a complaints management desk to 
monitor customer-related concerns and 
feedback. 

MWM and GMCAC are currently 
working on improvements to better 
monitor and manage customer feedback, 
issues, and queries.

MWM Terminals (PITX)
Customer satisfaction is MWM’s top 
priority. In 2019, the facility came up 
with baseline measures of customer 
satisfaction within its facilities and 
amenities. 

The Parañaque Integrated Terminal 
Exchange (PITX), the country’s 
first land port, continues to enhance 
customer experience by promoting 
PITX as a friendly terminal. The facility 
creates a culture of excellence by 
requiring all front liners and terminal 
staff to provide consistently high levels 
of customer service and assistance 
and is committed to offer its patrons 
and customers the PITX Exceptional 
Experience.

MWM has a 24-hour feedback center 
which caters to all customer concerns. 
We provide customer-oriented 

employees interacting with passengers 
the necessary training to ensure high 
standards and courteous service.

The Customer Service Culture at the 
landport continues to measure customer 
satisfaction by monitoring Customer 
Satisfaction (CSAT) scores through 
the Landport Service Quality (LSQ) 
Survey. PITX defines and builds our 
Customer-Centric strategy by putting 
our customers’ needs at the core of our 
business. The PITX LSQ Survey also 
provides more in-depth data analysis 
between Overall Satisfaction Score and 
Passenger Stated Importance.

PITX is dedicated to a high level of 
customer satisfaction. In order to help 
provide superior customer service, PITX 
has implemented the PITX COVID 
Ambassador Program, which was rolled 
out on December 7, 2020, in an effort 
to make travel safer during the ongoing 
coronavirus pandemic. Through the 
program, PITX deploys travel safety 
ambassadors at the landport to make 
sure that all passengers follow the seven 
commandments for public transport 
passengers, stakeholders, visitors, and 
commercial establishments.

The 7 Commandments for Public 
Transportation:

1. Wear proper face mask 
2. Wear face shield
3. No talking, no eating
4. Adequate ventilation
5. Frequent and proper disinfection
6. No symptomatic passengers
7. Observe physical distancing

GMCAC (MCIA)
The Mactan-Cebu International Airport 
Authority (MCIA) measures quality 
and customer satisfaction through the 
Airport Service Quality (ASQ) survey. 
This survey considers 33 service 
parameters. There is also an established 
process for managing customer 
complaints. 

Based on the Minimum Performance 
Specifications and Standards (MPSS), 
MICIA has a target of acknowledging 
complaints within two days and resolving 
any cases within five days. In 2020, 
however, GMCAC suspended the ASQ 
survey due primarily to the COVID-19 
health protocols and reduced volume 
of passengers accomplishing the ASQ 
form, rendering the survey parameters 
and results inaccurate.

Physical manning of information 
counters at GMCAC is terminally 
suspended. Instead, Virtual Passenger 
Service Agents were set up to attend 
to customer-related concerns. This 
initiative was carried out to comply with 
the Department of Health, DOLE, and 
Department of Transportation (DOTr) 
health control measures amidst the 
COVID-19 pandemic.

For Our Customers
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CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

We, at Megawide, commit ourselves to practicing and embodying a strong culture of ethics, good corporate 
governance, compliance, and enforcement across our operations. When it comes to how we manage our 
business and perform our duties and responsibilities, good corporate governance stands as one of the 3 
pillars of sustainability that our Company abides by.

In this regard, we have been in full compliance with our New Manual on Corporate Governance since it 
launched in 2018. Moreover, we have continuously reviewed areas for improvement in policies and controls 
and have strived towards implementing such enhancements. This has resulted in the application of the 
following corporate governance initiatives in 2020:

For the proper management 
and control of the Company, we 
amended our governance structure 
and prepared the necessary charters 
and procedures for the same. 

We updated our Enterprise 
Risk Management Framework 
to improve its effectivity in 
identifying, monitoring, assessing, 
and managing the risks faced by 
Megawide. 

We adopted a risk-based internal 
audit approach, which is focused 
on strengthening the internal 
controls against the risks faced by 
the Company. This internal audit 
approach also includes a mechanism 
for managing potential conflicts of 
interest between the Company’s 
Directors, officers, employees, and 
shareholders. 

In coordination with the Institute of 
Corporate Directors, we conducted 
an Annual Corporate Governance 
Training for Megawide’s Directors 
and key officers on April 22, 2021, 
through Microsoft Teams video 
conferencing. 

Our Data Protection Officer held 
a seminar on the Data Privacy Act 
and its implementing rules and 
regulations, to remind Megawide’s 
employees of their obligations and 
responsibilities therein. 

Pursuant to our annual compliance 
procedures, we required all our 
employees to submit the Conflict of 
Interest Disclosure Form to ensure 
that all conflicts of interest are 
disclosed. 

On November 25, 2020, our 
Directors accomplished the annual 
self-evaluation pursuant to the 
Board Self-Evaluation Policy. The 
results of which are confidential.

Intensifying Corporate 
Governance

In 2020, Megawide received a 
score of 98.47 out of 130 for 
the 2019 ASEAN Corporate 
Governance Scorecard (ACGS) 
assessment while netting multiple 
awards in recognition of the 
continuous developments in our 
governance initiatives.

ASEAN Asset Class PLCs Award

Most Improved PLC Recognition

2 Golden Arrow Awards

for publicly-listed companies 
(PLCs) that score over 97.5 in the 

ACGS assessment

for the PLC which has the most 
improved score in the ACGS 

assessment of the current year 
compared to the previous year

for PLCs that score between 90 to 
99 in the ACGS assessment

Our corporate policies are grounded on the values of accountability, integrity, 
and uncompromising ethics. Currently, we implement the following across our 
Company:

Anti-Fraud Policy - establishes the guidelines, procedures, and controls that 
facilitate the prevention, detection, reporting, investigation, and punishment of 
fraudulent activities committed by members of the Company.

Board Charter - specifies the duties, functions, procedures, composition, and 
qualifications of the Board and its members.

Board Self-Evaluation Policy - provides an avenue for the Board and its members 
to assess, appraise, and measure their annual performance.

Code of Conduct and Business Ethics  - is a statement of the Company’s ethical 
beliefs, values, and commitments to guide the transactions and activities of 
Company personnel.

Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards for Suppliers - informs suppliers of the 
virtues, values, and practices that they must uphold in dealing with the Company.

Conflict of Interest - Supplemental Guidelines - reiterates to Company 
personnel that they must avoid conflicts of interest and situations where their 
personal and/or financial interests could influence the Company’s performance.

Data Privacy Manual - informs clients, employees, partners, and stakeholders of 
the Company’s data protection and security measures.

Employee Code of Discipline - standardizes the procedures in the handling of 
administrative cases and the imposition of administrative sanction for violations 
committed by Company personnel.

New Manual on Corporate Governance - complies with SEC’s Code of Corporate 
Governance for Publicly Listed Companies and institutionalizes the best practices 
of good corporate governance throughout the organization.

Quality, Environmental, Safety, and Health Policy - details the objectives, 
controls, and initiatives to be implemented at the Company for maintaining full 
compliance with legal requirements and health and safety standards.

Related Party Transactions Policy - provides guidelines and procedures for the 
handling of such transactions in a manner that promotes transparency, fairness, and 
compliance.

Trading Policy  - sets out the implementing guidelines for ensuring the compliance 
of all Company directors, officers, and employees with applicable securities laws, 
rules, and regulations.

Whistleblowing Policy - encourages and allows individuals to report fraudulent 
activity, misrepresentation, and other breaches of guidelines and compliance 
policies to the Company.

Corporate Policies
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During our 2020 Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting, we emphasized to our 
stakeholders the strengths that drive us 
in meeting our commitment to a “First-
World Philippines,” pursuant to our 
Vision, Mission, and Values.

Megawide fully recognizes the rights of our Company’s shareholders in our Articles 
of Incorporation, By-Laws, New Manual on Corporate Governance, and Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics. In maintaining these standards, we practice these 
policies and rights through the holding of regular meetings with shareholders, as 
well as our filing of disclosures to SEC and PSE.

The following are the rights of shareholders that we uphold:

Voting Right
Shareholders shall have the right 
to elect, remove, and replace 
Directors. Directors are elected 
through cumulative voting and 
cannot be removed without 
cause if it will deny minority 
shareholders representation in 
the Board. Shareholders may 
also vote on corporate acts 
that are in accordance with the 
Revised Corporation Code of the 
Philippines, as amended from time 
to time (“Corporation Code”).

Pre-emptive Right
All shareholders shall have 
pre-emptive right, unless the 
same is denied in the articles 
of incorporation or in any 
amendment thereto, or as may 
be required by the SEC, and 
in documents signed by such 
shareholders. They shall have 
the right to subscribe to the 
capital stock of the Company. 
The Company’s articles of 
incorporation shall lay down the 
specific rights and powers of 
shareholders with respect to the 
particular shares they hold, all of 
which shall be protected by law so 
long as they shall not be in conflict 
with the Corporation Code.

Power of Inspection
Shareholders shall be allowed 
to inspect corporate books and 
records, including minutes 
of Board meetings and stock 
registries, in accordance with the 
Corporation Code and shall be 
furnished with Annual Reports 
(SEC Form 17-A), including 
financial statements, without cost 
or restrictions. This is subject 
to reasonable restrictions in 
accordance with the Corporation 
Code and jurisprudence.

Megawide is able to meets its regulatory requirements as they fall due through 
the adoption of a Regulatory Requirements Compliance Procedure, whereby 
the Company created a Regulatory Requirements Electronic Management and 
Monitoring System, a web application which serves as a database, trackers, and 
repository of all of its regulatory requirements and other related documents.

Pursuant to the Notice issued by SEC on May 25, 2021, we will be submitting 
Megawide’s Integrated Annual Corporate Governance Report for 2020 
on June 30, 2021, in compliance with SEC requirements for corporate 
governance reporting.

Vision, Mission,
and Values

Rights of Shareholders

1 2 3

Regulatory
Requirements

Right to Information
Shareholders shall be provided, 
upon request, periodic reports 
which disclose personal and 
professional information about 
the Directors and officers, and 
certain other matters such as 
their holdings of the Company’s 
shares, dealing with the Company, 
relationships among Directors 
and key officers, and the aggregate 
compensation of Directors and 
officers.

The minority shareholders shall be 
granted the right to propose the 
holding of a meeting, and the right 
to propose items in the agenda 
of the meeting, provided the 
items are for legitimate business 
purposes.

The minority shareholders 
shall have access to any and all 
information relating to matters 
for which the management is 
accountable for and to those 
relating to matters for which the 
management shall include such 
information and, if not included, 
then the minority shareholders 
shall be allowed to propose to 
include such matters in the agenda 
of shareholders’ meeting, being 
within the definition of “legitimate 
purposes”.

The Board shall be transparent and fair 
in the conduct of the annual and special 
shareholders’ meetings of the Company. 
The shareholders shall be encouraged to 
personally attend such meetings. If they 
cannot attend, they shall be apprised 
ahead of time of their right to appoint 
a proxy. Subject to the requirements of 
the by-laws, the exercise of that right 
shall not be unduly restricted and any 
doubt about the validity of a proxy shall 
be resolved in the shareholder’s favor.

It is the duty of the Board to promote 
the rights of the shareholders, remove 
impediments to the exercise of those 
rights, and provide an adequate avenue 
for them to seek timely redress for the 
breach of their rights.

The Board shall take the appropriate 
steps to remove excessive or 
unnecessary costs and other 
administrative impediments to the 
shareholders’ meaningful participation 
in meetings, whether in person or by 
proxy. Accurate and timely information 
shall be made available to the 
shareholders to enable them to make a 
sound judgment on all matters brought 
to their attention for consideration or 
approval.

Although all shareholders shall 
be treated equally or without 
discrimination, the Board shall give 
minority shareholders the right to 
propose the holding of meetings and 
the items for discussion in the agenda 
that relate directly to the business of the 
Company.

Rights to Dividends
Shareholders shall have the right 
to receive dividends subject to the 
discretion of the Board.

The Company shall be compelled 
to declare dividends when its 
retained earnings shall be in excess 
of one hundred percent (100%) of 
its paid-in capital stock, except:

Appraisal Right
Shareholders shall have appraisal 
right or the right to dissent and 
demand payment of the fair value 
of their shares in the manner 
provided for under Section 80 of 
the Corporation Code, under any 
of the following circumstances:

when justified by definite 
corporate expansion projects 
or programs approved by the 
Board; or 

In case any amendment to 
the articles of incorporation 
has the effect of changing or 
restricting the rights of any 
shareholders or class of shares, 
or of authorizing preferences in 
any respect superior to those of 
outstanding shares of any class, 
or of extending or shortening 
the term of corporate existence;

In case of sale, lease, exchange, 
transfer, mortgage, pledge, 
or other disposition of all or 
substantially all of the corporate 
property and assets as provided 
in the Corporation Code; and

In case of merger or 
consolidation.

when the Company is 
prohibited under any loan 
agreement with any financial 
institution or creditor, whether 
local or foreign, from declaring 
dividends without its consent, 
and such consent has not yet 
been secured; or
when it can be clearly shown 
that such retention is necessary 
under special circumstances 
obtaining in the Company, 
such as when there is a need 
for special reserve for probable 
contingencies.

4
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Promotion and
Enhancement of Rights
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We practice equal treatment of our 
shareholders and non-discrimination. 
Protocols such as the full disclosure and 
review of all related party transactions by 
the Audit and Compliance Committee 
protect the Company and its members 
from Directors, officers, and majority 
shareholders that may take advantage of 
their positions.

Our Insider Trading Policy further 
protects our shareholders by prohibiting 
the conduct of insider trading.

As a publicly-listed Company, we 
acknowledge our responsibility 
to comply with relevant laws and 
regulations. As such, we adopt and are 
guided by the highest legal, ethical, 
and moral standards. We, at Megawide, 
are committed to promoting a strong 
culture of ethics, compliance, and 
enforcement across its operations.

In compliance with our New Manual 
on Corporate Governance, the Board 
instituted various policies against 
corruption, stating that it does not 
condone dishonest, unethical, or 
unprofessional behavior regardless 
of the level of authority of the 
other individual. Any violations or 
suspected violations are reported to 
the Compliance Officer, Chief Human 
Resources Officer, or Chief Audit 
Executive. 

The nature of our business involves 
transactions with third-party 
organizations which may or may not 
be tracked accordingly at Megawide, 
despite diligent measures in place. 
This elevates our exposure to 
any suspicious activity related to 
corruption and similar to such that is 
considered to be unacceptable.

In response to this, on April 3, 2019, 
we implemented a Code of Conduct 
and Ethical Standards for Suppliers to 
guide third parties on the standards, 
virtues, and values they must uphold 
and practice in all their dealings with 
Megawide. Furthermore, we endeavor 
to regularly conduct orientation 
seminars for its Directors, senior 
management, and employees through 
various meetings where the New 
Manual on Corporate Governance, 
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, 
Employee Code of Discipline, Code 
of Conduct and Ethical Standards for 
Suppliers, Whistleblowing Policy, 
and Anti-Fraud Policy are discussed 
and explained thoroughly. In 
addition, such Directors, officers, and 
employees have been informed that the 
said codes are accessible through our 
Company’s website.

As provided in Megawide’s Code of 
Business Conduct and Ethics, the 
acceptance of kickbacks or secret 
commissions from contractors, 
suppliers, and other service providers 
is strictly prohibited; and a breach

Equitable
Treatment of
Shareholders

Anti-Corruption Programs 
and Procedures

EPC

In EPC, concerned parties who suspect the occurrence of any fraudulent activity 
within the Company must immediately report the same following the policies and 
procedures of the Company. These include reporting the matter to the Internal 
Audit Department, Legal Department, Human Resources Department, and/or 
through the Whistleblowing Policy and Sumbong Anomalya Para sa Kompanya 
(SAPAK) campaign of the Company. All fraudulent activities reported that could 
affect our company’s financial statements shall be coordinated by the Chief Audit 
Executive with the Chief Finance Officer and Compliance Officer, who shall refer 
the matter to the appropriate Board Committees.

of this rule may result in termination of professional 
relationship and/or employment with Megawide, and 
prosecution of criminal cases arising therefrom to the fullest 
extent of the law. Megawide’s Code of Business Conduct and 
Ethics, Employee Code of Discipline, Code of Conduct and 
Ethical Standards for Suppliers, Whistleblowing Policy, Anti-
Fraud Policy, and other relevant rules and regulations provide 
for the clear and stringent policies and procedures on curbing 
and penalizing employee involvement in offering, paying, and 
receiving bribes. Further, Megawide’s Whistleblowing Policy 
and Anti-Fraud Policy establishes the guidelines, procedures, 
and controls that will facilitate the prevention, detection, 
reporting, investigation, and punishment of all fraudulent 
activities within the organization.

The Compliance Officer ensures that our Company is in full 
compliance with all laws and regulations, including those 
that pertain to corporate governance, as well as professional 
standards, accepted business practices, and internal 
standards. Operations at Megawide also undergo in-depth 
assessments in the form of internal audits. The internal 
audit group periodically monitors compliance with the anti-
corruption policies of Megawide and identifies the existence 
of potential and actual incidents of corruption.

At Megawide, we are firmly committed to developing an 
organizational culture with the highest ideals of integrity 
and ethical and moral value.  In addition, we endeavor to 
further strengthen compliance with the Code of Corporate 
Governance of the Securities and Exchange Commission 
(SEC) and other applicable laws and regulations. We aim 
to further increase the awareness of all employees on the 
governance policies promulgated by the Board through 
periodic seminars and communications, and the strict 
enforcement of anti-corruption policies.

GMCAC (MCIA)

GMCAC discusses the Code of Conduct during the onboarding 
process of its new hires. It also implements the following to 
prevent corruption incidents within the organization: Banwag 
committee meetings, coaching, mentoring, and department 
meetings. Additionally, it includes the anti-corruption policies 
in its purchase orders and contracts; and undergoes internal and 
external audits on its processes, policies, and reports. GMCAC 
maintains a centralized procurement process to minimize 
the risk of corruption and encourages all its stakeholders—
including employees, business partners, and governance 
bodies—to be transparent and cooperative.

MWM TERMINALS (MWM)

In compliance with Megawide’s Code 
of Business Conduct and Ethics, 
all supervisors, managers, officers, 
Directors, and employees of Megawide 
and MWM that have any sort of control 
in directing the business operations 
of these companies, or deal directly 
with suppliers and contractors, are 
required to fill out a Conflict of Interest 
Disclosure Form before hiring and at 
least annually—or as often as necessary 
when there is a need to disclose certain 
conflicts of interest—to help Megawide 
and MWM identify and resolve conflicts 
of interest within their respective 
organizations.

103-2, 103-3

103-2, 103-3
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In 2020, we have received zero reports of corruption across our business units and entities.

DISCLOSURE
HOLDCO EPC BU

MCC
MWM GMCAC

Percentage of employees to whom
the organization’s anti-corruption 
policies and procedures have been 
communicated to

Percentage of business partners 
to whom the organization’s anti-
corruption policies and procedures 
have been communicated to

Percentage of directors and 
management that have received
anti-corruption training

Percentage of employees that have 
received anti-corruption training

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

0%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Training in Anti-Corruption 205-2

Incidents of Corruption 205-3

DISCLOSURE QUANTITY UNITS

Number of incidents in which directors were removed or
disciplined for corruption

Number of incidents in which employees were dismissed or
disciplined for corruption

Number of incidents when contracts with business partners
were terminated due to incidents of corruption

0

0

0

#

#

#

As we aim for maintaining and enhancing our transparency in our business matters, 
we publish information across several communication channels for ease of access to 
the investment community.

Primary mediums of communication are as follows:

Disclosure and Transparency

Our corporate website,
www.megawide.com.ph, publishes all 
disclosures, stock information, and 
resources on corporate governance 
activities. Our page in PSE Edge,
http://edge.pse.com.ph/
companyInformation/form.do?cmpy_
id=627 , is also a repository of 
information on the Company.

Disclosures made by the Company, 
including material information and news 
releases, are published in PSE Edge in 
accordance with PSE Disclosure Rules.

Our Company aims to conduct quarterly 
analysts’ briefings on the business’ 
financial and operational performance 
to provide investors with regular and 
accurate information on significant 
developments in the Company.

The investment community, upon 
request, may visit our Precast Facility in 
Taytay, MCIA, PITX, and other project 
sites in coordination with the Investor 
Relations Team.

Our Investor Relations Team, Deputy/
Chief Financial Officer, Chairman, 
President, and other members of our 
management may meet with fund 
managers and investors through one-on-
one meetings, conference calls, group 
meetings, investor conferences, and 
non-deal roadshows.

COMPANY WEBSITE

Press Releases

Analysts’ Briefing

Site Visits

Investor Conferences, Non-deal 
Roadshows, One-on-One Meetings 

and Conference Calls
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The following table sets forth the participants under the PCD accounts who 
own more than 5% of the voting securities of Megawide:

The following disclosures are also provided for the reference and interest of our 
stakeholders:

Ownership Structure
102-5

Owners of record of more than 5% of Megawide’s shares of stock as of 
December 31, 2020 are as follows:

1

Class of Shares SHAREHOLDER PERCENT Beneficial OwnerNo. of Common 
Shares

Common 712,925,501 35.41% Edgar B. SaavedraCiticore Holdings 
Investment, Inc. 
(Filipino)

No. 20 N. Domingo 
Street, Barangay 
Valencia, Quezon City

Common 1,151,958,981 57.21% Publicly-Held SharesPCD Nominee 
Corporation (Filipino)

37/F Tower I, The 
Enterprise Center, 
6766 Ayala Avenue, 
corner Paseo de Roxas

PCD Nominee 
Corporation
(Non-Filipino)

37/F Tower I, The 
Enterprise Center, 
6766 Ayala Avenue, 
corner Paseo de Roxas

Common 617,709,197 30.68% Edgar B. SaavedraMegacore Holdings, 
Inc. (Filipino)

No. 20 N. Domingo 
Street, Barangay 
Valencia, Quezon City

Common 101,726,776 5.05% Publicly-Held Shares

NAME Number of Shares 
Held

Percent

BDO Securities Corporation

CLSA Philippines, Inc.

Citibank N. A.

641,346,484

383,260,404

105,014,295

31.85%

19.04%

52.16%

The following table sets forth the security ownership of Megawide’s Directors 
and officers as of December 31, 2020: 
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Name of Senior
Management

NO. of Direct Shares PERCENT of
Capital Stock

Edgar B. Saavedra
Chairman of the Board, 
CEO, and President

Christopher A. Nadayag
Treasurer and Deputy 
Chief Financial Officer

Maria Belinda Morales
Chief Human Resources 
Officer

Oliver Y. Tan
Director

Hilario G. Davide, Jr.
Independent Director

Leonilo G. Coronel
Independent Director

Celso P. Vivas
Independent Director

Alfredo E. Pascual
Independent Director

Ramon H. Diaz
Chief Financial Officer

Aggregate Shareholdings of Directors and Officers
as a Group

2

49

35,000

18,767,852

0

5

1

10,900

350,000

19,163,813

1

Nil

Nil

Nil

0.93%

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

0.95%

Nil

1

0

0

0

1

0

0

1

0

0Manuel Louie B. Ferrer 
Executive Director, 
Infrastructure 
Development and Chief 
Corporate Affairs and 
Branding Officer

NO. of INDirect Shares
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External Auditors’ Fees
The following table sets out the aggregate fees billed for each of the last 
3 fiscal years for professional services rendered by Megawide’s external 
auditors:

Audited Financial Statements
The Audited Financial Statements as of and for the year 2020 were released 
on April 8, 2021 and is uploaded in Megawide’s website.

Related Party Transactions
The related party transactions are presented in Note 28 of the Audited 
Financial Statements for the year 2020 and in the Annual Report (SEC Form 
17-A) of Megawide.

2

3

4

Particulars NATURE Audit Fees (amounts in PhP)
For the years ended December 31

2020 2019 2018

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

SyCip Gorres Velayo 
& Co. (SGV)

Punongbayan & 
Araullo

Audit of Financial 
Statements

Summary of Application 
of Proceeds on 
Preferred Shares

Agreed Upon 
Procedures

Benchmarking of 
Accounting Policies and 
Procedures

Q2 Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
Review

Quarterly Review of 
Financial Statements

Tax Opinion on 
Development Projects

Audit of Financial 
Statements of GMCAC

Q1 Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
Review and Prospectus 
Circle-Up (for Preferred 
Shares Offering)

3,346,250.00

150,000.00
(Q4)

35,000.00

-

1,500,000.00

-

250,000.00

1,339,000.00

2,000,000.00

2,875,000.00

600,000.00 
(Q1 to Q4)

-

900,000.00

-

300,000.00

580,000.00

1,300,000.00

-

2,600,000.00

600,000.00 
(Q1 to Q4)

-

-

-

-

 

1,200,000.00

-

Responsibilities of the Board
The Board is the highest governing body 
of Megawide, leading and overseeing 
its business and operations. It performs 
its duties and responsibilities on a fully 
informed basis, in good faith, with 
due diligence and care, and in the best 
interest of Megawide.

The Board participates in the annual 
preparation of the operating and 
strategic plans of the Company, prior

to approving the same. Throughout 
the year, the Board and the Board 
Committees ensure that the Company is 
being managed pursuant to such plans 
and that its goals and objectives are 
being met. As such, key departments 
are regularly requested to report before 
the Board and the Board Committees 
to present their projects and activities, 
during which crucial questions are 
asked and clarification and explanations 
are sought by the Board and the Board 
Committees.

Furthermore, the Board reviews on 
an annual basis the Vision, Mission, 
and Values of the Company and 
updates the same when necessary. The 
functions of the Board are detailed in 
the Charter of the Board of Directors 
while responsibilities of the Board 
Committees are provided in their 
respective charters.

Board Committees
Currently, 5 Board Committees assist the Board in overseeing Megawide’s business 
and operations:

102-18, 102-22

Governance Structure

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee shall 
exercise all the fiduciary powers of 
the Board to act upon any matter 
which should not be postponed 
until the previously scheduled 
Board meetings, as well as oversee, 
without limitations and to the 
extent allowed by the By-Laws, the 
management of the Company’s 
businesses and other affairs, 
particularly during the intervening 
periods when the Board has 
no scheduled meetings or is 
unavailable or unable to meet.

1

Edgar B. Saavedra

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer

Oliver Y. Tan

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

BOARD COMMITTEES

BOARD RISK
OVERSIGHT
COMMITTEE

GOVERNANCE, NOMINATIONS,
AND COMPENSATION

COMMITTEE
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Audit and Compliance 
Committee
The Audit and Compliance 
Committee shall assist the Board 
in its function and responsibilities 
over the Company’s internal 
controls, audit, financial reporting, 
and related party transactions.

Finance Committee
The Finance Committee 
shall assist the Board in its 
oversight responsibilities over 
the Company’s regular finance 
functions, asset management, and 
bidding activities.

Governance, Nominations, 
and Compensation Committee
The Governance, Nominations, 
and Compensation Committee 
shall assist the Board in corporate 
governance, nomination, and 
election of its Directors and key 
officers, and in determining their 
proper compensation.

BOARD Risk Oversight 
Committee
The Board Risk Oversight 
Committee shall assist the Board 
in its oversight responsibilities 
over the Company’s Enterprise 
Risk Management Framework 
and Security Management 
Systems. The committee is guided 
by the Company’s Enterprise 
Risk Management Framework 
in identifying Megawide’s risk 
exposure and in determining 
the effectiveness of its risk 
management strategies.

2

3

4

5

Celso P. Vivas

Leonilo G. Coronel

Chief Justice Hilario G. Davide, Jr. (Ret.)

Oliver Y. Tan

Alfredo E. Pascual

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Alfredo E. Pascual

Chief Justice Hilario G. Davide, Jr. (Ret.)

Celso P. Vivas

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Leonilo G. Coronel

Alfredo E. Pascual

Chief Justice Hilario G. Davide, Jr. (Ret.)

Celso P. Vivas

Edgar B. Saavedra

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Leonilo G. Coronel

Leonilo G. Coronel

Oliver Y. Tan

Chief Justice Hilario G. Davide, Jr. (Ret.)

Alfredo E. Pascual

Chairman

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Celso P. Vivas

Attendance to Board and Board Committee Meetings

Board of Directors’ Meetings

Audit and Compliance Committee Meetings

Finance Committee Meetings

The tables below set forth the attendance of Megawide’s Directors to Board and 
Board Committee meetings held from January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020:

1

2

3

DATE OF ELECTIONNAME

Chairman

Member

Member

Member
(Independent)

Edgar B. Saavedra

Oliver Y. Tan

Celso P. Vivas

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer

Hilario G. Davide, Jr.

Leonilo G. Coronel

Alfredo E. Pascual

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

5

6

7

7

7

7

100%

71%

86%

100%

100%

100%

100%

No. of Meetings Held
(Regular and 

Special)

No. of Meetings 
Attended

PERCENT

DATE OF ELECTIONNAMEBOARD

Chairman

Member

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Celso P. Vivas

Oliver Y. Tan

Leonilo G. Coronel

Alfredo E. Pascual

Hilario G. Davide, Jr.

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

9

9

9

9

9

9

5

9

9

8

100%

56%

100%

100%

89%

No. of Meetings Held
(Regular and 

Special)

No. of Meetings 
Attended

PERCENT

DATE OF ELECTIONNAMEBOARD

Chairman

Member

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Leonilo G. Coronel

Hilario G. Davide, Jr.

Oliver Y. Tan

Alfredo E. Pascual

Celso P. Vivas

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

7

7

7

7

7

7

7

5

7

7

100%

100%

71%

100%

100%

No. of Meetings Held
(Regular and 

Special)

No. of Meetings 
Attended

PERCENT

Member
(Independent)

Member
(Independent)

Member
(Independent)



Governance, Nominations, and Compensation Committee Meetings

Board Risk Oversight Committee Meetings

4

5

DATE OF ELECTIONNAMEBOARD

Chairman

Member

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Hilario G. Davide, Jr.

Manuel Louie B. Ferrer

Alfredo E. Pascual

Celso P. Vivas

Leonilo G. Coronel

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

4

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

No. of Meetings Held
(Regular and 

Special)

No. of Meetings 
Attended

PERCENT

DATE OF ELECTIONNAMEBOARD

Chairman

Member

Vice Chairman

Member

Member

Alfredo E. Pascual

Edgar B. Saavedra

Celso P. Vivas

Leonilo G. Coronel

Hilario G. Davide, Jr.

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

30 June 2020

5

5

5

5

5

5

3

5

5

5

100%

60%

100%

100%

100%

No. of Meetings Held
(Regular and 

Special)

No. of Meetings 
Attended

PERCENT
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Policies Relating to Health, 
Safety, and Welfare of 
Employees
The Quality, Environment, Safety, 
and Welfare Department handles 
reports made by employees 
regarding accidents and safety 
concerns at the workplace. 
Insurance companies have also 
been engaged by our Company 
to provide employees with health 
care benefits. Employees are 
further required to undergo 
annual medical check-ups. 
Information on proper safety 
protocol is disseminated through 
the Company Manual on Safety 
Procedures.

Procedures to Protect an Employee or Person who Reveals
Illegal/Unethical Behavior from Retaliation
Individuals who report unethical behavior are protected under the Code of Business Conduct 
and Ethics, Whistleblowing Policy, and Anti-Fraud Policy, among others. These reports are 
kept confidential for the protection of the individual.

Stockholder Engagement
Through our Investor Relations Team, Megawide is able to actively and continuously engage 
with its stockholders. The Investor Relations Team addresses all questions and concerns of 
stockholders and manages any of their disputes and complaints. Moreover, they may easily be 
reached using the contact details posted in the Company’s website.

Policies and Activities 
with regard to Suppliers/
Contractors as well as 
Efforts to Address Customer 
Welfare and Safeguard 
Creditors’ RightS

• Customers’ Welfare through
     Quality Assurance and Control
• Vendor Accreditation Policy
• Community Interaction through 
     Megawide Corporate
     Foundation, Inc.
• Anti-Corruption Programs
     and Procedures
• Safeguarding Creditors’ Rights
     through Cash Flow Management

Reward/Compensation 
Policy
Employees receive incentives 
based on their performance, 
which is evaluated every June and 
December of the year.

Training and Development 
Program for its Employees
Our Human Resources 
Department engages third 
parties to conduct training and 
development programs that 
are tailored to the position and 
responsibilities of our employees.

1

5

6

42

3

The compensation of the Board will always be in accordance with the By-Laws of the 
Company and/or as approved by the shareholders during the Annual Stockholders’ 
Meeting. The Board will, from time to time, approve reasonable per diem that a 
Director may receive for attendance in the Board and Board Committee meetings.

The total per diem paid to the Directors for the year ended December 31, 2020 was 
PhP 6,747,000.00.

We aim to build holistic and collaborative relationships with our stakeholders as 
we pursue our vision of a First-World Philippines. Our stakeholder policies and 
programs reinforce ethical and fair business transactions.

102-35

103-2

Remuneration of the Board

Stakeholder Policies and Programs
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ANNEX

ANNEX

Annex A - Economic

Annex B - Environmental

I. Proportion of Spending on Local Suppliers (204-1)

Location of operation

Holdco

GMCAC

MWM

BU

C.E.L.S 89% (finished goods, materials, and services)

Precast 95% (local supplier), 99% (Luzon), Cebu (1%)

Batching Plant
Ortigas/Paranaque

Formworks (Taytay Yard 2)

Batching Plant - Pandi, Bulacan

Batching Plant - Mandani 50% are local in Cebu such as Cement Supply, 50% are in 
nearby area (Mindoro) for Aggregates supply

EPC

N/A

100%

82%

50%

100%

100%

99%

Percentage of local procurement

I. Solid Waste Generated (306-2)

*In cubic meters

DISCLOSURE
MCC

HOLDCO BU
MWM GMCAC

Total solid waste 
generated (in kg)

Recyclable (in kg)

Residuals/Landfilled 
(in kg)

Reusable (in kg)

Composted (in kg)

Incinerated (in kg)

1986

392

1594

0

0

0

3,531,130

11,970
(scrap phenolic), 

34,890
(scrap rebar)

9,590 (styro)
3,474,680 

(concrete waste)

0

0

0

461,714.4

69,257.16
(plastic)

23,085.72 
(cartons)

369,371.52

0

0

0

309,353.88

7,413.94 (paper), 
1,792.91 (metal), 
7,770.59 (plastic)

4,936.31 (food), 
287,440.13 

(residual)

0

0

0
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*in cubic meters
**in TL (truck load)
***Data is consolidated for Albany Kingsley and Albany Yorkshire.

*in cubic meters

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

ALBANY*** TEGGentry Manor University Tower Worldwide

Total solid waste 
generated (in kg)

Reusable (in kg)

Composted (in kg)

Incinerated (in kg)

Recyclable (in kg)

Residuals/Landfilled 
(in kg)

0

0

0

1,904 
(metal)

6**
(scrap wood
or phenolic

576*
(debris)

0

0

0

26,893 
(metal)

1,717.2*
(generic waste)

0

0

0

6,016.5
(metal)

2**
(phenolic)

778.64*
(debris)

0

0

0

22,452
(metal)

24*
(generic waste)

0

0

0

0

0

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

The Cornerhouse UD ORTIGASUD Tondo IFC THE HIVE

Total solid waste 
generated (in kg)

Reusable (in kg)

Composted (in kg)

Incinerated (in kg)

Recyclable (in kg)

Residuals/Landfilled 
(in kg)

0

0

0

32,154
(metal)

495*
(generic waste)

135*
(others)

0

0

0

17,496
(metal)

699*
(debris)

112.43*
(others)

0

0

0

8,710
(metal)

2404.1*
(generic waste/

debris)

0

0

0

586
(metal)
16,211

(Scrap rebars,tie 
wire,GI wires and 

metal furring)

151*
(generic waste)

52*
(debris)

0

0

0

15,078
(metal)

636*
(debris)

*in cubic meters

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

PLUMERA CUBAO

Total solid waste 
generated (in kg)

Reusable (in kg)

Composted (in kg)

Incinerated (in kg)

Recyclable (in kg)

Residuals/Landfilled 
(in kg)

0

0

0

0

3.5*
(generic waste)

0

0

17,496 (metal)

0

699* (debris)
112.43* (others)

II. Energy Consumption AND INTENSITY (302-1, 302-3)

HoldCo, MWM, and GMCAC do not use gas or LPG.

DISCLOSURE
HOLDCO

MCC
MWM GMCAC

Energy consumption
(renewable sources in kWh)

Energy consumption
(electricity in kWh)

Energy consumption (diesel in L)

NA

268,708.25

573

NA

28,573,900

32,305

3,741,889.56

16,935,562.68

3,606.69

*in L/unit of genset

DISCLOSURE
HOLDCO

MCC
MWM GMCAC

Energy intensity (renewable 
sources in kWh/sqm)

Energy intensity (electricity in 
kWh/sqm)

Energy intensity (diesel in L/sqm)

NA

Data not available

573*

NA

164.00

0.19

28.21

71.017

721.34*

306-2 306-2
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DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

ALBANY* TEGGentry Manor University Tower Worldwide

Energy consumption 
(diesel in L)

7,573

587,360

19,600

168,480

4,590

12,717.40

0

211,164

0

18,619Energy consumption 
(electricity in kWh)

*Data is consolidated for Albany Kingsley and Albany Yorkshire.

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

UD ORTIGASUD TONDOTHE CORNER HOUSE IFC THE HIVE

Energy consumption 
(diesel in L)

69,445

27,536

0

1,083,101.27

136,339

905,306

0

7,622

0

217,609Energy consumption 
(electricity in kWh)

EPC project sites do not utilize renewable energy, LPG, or gasoline.

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

PLUMERA UD CUBAO

Energy consumption 
(diesel in L)

Energy consumption 
(electricity in kWh)

0

345.07

0

24,543.5

DISCLOSURE BU

MCC

HEAD OFFICE PRECAST FORMWORKS BATCHING PLANT C.E.L.S. TAYTAY INDUSTRIAL
COMPLEX

Energy consumption 
(renewable sources
in kWh)
Energy consumption 
(gasoline)

Energy consumption 
(LPG in L/cu.m.)

Energy consumption 
(diesel in L)

Energy consumption 
(electricity in kWh)

NA

NA

NA

573

825,200

NA

NA

NA

243,700

1,268,612

NA

NA

NA

NA

391,342

NA

NA

NA

NA

13,350

NA

NA

NA

143,700

287,407

NA

NA

NA

2,348

1,947,360

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

ALBANY TEGGentry Manor University Tower Worldwide

Energy intensity 
(diesel in L/sqm)

Energy intensity 
(electricity in
kWh/sqm)

Data not available

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

Energy intensity 
(diesel in L/sqm)

Energy intensity 
(electricity in
kWh/sqm)

Data not available

UD ORTIGASUD TONDOTHE CORNER HOUSE IFC THE HIVE

MCC

DISCLOSURE
BU

HEAD OFFICE PRECAST FORMWORKS C.E.L.S. TAYTAY
INDUSTRIAL
COMPLEX*

Energy intensity 
(diesel in L/sqm)

Energy intensity 
(electricity in kWh/
sqm)

573**

131.04

3.62

18.83

NA

19.46

6.36

12.73

0.02

13.22

*including Batching Plant
**in L/unit of genset
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DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

ALBANY* TEGGentry Manor University Tower Worldwide

Direct (Scope 1) 
GHG Emissions

24.2

N/A

N/A

62.7

N/A

N/A

14.7

N/A

N/A

N/A

97.13

N/A

N/A

8.56

N/A

Energy indirect 
(Scope 2) GHG 
Emissions

Emissions of ozone-
depleting substances 
(ODS)

*Data is consolidated for Albany Kingsley and Albany Yorkshire.

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

UD ORTIGASUD TONDOTHE CORNER HOUSE IFC THE HIVE

Direct (Scope 1) 
GHG Emissions

222.22

12.67

N/A

N/A

498.23

N/A

436.284

416.44

N/A

N/A

3.51

N/A

N/A

100.10

N/A

Energy indirect 
(Scope 2) GHG 
Emissions

Emissions of ozone-
depleting substances 
(ODS)DISCLOSURE BU

MCC

HEAD OFFICE PRECAST FORMWORKS BATCHING PLANT C.E.L.S. TAYTAY INDUSTRIAL
COMPLEX

Direct (Scope 1) 
GHG Emissions

Energy indirect 
(Scope 2) GHG 
Emissions
Emissions of ozone-
depleting substances 
(ODS)

1.83

379.59

N/A

779.84

583.56

N/A

N/A

180.02

N/A

N/A

6.14

N/A

459.84

132.21

N/A

7.51

895.79

N/A

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

PLUMERA UD CUBAO
Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions

Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG 
Emissions

Emissions of ozone-depleting 
substances (ODS)

N/A

0.14

N/A

N/A

11.29

N/A

Figures are presented in metric tons CO2e
III. Emissions (305-1, 305-2)

DISCLOSURE HOLDCO MWM GMCAC

Direct (Scope 1) GHG Emissions

Emissions of ozone-depleting 
substances (ODS)

Energy indirect (Scope 2)
GHG Emissions

1.83

NA

123.61

103.38

NA

13,144

11.54

NA

7790.36

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

PLUMERA UD CUBAO

Energy intensity 
(diesel in L/sqm)

Energy intensity 
(electricity in
kWh/sqm)

Data not available



ANNEXANNEX

120 MEGAWIDE 2020 ANNUAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT INDOMITABLE FOR A FIRST-WORLD PHILIPPINES | ANNEX 121

Figures are presented in cubic meters.
IV. Water Withdrawal and Consumption (303-3, 303-5)

DISCLOSURE
MCC

HOLDCO
MWM GMCAC

Water withdrawal

Water recycled and reused

Water consumption

N/A

N/A

748

329,070

N/A

238,641

306,433

N/A

109,863

DISCLOSURE BU

MCC

Head Office Taytay Industrial
Complex

Water withdrawal

Water consumption

Water recycled and reused

5,614

4,884

N/A

64,940

6,836

N/A

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

ALBANY* TEGGentry Manor University Tower Worldwide

Water withdrawal 10,831

10,831

N/A

12,360

12,360

N/A

660

660

N/A

4,265

4,256

N/A

74,362

74,362

N/A

Water consumption

Water recycled
and reused

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

The Cornerhouse UD OrtigasUD Tondo IFC THE HIVE

Water withdrawal 10,758.46

10,758.46

N/A

8,491

8,491

N/A

47,845

47,845

N/A

15,216

15,216

N/A

2,091

2,091

N/A

Water consumption

Water recycled
and reused

*Data is consolidated for Albany Kingsley and Albany Yorkshire.

DISCLOSURE EPC

MCC

PLUMERA CUBAO

Water withdrawal

Water consumption

Water recycled and reused

2,189

2,189

N/A

956.6

956.6

N/A

Annex C - SOCIAL
I. Employee Breakdown (102-8, 405-1)

categories MALE FEMALE

HOLDCO

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

41

12

14

19

10

10

40

5

2

43

3

4

31

15

2

28

23

7

84

15

18

50

25

12

68

28

9

90.32%

13.89%

16.67%

46.30%

23.15%

11.11%

62.96%

25.93%

9.68%
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categories MALE FEMALE

PH1 World Developers

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

13

6

2

7

4

10

40

5

33

24

0

2

13

13

2

28

23

30

37

6

4

20

17

12

68

28

63

37.00%

12.77%

8.51%

42.55%

36.17%

6.98%

67.44%

25.58%

63.00%

categories MALE FEMALE

EPC (Head Office and Project Sites)

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

151

0

40

102

944

75

683

328

935

117

0

21

51

184

4

101

151

139

268

0

61

153

1128

79

784

479

1074

19.97%

0.00%

4.55%

11.40%

84.05%

5.89%

58.42%

35.69%

80.03%

categories MALE FEMALE

BU - Formworks*

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

130

0

2

12

120

9

77

48

4

19

0

0

5

23

0

4

24

9

149

0

2

17

143

9

81

72

13

91.98%

0.00%

1.23%

10.49%

88.27%

5.56%

50.00%

44.44%

8.02%

categories MALE FEMALE

BU - Batching Plant

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

0

4

2

95

10

58

33

0

0

7

26

0

8

25

0

4

9

121

10

66

58

0.00%

2.99%

6.72%

90.30%

7.46%

49.25%

43.28%

Breakdown by employment contract not available

*Senior Management includes Top Management employees while Middle 
Management includes Supervisors

405-1 405-1
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categories MALE FEMALE

BU - C.E.L.S.

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

0

1

25

490

37

366

113

0

0

8

28

1

8

27

0

1

33

518

38

374

140

0.00%

0.18%

5.98%

93.84%

6.88%

67.75%

25.36%

Breakdown by employment contract not available

categories MALE FEMALE

BU - FMD

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

23

3

6

0

29

3

90.63%

9.38%

Breakdown by employment contract not available

Breakdown by employment contract not available

categories MALE FEMALE

GMCAC

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

0

12

54

75

31

101

9

0

6

30

72

8

66

34

0

18

84

147

39

167

43

0.00%

7.23%

33.73%

59.04%

15.66%

67.07%

17.27%

Breakdown by employment contract not available

categories MALE FEMALE

PITX

A. EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT

B. Position

C. AGE GROUP

TOTAL %

Permanent

Governance 
Body

Senior 
Management

Middle 
Management

Rank and File

Over 50 yrs old

30-50 yrs old

Under 30 yrs old

Temporary

26

0

4

7

14

1

15

9

0

24

0

2

4

20

1

7

18

1

50

0

6

11

34

2

22

27

1

98.04%

0.00%

11.76%

21.57%

66.67%

3.92%

43.14%

52.94%

1.96%

405-1 405-1
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ii. New Hires and Turnovers (401-1, 405-2)

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

MCC

Below 30 2 6 10 12

30-50 4 2 4 3

Above 50 1 1 0 1

TOTAL 7 9 14 16

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

BU - Batching Plant

Below 30 9 2 33 25

30-50 15 1 58 8

Above 50 2 0 10 0

TOTAL 26 3 101 33

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

BU - C.E.L.S.

Below 30 12 7 0 10

30-50 19 2 29 1

Above 50 0 0 1 0

TOTAL 31 9 30 11

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

PH1 World Developers

Below 30 0 11 1 13

30-50 14 15 12 15

Above 50 0 1 0 1

TOTAL 14 27 13 29

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

BU - FMD

Below 30 0 1 4 4

30-50 0 0 19 3

Above 50 0 0 2 0

TOTAL 0 1 25 7

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

BU - PRECAST

Below 30 63 4 339 45

30-50 100 1 558 16

Above 50 13 0 51 0

TOTAL 176 5 948 61

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

BU - Formworks

Below 30 12 15 20 14

30-50 1 0 75 6

Above 50 0 0 9 0

TOTAL 13 15 104 20

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

GMCAC

Below 30 0 3 4 9

30-50 2 0 13 6

Above 50 0 0 8 0

TOTAL 2 3 25 15

AGE
MALE MALE

Number of new hires
by gender

Number of turnovers
by gender

FEMALE FEMALE

PITX

Below 30 1 8 7 4

30-50 6 2 2 3

Above 50 1 1 1 0

TOTAL 8 11 10 7

AGE

MALE MALEMALE MALE

Head Office

Number of new hires by gender Number of turnovers by gender

Head OfficeProject Sites Project Sites

FEMALE FEMALEFEMALE FEMALE

EPC

Below 30 14 5911 5767 2697 94

30-50 12 486 45167 63513 56

Above 50 0 71 218 680 2

TOTAL 26 11418 104252 97220 152

*Includes employees transferred from Megawide

401-1

*including Head Office and Project Sites
**PH1’s attrition rate computation includes employees affected by redundancy
1 Attrition rate = (no. of new hires – no. of turnover)/(average of total no. of employees of 
previous year and total no. of employees of current year)

DISCLOSURE
MCC

HOLDCO

0.14

PH1**

0.10

EPC*

0.82

BU

0.02

MWM GMCAC

Attrition rate1 0.04 0.14
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DISCLOSURE
MCC

HOLDCO

1:1

1:1

PH1**

1:1

1:1

EPC*

1:1

1:1

BU

1:1***

1:1

MWM GMCAC

Ratio of lowest paid 
employee against
minimum wage

Ratio of basic salary and 
remuneration of women to 
men*

1:1

1:1

N/A

1:1

HOLDCO

LIST OF BENEFITS % of female employees who 
availed for the Year

% of male employees who 
availed for the YearY/N

Life insurance

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

0

0

4%

19%

4%

0

4%

7%

0

19%

19%

4%

0

11%

0

0

11%

81%

7%

0

7%

7%

0

81%

81%

7%

0

7%

N

N

Y

Y

Y

N

Y

Y

N

Y

Y

Y

N

Y

iiI. Minimum Wage, Salary, and Remuneration (202-1, 405-2)

IV. Employee Benefits (401-2, 401-3)

*Figure taken from the 2019 Annual and Sustainability Report

EPC   

LIST OF BENEFITS % of male employees
who availed for the Year

% of FEmale employees 
who availed for the YearHEAD OFFICE

Y/N

PROJECT SITES

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

No data

6%

63%

No data

No data

75%

33%

No data

75%

0%

16%

N/A

No data

No data

30%

37%   

No data

No data

75%

8%

No data

25%

0%

2%

N/A

No data

N N

Y Y

Y Y

Y Y

N N

Y Y

Y Y

N N

Y Y

Y Y

Y Y

N N

Y Y

BU-Precast Plant   

LIST OF BENEFITS % of male employees
who availed for the Year

% of FEmale employees 
who availed for the YearHEAD OFFICE

Y/N

PROJECT SITES

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

0%

2%

0%

76%

0%

80%

95%

0%

89%

0%

65%

0%

35%

0%

3%

0%

59%

0%

86%

90%

0%

95%

0%

60%

0%

25%

Y Y

Y Y

N N

Y Y

N N

Y Y

Y Y

Y Y

Y Y

N N

Y Y

N N

Y Y

401-2, 401-3
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BU-C.E.L.S.

LIST OF BENEFITS % of male employees
who availed for the Year

% of FEmale employees
who availed for the YearY/N

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

0%

2.33%

0%

100%

0%

78.24%

100%

0%

78.58%

0%

100%

0%

277*

0%

11.11%

0%

100%

0%

5.05%

100%

0%

5.71%

0%

100%

0%

Y

Y

N

Y

N

Y

Y

N

Y

N

Y

N

Y

BU-Formworks

LIST OF BENEFITS % of male employees
who availed for the Year

% of FEmale employees
who availed for the YearY/N

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

0%

6%

0%

23%

0%

59%

100%

0%

81%

0%

88%

0%

106*

0%

2%

0%

2%

0%

13%

10%

0%

18%

0%

4%

0%

N

Y

N

Y

N

Y

Y

N

Y

N

Y

N

Y

*Total number of employees who availed of medical benefits. Gender breakdown is unavailable.

*Total number of employees who availed of medical benefits. Gender breakdown is unavailable.

BU-Batching Plant   

LIST OF BENEFITS
NCR

Y/N

CEBU BULACAN

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

% of male employees
who availed for the Year

% of FEmale employees
who availed for the Year

0%

3%

0%

12%

0%

43%

15%

N/A

56%

100%

12%

N/A

82%

0%

9%

0%

4%

0%

62%

35%

N/A

85%

100%

9%

N/A

97%

N N N

N N N

N N N

N N N

N N N

N N N

N N N

N/A N/A N/A

N N N

N N N

N N N

N/A N/A N/A

N N N

MWM Terminals, Inc.

LIST OF BENEFITS % of male employees
who availed for the Year

% of FEmale employees
who availed for the YearY/N

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

0%

2%

30%

0%

0%

46%

16%

0%

46%

50%

0%

0%

38%

0%

2%

36%

2%

0%

42%

16%

0%

42%

50%

0%

0%

28%

N

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

N

Y

401-2, 401-3 401-2, 401-3
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GMCAC

LIST OF BENEFITS % of male employees
who availed for the Year

% of FEmale employees
who availed for the YearY/N

Housing assistance (aside from Pag-IBIG)

Parental leaves

Telecommuting

PhilHealth*

Further education support

Sick leaves

SSS*

Retirement fund (aside from SSS)

Vacation leaves

Flexible-working Hours

Pag-IBIG*

Company stock options

Medical benefits (aside from PhilHealth)

0%

1.6%

0%

100%

0%

100%

100%

2%

100%

100%

100%

0%

100%

0%

0%

0%

100%

0%

100%

100%

0%

100%

100%

100%

0%

100%

N

Y

N

Y

N

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

N

Y

*Remitted contributions

V. Employee Training (404-1, 404-2, 404-3)

VI. Training Programs (404-2)

DISCLOSURE
MCC

HOLDCO

13.5

6.2

13.5

6.2

EPC

1960

8.9

9816

9.79

PH1 WORLD
DEVELOPERS

No
trainings

held in
2020

MWM GMCAC

Total training hours 
provided to employees*

Average training hours 
provided to employees**

a. Female employees

a. Female employees

b. Male employees

b. Male employees

499

19.96

376.5

14.48

1913.25

16.49

2358.75

15.32

*in hours
**in hours/employee

BU - C.E.L.S.

QMS Auditing

Basics of Good Documentation and 
Document Control Training

Type of programs 
implemented or assistance 
provided to upgrade 
employee skills

COSH Training

Essentials of Effective Communication

QMS ISO 9001:2015 Awareness

PITX    

Teambuilding and Strategic Planning

COVID-19 Prevention and Control 
Measures

Type of programs 
implemented or assistance 
provided to upgrade 
employee skills

New Employee Orientation

Mandatory 8-Hour Occupational Safety 
Training

Doc Talk and COVID-19 Updates

Psychological First-Aid

Healthy Lifestyle: Feel-Good Yoga

Job Profiling Writeshop

COVID-19 Safety and Health Protocols

Performance Management: Work Plan

Basic Occupational Safety and Health 
Training

BU - Formworks

COSH Training
Type of programs 
implemented or assistance 
provided to upgrade 
employee skills

TESDA NCII Certification

Training with CPD Credits

In-house Trainings

BU - FMD

Financial support for training 
requirements

Type of programs 
implemented or assistance 
provided to upgrade 
employee skills

Training Needs Analysis

EPC

Type of programs 
implemented or assistance 
provided to upgrade 
employee skills

Leadership, Technical, Project 
Management, and Soft Skills 
(Communication, Client Relations,
and Conflict Management)

DISCLOSURE
BU

FMD PRECAST

64

32 768

504
350***

168 768

C.E.L.S. FORMWORKS

652 576

8.05 80.16

1024 848

9.75 103.84

Total training hours 
provided to employees*

Average training hours 
provided to employees**

a. Female employees

a. Female employees

b. Male employees

b. Male employees

*in hours 
**in hours/employee
***Estimated total training hours provided to all employees. Gender breakdown is unavailable

401-2, 401-3 404-1
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HOLDCO

MALE

17%

24%

5%

POSITION FEMALE

6%

20%

23%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Senior Management

Middle Management

Rank and File

EPC

MALE

100%

100%

100%

POSITION FEMALE

100%

100%

100%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Senior Management

Middle Management

Rank and File

BU - C.E.L.S.

MALE

75.00%

66.67%

94.90%

POSITION FEMALE

25.00%

33.33%

5.10%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Senior Management

Middle Management

Rank and File

BU - Batching Plant

MALE

4%

1%

71%

POSITION FEMALE

1%

5%

19%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Managerial

Supervisory

Rank and File

PITX

MALE

0%

6%

4%

2%

POSITION FEMALE

0%

0%

2%

12%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Executives

Managerial

Supervisory

Rank and File

PH1 World Developers

MALE

100%

71.43%

100%

POSITION FEMALE

100%

53.85%

100%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Senior Management

Middle Management

Rank and File

BU - PRECAST

MALE

100%

100%

100%

POSITION FEMALE

100%

100%

100%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Senior Management

Middle Management

Rank and File

BU - FORMWORKS

MALE

100%

100%

100%

POSITION FEMALE

N/A

100%

100%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Senior Management

Middle Management

Rank and File

GMCAC

MALE

10%

30%

15%

POSITION FEMALE

15%

16%

14%

Percentage of employees receiving regular performance 
and career development reviews (by gender)

Senior Management

Middle Management

Rank and File

VII. Employees Receiving Performance Reviews (404-3)

Note: Regular performance and career development review data unavailable for BU - FMD.

VIII. Labor-Management Relations (102-41, 402-1)

IX. Occupational Health and Safety (403-8, 403-9)

DISCLOSURE
MCC

HOLDCO

2-3 Days

Non-unionized

- - - -

EPCPH1 WORLD
DEVELOPERS

MWM GMCAC

Minimum notice period 
regarding operational 
changes

Percentage of employees 
covered with Collective 
Bargaining Agreements

Percentage of employees 
covered with Collective 
Bargaining Agreements

DISCLOSURE
MCC

HOLDCO

110

8,174,761

N/A

0

102

3

EPC

0

10,496,560

0

0

0

PH1 WORLD
DEVELOPERS

MWM GMCAC

Safe Man-Hours

No. of work-related injuries

No. of work-related fatalities

No. of work-related ill-health

No. of safety drills

0

1,211,049

0

0

0

0

426,739

0

0

No drills due to 
COVID19

*Safe man-hours in project sites and in the Head Office are cumulative for the period of 
January to December 2020.



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

REPORT OF THE AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE  
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 
 
This report covers the activities of the Audit and Compliance Committee (“ACC”) of the Board of 
Directors (the “Board”) of Megawide Construction Corporation (“Megawide”) for the year ended 31 
December 2020, pursuant to the provisions of Megawide’s New Manual on Corporate Governance 
(“Manual”).  
 
During the year, the ACC met every two (2) months and its regular agenda included the following: 
 
a. Approval of its previous minutes; 

 
b. Report or updates on the audit activities of the Internal Audit Department (“IAD”), focusing on 

the control environment and the enterprise risk management (“ERM”) program; 
 
c. Review of Megawide’s material Related Party Transactions; and  
 
d. Review of Megawide’s Quarterly and Annual Reports, which are submitted to the Securities and 

Exchange Commission (“SEC”). 
 
The ACC also performed the following for the audit year of 2020:  
 
a. Reviewed and approved the 2020 IAD Risk-Based Internal Audit Plan. 

 
b. Reviewed and approved all the audit fees and services provided by Megawide’s external 

auditor, Punongbayan & Araullo (“P&A”). 
 
c. Evaluated the non-audit work furnished by P&A, including the non-audit fees paid, particularly, 

on its impact on the total annual audit fees and consultancy expenses of Megawide. As 
determined by the ACC, the non-audit work performed by P&A did not appear to be in conflict 
with their duties as external auditor, nor posed a threat to their independence. 

 
d. Reviewed and discussed with P&A the scope and methodology of their audit, the results of their 

examination, and the quality of their financial reports. 
 
e. Evaluated the performance, independence, and qualifications of P&A in the conduct of their 

audit. In this regard, the ACC received a letter from P&A confirming their independence and 
containing other matters that require disclosure under applicable auditing standards. Based on 
its review, the ACC recommended the re-appointment of P&A as the external auditor of 
Megawide for the year 2021.   
 

f. In behalf of the ACC and before the audit was finalized, the Chairman of the ACC, Mr. Celso P. 
Vivas, (in lieu of a face-to-face meeting) had a private tele-conversation meeting with P&A, 
through its engagement partner, Ms. Mailene Sigue-Bisnar, and her team. The said meeting was 
not attended by any of Megawide’s executives or officers, as required by the rules and 
regulations of the SEC and the Manual. Mr. Vivas asked P&A if there are any unresolved critical 
and/or material audit issues. P&A confirmed that there are no unresolved audit issues. 

g. After P&A presented Megawide’s 2020 Consolidated Audited Financial Statements, the ACC 
reviewed the same and recommended its approval to the Board. Upon careful deliberation, the 
Board approved Megawide’s 2020 Consolidated Audited Financial Statements.  
 

  
AUDIT AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE 
By: 
 
 
 
 
________________________ 
MR. CELSO P. VIVAS 
Chairman of the ACC 
Date: 08 April 2021 
 
Noted by:  
 
 
 
______________________________ 
MR. EDGAR B. SAAVEDRA 
Chairman of the Board, 
Chief Executive Officer, and President 
Date: 08 April 2021 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 

STATEMENT OF THE ACTING CHIEF AUDIT EXECUTIVE 
 ON THE ADEQUACY OF THE INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM OF  

MEGAWIDE CONSTRUCTION CORPORATION 
For the Year Ended 31 December 2020 

  
I, ZHEENA E. OCAMPO, as the Acting Chief Audit Executive of Megawide Construction Corporation 
(“Megawide”), including its subsidiaries and affiliates (collectively the “Megawide Group”), hereby 
states that:  
 
• With the guidance and supervision of the Audit and Compliance Committee (“ACC”) of the 

Board of Directors (“Board”) of Megawide, the Internal Audit Department (“IAD”) has been 
focused on enhancing and strengthening the internal control system of the Megawide Group 
by providing independent assurance and recommendations in a systematic and disciplined 
approach, which are designed to add value and improvements to the Megawide Group’s 
business and operations. 

 
• The Megawide Group’s present internal control system appears strong and able to provide 

reasonable assurance on the accomplishment of its overall business objectives, which include: 
(i) producing reliable financial reports; (ii) developing effective enterprise risk management 
(“ERM”) programs across its departments and business units; and (iii) complying with corporate 
governance, financial, legal, and tax reporting requirements.   

 
• The management of the Megawide Group and its process owners have consistently adopted 

the recommendations of the IAD for the improvement of its internal control systems and for 
the effectiveness of its ERM programs.    

 
• The IAD has complete independence with respect to the departments and business units in the 

Megawide Group that it is auditing. In fact, the Board and the management of the Megawide 
Group have not placed any limitations or restrictions on the scope of the audit of the IAD.  

 
• Lastly, the Board, through the ACC, and the Office of the Chief Executive Officer have provided 

the IAD with general direction and guidance on the scope of its work and the activities covered 
in its 2020 annual audit plan.   

 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
MS. ZHEENA E. OCAMPO    
Acting Chief Audit Executive      
Date: 08 April 2021        
 
 
 
 
 

Concurred by: 
 

 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
MR. CELSO P. VIVAS 
Chairman of the ACC  
Date: 08 April 2021 

 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
MR. EDGAR B. SAAVEDRA 
Chairman of the Board,  
Chief Executive Officer, and President 
Date: 08 April 2021 

 



April 8, 2021
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Report of Independent Auditors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Stockholders   
Megawide Construction Corporation and Subsidiaries 
(A Subsidiary of Citicore Holdings Investment, Inc.) 
20 N. Domingo Street 
Brgy, Valencia 
Quezon City 
 
 
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
 
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Megawide Construction Corporation 
and Subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position 
as at December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the consolidated statements of income, consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and 
consolidated statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2020, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in  
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020 
and 2019, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2020 in accordance with Philippine 
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA).  Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent 
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the 
Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audits of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.  We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial statements, which describes management's 
assessment of the continuing impact on the Group's financial statements of the business 
disruption brought by the COVID-19 pandemic. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.  These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 
matters. 
 
(a) Revenue and Cost Recognition on Construction Contracts 

 
Description of the Matter 
 
The Group’s revenue from construction contracts amounting to P10,842.2 million represents 
84% of its total revenues in 2020.  The Group uses the percentage of completion method to 
determine the appropriate amount of contract revenues to be recognized for the reporting 
period.  It uses the input method (i.e., based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction 
of a performance obligation) in determining the percentage-of-completion based on the  
PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. 
 
In our view, the revenue and cost recognition of construction contracts is significant to our audit 
due to the materiality of the contract revenues to the total revenues of the Group, the 
complexity of the application of PFRS 15 in construction contracts, and the application of 
significant management judgment in determining when to recognize construction revenue and 
proper recognition of costs in estimating the stage of completion of the construction.  An error in 
the application of the requirements of PFRS 15 and of management judgment and estimate 
could cause a material misstatement in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
The basis of significant judgment and estimates are included in Notes 2 and 3 to the 
consolidated financial statements.  In addition, the details of construction contract revenues and 
costs are disclosed in Notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively. 
 
How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit 
 
Our audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement relating to revenue and cost 
recognition on construction contracts, which was considered to be a significant risk, included 
the following: 
 
 Testing the design and operating effectiveness of the Group’s processes and controls 

over the recognition and measurement of contract revenues and costs; 
 
 Evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue recognition on construction 

contracts based on the requirements of PFRS 15 which include the following: 
 
o reviewing significant construction contracts, including contractual terms and conditions 

to ensure these contracts are appropriately accounted for in accordance with PFRS 15; 
 

  



Certified Public Accountants 
Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd. 
 

 

 
 
 

- 3 - 
 
 
 

 

o evaluating whether the methodology by which management determines the percentage 
of completion (i.e., input method) is appropriate and consistent with the Group’s 
satisfaction of its performance obligation; 

 
o determining proper accounting for contract costs whether these are considered as 

incremental costs of obtaining a contract, costs to fulfil the contract or mobilization 
costs; and, 
 

o determining whether performance obligation is distinct for proper allocation of 
transaction price. 
 

 Testing the schedules of contracts completed and on-going projects as of the end of the 
reporting period such as, but not limited to, verifying the mathematical accuracy of the 
schedules, agreeing beginning balances on a per project basis, recalculating ending 
balances based on incurred contract costs for the current period; and agreeing contract 
prices, on a sample basis, to construction contracts; 
 

 Examining, on a sample basis, contract costs incurred during the period by tracing these 
costs to supporting documents such as bill of materials, billing invoices and receipts; 

 
 Performing analytical review procedures on contract revenues and costs, prior period 

estimates and consistency with the developments during the current period, stage of 
completion, and final forecast project results based on our expectations and following up 
variances from our expectations; and,  
 

 Performing cut-off procedures to determine whether contract revenues and costs are 
recognized in the correct period by examining billing and supplier invoices near the end of 
the reporting period; 

 
 Testing completeness of costs recognized by agreeing costs incurred during the period to 

the trial balance and searching for unrecorded costs by examining subsequent 
disbursements related to the projects; 

 
 Comparing the percentage of completion used by the Group to the percentage of total 

costs incurred to date over the total estimated costs on the project and following up 
variances;  

 
 Recomputing total estimated cost as the product of total contract price and cost ratio 

derived from the examined contracts and comparing with project cost estimate certified by 
the Group’s engineers; and, 

 
 Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of disclosures in the Group’s consolidated 

financial statements in accordance with PFRS 15. 
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(b) Impairment Assessment of Concession Assets 
 
Description of the Matter 
 
The Group identified that its Concession Agreement in relation to its Mactan Cebu International 
Airport (MCIA) Project is within the scope of IFRIC 12, Service Concession Arrangements, and 
shall be accounted under the intangible asset model as it receives the right (license) to charge 
users of the public service.  As of December 31, 2020, the carrying values of the concession 
assets amounted to P29,928.7 million.  As disclosed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the concession asset is recognized initially at cost and subsequently carried at cost 
less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.     
 
Under Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 36, Impairment of Assets, the Group is required 
to test for impairment of intangible assets when there is an indication that the asset maybe 
impaired while intangible assets not yet available for use are tested at least annually for 
impairment.  
 
In our view, this matter is significant to our audit because the amount of concession assets is 
material to the consolidated financial statements representing 37% of the Group’s consolidated 
total assets.  In addition, management’s assessment process is highly judgmental and is based 
on significant assumptions, specifically in determining the recoverable amount of concession 
assets based on the value-in-use.  The assumptions used by management are generally 
affected by expected future market and economic conditions.   
 
The Group’s accounting policies relating to the measurement of concession assets are 
disclosed in Note 2 while the carrying values of the concession assets are disclosed in Note 13 
to the consolidated financial statements. 
 
How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit 
 
Our procedures related to the impairment assessment of Concession Assets included the 
following: 
 
 Understanding the Group’s process in making accounting estimates and determining 

whether there has been or ought to have been a change from the prior period in the 
method, judgment and assumptions used by the Group relating to the measurement of the 
concession assets; 

 
 Involving the work of firm experts in testing the appropriateness of the assumptions and 

methodology used in determining the value-in-use of concession assets, which include the 
appropriateness of the pre-tax discount rate and growth rates, and reasonableness of the 
cash flow projections prepared by management with the assistance of third party 
consultants, including consideration of the impact of COVID-19;  
 

 Evaluating the qualification and competency of the third party consultants engaged by 
management to determine whether the results of their work can be relied upon; 

 
 Performing sensitivity analysis on the calculation to determine whether a reasonably 

possible change in assumptions could cause the carrying amount of the concession 
assets to exceed the recoverable amount; and, 

 
 Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of disclosures in the Group’s consolidated 

financial statements in accordance with PAS 36. 
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(c) Expected Credit Loss Model and Recoverability of Trade Receivables, Advances to 
and Receivables from Related Parties and Contract Assets 

 
Description of the Matter 

 
As at December 31, 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables, advances to 
and receivables from related parties (including accrued interest) and contract assets amounted 
to P5,817.5 million, P9,233.6 million and P4,231.6 million, respectively.  These financial assets 
totaling to P19,282.7 million which are disclosed in Notes 6 and 9, to the consolidated financial 
statements represent 24% of the total assets of the Group as at the end of the reporting period.  
The Group’s management exercises significant judgment and makes estimates in determining 
when the trade receivables, advances to and receivables from related parties and contract 
assets are impaired and how much impairment losses need to be recognized in accordance 
with the expected credit loss (ECL) model under PFRS 9, Financial Instruments.  The Group’s 
significant accounting policies, management judgment and estimates, which are described in 
Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements while the disclosures relating to credit 
risk applicable to these financial assets are disclosed in Notes 28 and 32 to the consolidated 
financial statements. 
 
Because of the complexity of the requirement of PFRS 9 in determining ECL and the high level 
of uncertainties involved in management’s use of judgment and estimates, we identified the use 
of ECL model and recoverability of the Group’s trade receivables, advances to and receivables 
from related parties and contract assets discussed above as a key audit matter. 

 
How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit 

 
Our audit procedures to determine the appropriateness of the ECL model adopted by the 
Group, and the recoverability of trade receivables, advances to related parties and contract 
assets, and the adequacy of the related allowance for credit losses on these assets included, 
among others, the following: 

 
 Evaluating appropriateness of the Group’s ECL model based on the requirements of the 

standard and the related policies and procedures of the Group;  
 
 Identifying any customers, on a sample basis, with financial difficulty and/or breach of 

contract resulting in default on payments through discussion with management, inspecting 
the customers’ payment history, performing an independent evaluation of their ability to 
pay and determining any related retention liability that can be recovered by the Group in 
settlement of the selected past due or delinquent customer’s accounts; 

 
 For advances to and receivables from related parties, evaluating the capacity of the 

related parties to pay by assessing their liquidity and whether there are any valid business 
purposes on which these advances are made; 

 
 For contract assets, identifying whether such costs are recoverable and subsequently 

billable based on the terms of the specific contract; 
 

 Evaluating the appropriateness and reasonableness of underlying assumptions, including 
forward-looking information and the sufficiency, reliability and relevance of the data used 
by the Group;  

 
 Checking the mathematical accuracy of the provision matrix applicable to the ECL model, 

including testing of aging of trade receivables; and, 
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 Evaluating the sufficiency and appropriateness of disclosures in the Group’s consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with PFRS 9. 
 

(d) Performing Significant Portion of Audit Remotely 
 
Description of the Matter 
 
As disclosed in Note 1 of the financial statements, COVID-19 started to become widespread in 
the Philippines in early March 2020 wherein certain measures implemented by the government 
resulted in performing a significant portion of the engagement remotely.   
 
The change in working conditions is relevant and significant to our audit since it creates an 
increased risk of error due to less visibility of the client personnel and lack of access to the 
original client records.  Given the changes in how the audit was performed, the audit required 
exercising enhanced professional skepticism.   
 
How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit 
 
Our audit procedures to address the risk of performing the audit remotely included the following: 
 
 Considering the nature of the engagement and the engagement team’s knowledge of the 

entity and its environment when determining whether it is possible to perform a significant 
portion, if not all of the engagement remotely; 

 
 Following the requirements of the PSA including providing proper supervision and review, 

even when working remotely; 
 

 Obtaining information through electronic means, which includes sending and receiving of 
confirmation electronically, obtaining calculations in electronic form to check the 
mathematical accuracy, scanning of hard-copy items for review and using real-time 
inspection technology such as video and screen-sharing; 

 
 Determining the reliability of audit evidence provided electronically using enhanced 

professional skepticism; 
 

 Performing inquiries through video call in order to judge body language and other cues 
and to have a more interactive audit engagement; 

 
 Reviewing of workpapers of component auditors remotely through share screen facility 

and constant communication; and, 
 

 Examining critical hard copy documents (e.g., contracts, progress billings, billing invoices, 
purchases invoices and official receipts) physically in response to the risk in revenues and 
costs, which is considered to be significant. 
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Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information.  The other information comprises the 
information included in the Group’s Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Form 20-IS 
(Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A, and Annual Report for the year ended 
December 31, 2020, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our 
auditors’ report thereon.  The SEC Form 20-IS, SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year 
ended December 31, 2020 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this 
auditors’ report. 
 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 
In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to 
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting 
process. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always 
detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial 
statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit.  We also: 
 
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control. 

 
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability 
to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are 
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditors’ report.  However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

 
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

 
 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 

entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements.  We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the group audit.  We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.  We describe these matters in our 
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
  



Certified Public Accountants 
Punongbayan & Araullo (P&A) is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd. 
 

 

- 9 -

 

The engagement partner on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report is 
Mailene Sigue-Bisnar.

 PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO 

By: Mailene Sigue-Bisnar
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0090230
TIN 120-319-128
PTR No. 8533222, January 4, 2021, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation

Partner - No. 0396-AR-3 (until Oct. 1, 2021)
Firm - No. 0002 (until Dec. 31, 2024)

BIR AN 08-002511-020-2020 (until Dec. 21, 2023)
Firm’s BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Jul. 24, 2021)

April 8, 2021

  



 
 

  
   


    
    
    
    

   


    


    
    
    

   

   

 



   
   
     
      
      
   


   

   

   

   







 
 

   

 
   
   
   
   

  

 
   
   
   
   

  

   


    
    

  

   

 
      
   
   

     

    

    

    


    
    

   

     












 
 

   

    





    
    

    





     
      

   

    

    


    
    

   
























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































 












































































































































































































































































































































































































































   


    


    
    
          
        
         
          
      

   
      
         


   
        
      
        
       


     
      
       
      

   
         

   




         
        
         
       
       


   
     
      
      

      

     







    

     


       
    
    
       
          
          
       
      

     


       


      

    


   


   










For the complete AFS, please visit:
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Megawide-Construction-Corporation-2020-Conso-and-Parent-AFS.pdf

https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/Megawide-Construction-Corporation-2020-Conso-and-Parent-AFS.pdf
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GRI Content Index
(102-55)  

GRI Content Index

158 MEGAWIDE 2020 ANNUAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT

For the Materiality Disclosures Service, GRI Services reviewed that the GRI 
content index is clearly presented and the references for Disclosures 102-40 to 
102-49 align with appropriate sections in the body of the report.
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Name of the organization
Activities, brands, products, and services
Location of headquarters
Location of operations
Ownership and legal form
Markets served
Scale of the organization

Information on employees and other workers

Supply chain

Significant changes to the organization and its 
supply chain

Precautionary Principle or approach

Statement from senior decision-maker

Values, principles, standards, and norms
of behavior

Governance structure

Highest governance body’s role in sustainability 
reporting

List of stakeholder groups
Collective bargaining agreements
Identifying and selecting stakeholders
Approach to stakeholder engagement
Key topics and concerns raised

External initiatives
Membership of associations

GRI 101: FOUNDATION 2016
GRI 102: GENERAL DISCLOSURES 2016

Organizational
profile

STRATEGY

Ethics and 
integrity

Governance

Stakeholder 
engagement

In line with our commitment to building a First-World 
Philippines, Megawide assesses and manages the 
potential risks and negative impact of our business on 
the environment. We have a Research & Development 
Team who stays updated with new developments in 
the engineering and construction industry, including 
the evolving standards and requirements for quality 
assurance. With respect to climate change and 
the related risks associated with this, Megawide’s 
Enterprise Risk Management ensures that the company 
is prepared for the impact of climate hazards and events, 
and has management measures in place to deal with 
these. 

During the reporting year, there have been no 
significant changes to Megawide and its supply chain.

102-1
102-2
102-3
102-4
102-5 
102-6 
102-7 

102-8 

102-9 

102-10 

102-11

102-14

102-16

102-18

102-32

102-40 
102-41 
102-42 
102-43 
102-44 

102-12 
102-13 

19
20-21
5, 21

21
104-105

21
8, 21, 73

73, 121-
125

34-37

22
22

20

107

25

29-30
135

29-30
29

29-30

GRI Standard Direct Answers/OmmissionsDISCLOSURE PAGE

See SEC-Form 17A 2020  p. 375-376
Defining report content and topic Boundaries
List of material topics
Restatements of information
Changes in reporting

Reporting period
Date of most recent report
Reporting cycle
Contact point for questions regarding the report
Claims of reporting in accordance with
the GRI Standards
GRI content index
External assurance

102-46 
102-47
102-48
102-49

102-50 
102-51 
102-52 
102-53 
102-54 

102-55 
102-56 

31
31-32

7-8

5
5
5
5
5

158-165

GRI Standard Direct Answers/OmmissionsDISCLOSURE PAGE

This report covers a different set of EPC projects from 
last year. EPC projects included in this report are: 
Albany Kingsley, Taguig City

Albany Yorkshire, Taguig City

Gentry Manor, Parañaque City

Taft East Gate, Cebu City

University Tower España, Manila

Worldwide Plaza, Taguig City

Urban Deca Ortigas, Pasig City

The Cornerhouse, San Juan City

Urban Deca Tondo, Manila

International Finance Center, Taguig City

The Hive, Taytay, Rizal

Plumera, Cebu City

Urban Deca Cubao, Quezon City

This report has not undergone external assurance.

Entities included in the consolidated financial 
statements

Reporting
practice

This ASR reports on the operations of the following 
strategic
business units (SBUs):
1. MCC
A. EPC
B. HoldCo
C. BU
2. MWM Terminals Inc.
3. GMCAC
4. Megawide Foundation
(Megawide Foundation data are covered in HoldCo 
reported under MCC disclosures)

102-45

https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
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Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Direct economic value generated and distributed

Infrastructure investments and services 
supported
Significant indirect economic impacts

Proportion of spending on local suppliers

Operations assessed for risks related to 
corruption
Communication and training about anti-
corruption policies and procedures
Confirmed incidents of corruption and actions 
taken

Material Topics
GRI 200: Economic Standard Series

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 201: Economic 
Performance 2016

GRI 203: Indirect 
Economic Impacts 
2016

GRI 204:
PROCUREMENT 
PRACTICES 2016

GRI 205: Anti-
corruption 2016

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

201-1

203-1
 
203-2 

204-1

205-1 

205-2
 
205-3

7

8
8

7

13
28

58

58
58

100

100
101

8

13-15, 93

17, 28, 93

113

100-
101
102

102

GRI Standard Direct Answers/OmmissionsDISCLOSURE PAGE

Economic Performance

Indirect Economic Impacts

Procurement Practices

Anti-corruption

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Materials used by weight or volume

Energy consumption within the organization
Energy intensity

Interactions with water as a shared resource
Management of water discharge-related impacts
Water withdrawal 

Water discharge
Water consumption

Direct (Scope 1) GHG emissions
Energy indirect (Scope 2) GHG emissions
Nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulfur oxides (SOx), and 
other significant air emissions

Waste by type and disposal method

Transport of hazardous waste

GRI 300: Environmental Standards Series

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 301: Materials
2016

GRI 302: Energy 
2016

GRI 303: WATER AND 
EFFLUENTS 2018

GRI 305: Emissions
2016

GRI 306: Effluents 
and Waste 2016

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

301-1

302-1 
302-3

303-1 
303-2 
303-3 

303-4
303-5

305-1 
305-2 
305-7 

306-2 
 
306-4

58

58
58

62

63
62

66-69 

66-69
66-69

64

65
64

59-61

59-61
59-61

56-57

62
115-118

66

66, 120-
121

68
66, 120-

121

64, 118-119
64, 118-119

64

68

59, 61, 
113-115

61

GRI Standard Direct Answers/OmmissionsDISCLOSURE PAGE

Materials

Energy

WATER

EMISSIONS

Effluents and Waste
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Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 

Evaluation of the management approach

New suppliers that were screened using 
environmental criteria

In the reporting year, the SBUs have no
environmental and social criteria for
the accreditation of suppliers. Their
respective Procurement departments
select suppliers based on the
legitimacy of their operations through
requirements such as business
registration and other governmental
licenses and permits. Because of this,
EPC and GMCAC consider digging
deeper to assure the individual
responsibilities of their suppliers to
the environment and society. Hence,
the procurement policy will be further
reviewed to incorporate provisions for
environmental criteria

Non-compliance with environmental laws and 
regulations

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 308: Supplier 
Environmental 
Assessment 2016

GRI 307: 
Environmental 
Compliance 2016

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2
 
103-3

308-1

307-1

70

70
70

58

58,  100-
101, 111
58, 100-

101

70

GRI Standard Direct Answers/OmmissionsDISCLOSURE PAGE

Environmental Compliance

Supplier Environmental Assessment

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Minimum notice periods regarding operational 
changes 

New employee hires and employee turnover
Benefits provided to full-time employees that 
are not provided to temporary or part-time 
employees
Parental leave

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 402: Labor/
Management 
Relations 2016

GRI 401: 
Employment 2016

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

402-1

401-1 
401-2 

401-3 

72-73

74-76
74-76

81

81
81

135

126-127
128-132

128-132

GRI Standard Direct Answers/OmmissionsDISCLOSURE PAGE

Employment  

Labor/Management Relations

GRI 400: Social Standards Series

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Average hours of training per year per employee

Programs for upgrading employee skills and 
transition assistance programs
Percentage of employees receiving regular 
performance and career development reviews

Diversity of governance bodies and employees

Ratio of basic salary and remuneration
of women to men

Operations and suppliers at significant risk for 
incidents of child labor

Megawide has no risk of violating
child labor laws. Our HR Department
ensures that all officers and employees
are of legal age. Megwide’s contracts
with suppliers and contractors require
that parties to the contracts should
be compliant with all applicable laws,
rules, and regulations, including child
labor.

Megawide’s HR Department reviews its hiring 
procedures in compliance with applicable laws and 
regulations on non-discrimination. This is further 
detailed in the  SEC-Form 17A 2020 .

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p.430-433

Occupational health and safety management 
system
Hazard identification, risk assessment, and 
incident investigation
Occupational health services
Worker training on occupational health and 
safety
Promotion of worker health
Work-related injuries
Work-related ill-health

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 404: Training 
and Education 2016

GRI 405: Diversity 
and Equal 
Opportunity 2016

GRI 408: Child 
Labor 2016

GRI 403: 
Occupational 
Health and Safety 
2018

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

404-1 

404-2 

404-3 

405-1 

405-2

408-1

403-1 

403-2
 
403-3 
403-5

403-6
403-8
403-9

87-89

87-89
87

77

78-80
78-80

84

84

84, 121-
125
128

77, 132-
133

14, 133

134

87-89

87, 89

88
88

88
135
135
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Occupational Health and Safety

Training and Education

Diversity and Equal Opportunity

Child Labor

https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
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Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 

Evaluation of the management approach

Incidents of violations involving rights of 
indigenous peoples

Employee training on human rights policies or 
procedures

Operations with local community engagement, 
impact assessments, and development programs

Operations and suppliers at significant risk for 
incidents of forced or compulsory labor

Megawide has no significant risks for
forced or compulsory labor. We apply
the best practices in employment
and talent retention and ensure
that all officers and employees of
Megawide are not forced, harassed,
or intimidated into doing or accepting
work against their will. Megawide also
takes measures to ensure that we face
no risk of forced/compulsory labor
in our dealings with contractors and
suppliers.

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p. 431-433

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p. 422-424

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p. 377-379, 433-435

Megawide construction activities
are located in areas that are not
considered ancestral lands, territories,
or natural resources of IPs. Moreover,
Megawide’s inclusive hiring process
does not discriminate against members of IP 
communities from seeking employment in our 
Company.

For the reporting year, Megawide
did not conduct any human rights
trainings. However, there were
no cases filed against Megawide
regarding any non-compliance to
labor laws or human rights violations.
Megawide’s policy is to maintain a
non-discriminatory environment, and
a harassment-free and violence-free
workplace. The various BUs also
consider human rights concerns in
their accreditation of suppliers.

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 411: Rights of 
Indigenous Peoples 
2016

GRI 412: Human 
Rights Assessment 
2016

GRI 413: Local 
Communities 2016

GRI 409: Forced or 
Compulsory Labor 
2016

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2
 
103-3

411-1

412-2

413-1

409-1

27 

28, 91-
93

25-26

91-93
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Forced or Compulsory Labor

Rights of Indigenous Peoples

Human Rights Assessment 

Local Communities

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Explanation of the material topic
and its Boundary
The management approach and its components 
Evaluation of the management approach

Incidents of non-compliance concerning the 
health and safety impacts of products and services

Incidents of non-compliance concerning product 
and service information and labeling

Substantiated complaints concerning breaches of 
customer privacy and losses of customer data

Non-compliance with laws and regulations in the 
social and economic area

New suppliers that were screened using social 
criteria

In the reporting year, the SBUs have no
environmental and social criteria for
the accreditation of suppliers. Their
respective Procurement departments
select suppliers based on the
legitimacy of their operations through
requirements such as business
registration and other governmental
licenses and permits. Because of this,
EPC and GMCAC consider digging
deeper to assure the individual
responsibilities of their suppliers to
the environment and society. Hence,
the procurement policy will be further
reviewed to incorporate provisions for
social criteria.

For the reporting year, there have been no incidents 
of non-compliance regarding the health and safety of 
Megawide’s customers. Appropriate health protocol 
in relation to COVID-19 was strictly implemented 
throughout its sites of operation.  

In the reporting year, there have been no substantiated 
complaints made concerning breaches of customer 
privacy.

In the reporting year, there have been no incidents 
of non-compliance with socioeconomic laws and 
regulations. Megawide upholds a Whistleblowing 
Policy and has a Compliance Officer to oversee any 
possible fraudulent activity that arises within the 
organization and in its transactions.  

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 103: 
Management 
Approach 2016

GRI 416: Customer 
Health and Safety 
2016

GRI 417: Marketing 
and Labeling 2016

GRI 418: Customer 
Privacy 2016

GRI 419: 
Socioeconomic 
Compliance 2016

GRI 414: Supplier 
Social Assessment 
2016

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

103-1 

103-2 
103-3

416-2

417-2

418-1

419-1

414-1

94

94
94
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Supplier Social Assessment

Customer Health and Safety

Marketing and Labeling

Customer Privacy

Socioeconomic CompliancE

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p. 433-435

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p. 443-445

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p. 378-379

See SEC-Form 17A 2020 p. 441-443

There have been no substantiated complaints made 
concering Megawide’s product and service information 
and labeling during the reporting year.

https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
https://megawide.com.ph/wp-content/uploads/2021/05/HLD.-LEG.-2020-SEC-Form-17-A-Annual-Report-FULL-Website.-2021-05-09.pdf
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